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DIRECTORS'REPORT

To
The Members of Veritas (India) Limite4

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 3 I d Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company together with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31,2016.

A- HNANCIALRESI]LTS

The Company's financial highliehts in accordance with IGAAP (Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting hinciples), for the year ended March 31, 2016 is tabled below: -

in Crores

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGET&

The following are the figures and comparison ofthe operation ofthe Company,
o Standalone revenue from operatiors of Rs. 4,519,226,331/- as compared to previous year of

Rs. 5,059,501,414l-.
o Consolidated reve,nue from operations of Rs- 14,557,E55,189/- as compared to previous year of

Rs. 15,027,351,443/-.
. Standalone Profit after Tax of Rs. 75,324,701/- as compared to previous year of Rs.

E7,683,5061-.
o Consolidated Profit after Tax of Rs. 602,318,6171- as compared to previous year of Rs.

480,332,4071-

Revenue from operationo (including
other income)

455.18 513.80 1,455.83 1,502.7s

Profit before tax 8.77 10.89 61.47 50.18
Less: Provision for Taxation

Curr€nt Tax (1.70) (2.30') (1.70) (2.33)
0.46 0.18 0.46Deferred Tax 0.18

Current Tax Expense related to prior
Years.

0.00 . 0.00

Profit after Tax for the current year 7.53 8.77 60.23 48.03
Add: Balaace in Profit & Loss Accout
brought forward.

10.37 21.72 104.42 93.90

0.02 o.o2 0.02 o.o2Add: Credit for Tax on Dividend
Less: Loss on disposal of subsidiary 0.00 0.00 0.00 (17.20)
Less: Trf. to Capital reserve on merger 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.20)

37.93 30.51 164.67 104.56Profit available for Appropriation
Lest
- hoposed Dividead 0.13 0.t2 0.13 0.12

0.03 0.02 0.03 0.02- Dividend Distribution Tax
Balance trrnrferred to Balance Sheet 37.77 3037 164.51 to4.4t

EIffiffi--tr=irif:,ffiffi
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MATERIAL CEAIYGES AIID COMiVIITMENTS AITTCTING TI{E FINANCIAL FOSITION
OF TEE COMPA.I\TY BETWEEN TEE EhTD OF TITE FINAI{CIAL YEAR AI{D TEE DATE
OFTEEf,EEO]RI

During the year undcr review, there were no material changes and./or com-m.itments affecting the
financial position of the company between the end of the Financial year and the date of this refnd.

DTVIDEIID

Your Directors are pleased to recomme,nd a dividend of 5 (Five) paisa per Equity Share of the face value
of Re. l/- @upees One only) each for the frnancial year e,nded March 31, 2016 payable to the
shareholders whose namcs appear in the Register of Members as on the Book Closure date. The
Dividend is payable subject to the approval ofthe Shareholders at the ens"ing Aaaual General Meeting
of the Company.

The total cash outgo on account of dividend paynent for the financial year 2015-16 will be Rs.
16,14,9001- (Rupees Sixteen Iakhs Fourtee,n Thousand Nine Hundred OnIy) including dividend
distribution tax thereon of Rs.2,74,4001- @upees Two Lakhs Seventy-Four Thousand Four Hundred
Orly).

TRANSMRTO RESERVES

Your Company proposed not to transfer any firad out of its total profit ofRs. 7.5 3 Crore for the financial
year to the Ge,neral Reserves of the Company.

INCREASE IN SEARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, pursuant to the special re,solution passed by thc way of postal ballot by
the Company on July 09, 2015, your Company has allotted 26,00,000 (Twenty-Six lalfis) equity shares
to the Foreign. Porfolio Investor on preferential basis of Re.l/- @upees One Only) each at a price of
Rs. 100 (Rupees One Hun&ed Only) per share including a premium of P.s. 99/- @upees Ninety-Nine
Only) each. The equity shares issued shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares
of the Company including divid€nd- Conseque,ntly, the paid-up share capiral of the Company has
increascd to Rs. 2,66,10,000/- (Rupees Two Crores Eight Idfis Te,n thousand only) comprising of
2,68,10,000 (Two Crores Eight Lakhs Ten thousand only) Ordinary (Equity) shares ofRe. l/- (Rupees
One Only) each firlly paid-up.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Consolidated Financial Stateme,nts ofthe Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year 2O15-
16, prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Accounting Standards along
with all relevant documents and the Statutory Auditors' Report forms part of this Amual Report.

The detailed Financial Statem€nB as stated above are also available on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at the web link http://www.veritasindia.net/investorinformation/AnnualReoort.aspx.

ASSOCIATE AIYDJOINT

During the year under revie% the Hon'ble High Court of Madras, vide its order dated March 30, 2016,
satrctioned the scheme of Amalgaoation between one of the wholly owned subsidiaries of your
Company lv{/s Kudrat Farming Private Limited (Transferor Company) and stepdown subsidiary Nfls
V€ritas Agro Venture Private Limited (Traosferee Company) and their respective shareholders and
creditors ('the Scheme') which was approved by the Sareholders of the respective companies at their
General Meetings.
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During the year, the Company acquired 100% shareholding in lvlls. Veritas Polychem Private Limited
and became the wholly owned subsidiary of your Company. lvIls. Verihs America Trading Inc. became
subsidiary of the Company with effect from August 05, 2015.

As on 3 I s March 20 I 6, Your Company own following wholly owned subsidiary / Step down
subsidiaries companies within India and abroad:

l) lvl/s. Dharni Farming Private Limitd incorporatcd in Iadia
2) Iv/s. V€ritas Agro V€ntures Private Limited, incorporated in India
3) lv{/s. Veritas Polychem Pvt. Ltd-, India
4) Iv7s. Veritas Intcrnational FZE, incorporated in Dubai UAE
5) lv{/s. Hazel International FZE, incorporated itr Sharjah, UAE
6) Iv7s. Veritas Global PTE Limited, incorporated in Singapore
7) lvfls. GV Investme,nt Finance Company Linited, incorporated in Mauritius
E) lvUs. Veritas America Trading INC, USA

During the year rmder review, the Board of Directors rwiewed the affairs of Company's subsidiaries.
Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standards -21 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountant oflndiq Consolidated Financial Statement pr€seoted by the Company
include the financial stat€rn€nts of its subsidiaries. Further, in accordance with Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule E(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the report on the
performance and financial position of all the subsidiaries, associates and joint venture compades
included in the Consoli&ted Financial Statements is provided in the prescribed format AOC-I is
attached as Annexure I which forms part of this repon.

Io terms of provisions of Section 136 ofthe Companies Acl 2013, the Company shall place separately
audited accormts of each of its subsidiaries oo its wcbsite at s,ww.veritasindia.na and the same shall be
available for inspcctioa by the Members at the registered office of your Company during the hrsiness
hours on all working &ys except Sahrdays and Sundays up to the date of ensuing AGM. Membcrs
desirous of obtaining a copy of the said fiaancial statements shall write to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company at the Registered Office Address.

Your Company has approved a policy for determining material zubsidiaries and the same is uploaded
on the Company's website which can be accessed using the link
httD://www-veritasindia netliu-vestors licy for determininc Mat€rial Subsidiaries.p

!u.

INTERNAL IINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company's Financial Stat€m€nts are prepared on the basis ofthe Sipificant Accounting Policies
that are carefirlly selected by Management and approved by the Audit Qqmmi6€€ and the Board of
Directors of the Company. These Accounting policies are reviewed and updated from time to time. In
this connection, your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Accounting
Standards prescrib€d in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2fi)6 that continue to ap'ply
under Section 133 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, to the
ext€nt applicable. These are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India.
Changes in Accounting policies, if any, are reviewed and ap,proved by the Audit Committee in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors from time to time.

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial contols with reference to the Financial
Statements commensurate with the size, scale and cooplexity ofits operations. Such controls have been
assessed during the year under rcyiss,., taking into consideration the essential components of internal
contols stated in the Guidance Note or Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accoutr[ants of India- Based on the results of such assessments
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carried out by Malagement, no r€portable mat€rial wealoess or sigdficant deficie,ncies in the desip
or operation of internal financial controls was observed. Nonetheless your ComFany recopizes that
any intcrnal control t'ameworl no matter how well designe4 has inherent limitations and accordilgly,
regular audits and review processes ensure that such systems are rei.nforc€d on an ongoing basis.

Indirn Accountlng Standtds (IND AS) - ItrRS Converged
Your Company would adopt Indian Accounting Standards C'Ind AS") for the accounting periods
begintrirg on lst April, 2017 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated l6th
February, 2015 notiffing the Companies (Indian Accounting Staudard) Rules, 2015.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION A}ID ANALYSIS REPORT

A deailed analysis of your Company's performance is discussed in Management Discussion and
Analysis Report, which forms part of this A-nnual Report.

PARTICIJI,ARS OF CONTRASIS OR AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO WTTE RELATEI)
PARTIES

During the financial year 2015-16, your Company has entaed into transactions with the related parties
as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 read with the Rules made thereunder, all of
which are in the ordinary course of business and are on arms' Iength basis and in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations. A.ll
related party transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. Further, there were no bansactions with related garties which
qualifr as material transactions under the Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the disclosure of related
pafty tansactiotrs as required under Sectioo 134(3) (h) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is
not applicable. In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 and Regulatioa 23 of the Listing
Regulations, your Company has formulated a policy on Materiality of Related Party Traasaction and
on dealing *'ith related party transactions duly approved by the Board and is uploaded on the website
of the Company.

The details of the traasactions with related parties and the status of outstanding balances as per
Accouoting Standard 18 are set out in Note nos. 28(b) to the Standalone Financial Statements forming
part of rhis report.

STATUTORY AI'DITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS A}ID STATUTORY AI]DITORS' REPORT

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the act and the rules famed thereunder, lWs. Shabbir & Rita
Associates LLP, Chadered Accountants, Mumbai, (Firm Registration No. 109420W), were appointed
as the Statutory Auditor of the Company at the 306 Aonual Ge,neral Meeting held on 30m September,
2015 and will hold the offrce till the conclusion of 32d Annual General Meeting to be held in the year
2017, sullect to ratification of their appointment at every AGM. Pursuant to Section I4l of the
Companies Act,20l3 and relevant Rules made thereuuder, the Compaay has received a lett€r from the
Auditors stating that their appoirlm€nt, if made, would be within the prescribed limit laid down under
the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appointrnent. Accordingly, the members' approval is
being sought for their appointme,lrt as the Auditors of the Company at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

The reports given by the Auditors on standalone and consolidated financial stat€m€nts of the Company
form part of the Amual Report. There are uo qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or
disclaimcrs given by the Auditors in their reports. The notes on financial statements ref€rred to in the
Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any firther comm€nts-

lt
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Secretarirl Audit Report

The Board has appointed lvIls. JMJA & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial
Auditor ofthe for the financial yan 2015-2O16 pursuant to Section 204 ofthe Compaoies Act, 2013.
The Sccraarial Audit R€port for the financial year e.nded March 31, 2016 as submitted by them is
annexed as Annexure tr and forms part of this Report.

There are no qualifications or obsavations or adverse re.marks or disclaimer of the Secretarial Auditors
in the Report issued by thcm for the fiaancial yan 2015-16 which call for any explanation from the
Board of Directors.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any instances of
fi-auds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Commiftee under section
143(12) ofthe Compauies Ac! 2013, details of which necds to be mentioned in this ReporL

PARIICI'LARS OF LOANS GTVEN. II\TVESTMENTS MADE. GUARNAITES GIVEN AI\D
SECI'RITY PROVIDEI)

Particulars of inveshents made, loan giwn, guarantee given or security provided and the purpose for
which the loan or guarantee or security give,n as proposed to be utilized pursuant to Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchrnge Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirernent) Regulations, 201 5 (*Listing Regulations") are provided in
the Note No. 24 to the financial Satements.

H. PTJBIIC DEPIOSIT

During the year uoder review, your Company has not accepted any deposit wirhin the meaoing of
Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules,20l4.

L PARTICT]LI\RS OF EMPLOYEES AND REI.ATED DISCLOST'RES

Disclosures with regards to the particulars of Directors, KMPs and employecs who are in receipt of
remun€ration in excess of the limits as prescribed under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rules 5(l) of the Companies (Appointment and Remrmeration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules,2014, as amended till date as may be applicable are available and the 51"1"-.,a1 sotrtaining the
details of employee remuneration as required under Section I 97 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 read with
Rules 5(2) and 5(3) ofthe Companies (Appoirtm€nt aDd Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during business hours on
working days 21 days before the Annual General Meeting and any Member willing to obtain copy of
the said statement can write to the Investor Relations Departme,nt at the Registered office address. In
terms of Section 136(l) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Repon is being sent to rhe Members
excluding the information on employees' particulars.

J. BOARD AIYD COMMITIEES

DIRECTORS

Mr. Ratan Moondra resigncd as a Dtector of the Company with effect from May 01, 2015 due to pre-
occupation. The Board places on record its deep appreciation for valuable services and guidance
provided by Mr. Moon&a during his teuure with the Company.

5
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Acl 2013 Mr. Rajarangamani Gopalan
(DIN: 01624555) was appointed as an Additional Dtector, to serve the Board as an Independent
Director with efrect from May 24, 2016 for a period offive consecutive years, subject to the approval
of shareholders. As per Section 160 of the Act, Mr. Gopalaa bcing an Additional Director of the
Compaoy, holds the olfice up to the e,nsuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and is eligible to be
appointed as an lodependent Director ofthe Company.

The Company has received notice in writing under Section 160 from members, along with a requisite
deposit, sipiffing his intension to propose the appoinh€nt / re-appointment of Mr. Rajarangamani
Gopalan as mentioned in the preceding paragraphs.

The Compaoy has received d€clarations from all the Ind€pend€nt Directors of the Company confrming
that they meet the criteria of indepeirdezrce as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
20 I 3 read with Schedule IV and the relevant rules made thereunder and Regulation I 6( 1 {b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and there bas been no change in
the circumstances which may affect their status as an independeirt director duri[g the year.

In accordance with the Section 152, other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in
teros of Memorandum and Anicle of Association of the Company, ooe-third of such of the Directors
as are liable to retire by rotation, shall rette every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointm€nt rt every AGM. Accordingly, Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi @IN: 02000411), Whole-Time
Director will raire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and being eligible have offered himsslf fe1 1s-
appointm€nt. Appropriate resolution for his re-appointment has be€n included in the Notice ensuing
AGM. A brief resume and other related information of the Directors has been &tailed in the Notice of
the ensuing AGM. Your Dtectors recommend his re-appointment as a Whole-time Director for your
Company.

Kev Manrqerill Pcnonnel

During the year uuder review, Mr. Mukesh Tant resigned from the post of Compauy Secretary with
effect from March I l, 2016 and the Company is in the process of frnding a suitable candidate to be
appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company. The following have been desipated as Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company pursuant to Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and R€muneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

(a) Mr. Saurabh Sangavi: Whole Time Director

(b) Mr. Rajaram Shanbhag Chief Financial Offrcer

BOARDEVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requteme,nts) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried out
a formal Annual evaluation of the performance of its own performance and that of its Committees, the
Chairmaa as well as perfonnance of the Director individually. The evaluation was done by the way of
a structured questionnaires covering various asp€cts of the Boards firnctioning, amongst others vision,
strategy & role clarity of the Board, Board dynamics & processes, contribution towards development
of the sEategy, risk management, budgetary contols, receipt of regular inputs and information,
firctionin& performance & structure of Board Committees, ethics & values, skill set, howledge &
exp€rtis€ of Directors, leadership etc.

A s€,parate exercise was carried out by the Nominatioa and Remuneration Commi666 6f 1[s Board to
evaluate the performaoce of individual Directors. The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole was carried out by the Indepe.ndent Diectors. The performance
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evaluation of the Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors, taking
into account the views of the Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. The Directors expressed
ttreir satisfaction with the evaluation process.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FORDIRECTORS

Your Company has in place a structured induction and familiarization progra.mme for all its Dir€ctors
including the Independent Directors. Your Company tbrough such programmes familiarizes not only
the Indepe,ndent Diectors but any new appointee on the Board with a brief backgrormd of your
Company, their roles, rights, reqponsibilities, nature bfthe industry in which it operates, business model
operations, ongoitrg events, etc. In order to enable the Directors to fulfill tle governance role,
comprehensive presentations are made on the various businesses, business models, risk minimiz.a1lg1
procedures and new initiatives of ttre Compaay. Changes in domestic,/overseas corporate and indusky
scenat'io including their effect on the Company, statutory and legal matters are also pesented to the
Directors on a periodic basis. They are also informed of the impodant policies of your Company
including the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and the Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. The daails regarding the familiarization programme
imparted by the Company can be accessed on the website of your Company on the Web-Link
http://gga{=faenrtasiqlig,gg_t/investors-information/downaloads.aspx.

Further, at the time of appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter of
ap'pointment outlining his/her role, function, duties and responsibilities as a Director. The template of
the letter of appointment is available on the website of your Company at Web-Link
htto://www.veritasindia-neV investors-information/downloads.aspx.

POLICY ON APFOINTMENT OT DIRECTORS A}ID REMT]NERATION

As part of good governance and Board process and also in accordance of the requirement of the Act
and SEBI (Listing Regulatioas), the Company has adopted a policy for Board Diversity, Appointment,
Remrmeration, Training and Evaluation of Directors and Employees. The Policy inter alia includes
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, indepeirde,rce notice of a director and other
matters provided rmder Sub section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act,20l3. The details of such
Nomination and Remuneration Policy oo the ap,pointment and remueration is annexed as A.nncxure
III and forms part of th is Annual Rqrod.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REOUIRED TIhIDER SECTION
134(3)(C) OF Tm COMPAT\IrES ACT.2013

Pursuant to provisions rmder Section 134(5) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, with resp€ct to Director's
Responsibility Statement, the Directors confrm:

(a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2016, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(b) That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consislently and madejudgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prud€nt so as to give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2016 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that
date;

(c) That they had taken proper and suffrcient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preve,nting and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

n

(d) That Directors had prepared the antrual accounts on a 'going concem' basis;
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(e) That they had laid down internal financial contols to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are ops-athg effectively; and

(f) That they had devised proper systems to enswe compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OT TEE BOABD

During the financial yar 2O15-16, Six meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The dates on
which the said meetings were held and the details of attendance of Board of Directors and its
Committees in such meeting are me,ltioned in the Corporate Governance Report under the heading
"Board of Directors" forming part of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Committee comprises of three Directors viz. Ms. Alpa Parekh (Chairperson of the Com.mittee), Mr.
Saurabh Sanghvi, and Mr. Shafi Sayecd Parkar. AII the Members of the Com.mittee possess accounting
1ad fiislgial manegement knowledge. All the members of the Committee are Non-Executive Directors
except Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi and two third of the members of the Committee are indep€ndent Dtectors.
The Company Secretary ofthe Company is the Secretary ofthe Commiftee.

AII the recommendations of the Audit Com.mittee were accepted by the Board.

GOVERNAIICE

CORPORATE GOVERNAI\TCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulatioas read with Schedule V to the said Regulations, a
s€,?arate R€,port on Corporate Governance along with a required Certificate from Practicing Company
Secreiaries regarding the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulated forms
part of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT FOLICY

Your Company h"s a welldefined framework for risk managen€rxt in place to identi&, measure and
mitigate business risk and opportrmities. This framework seeks to cr€ate transparency, minilai2s
adverse impact on the business objective and enhance the Company's comp€titive advantage. This risk
framework thus helps ia managisg market, credit and operations risks and quantilies exposure and
potential impact at a Company level.

Your Company has develo@ and implemented a Risk Management Policy for evaluation and
mitigatioa of the risks. The Risk Maaagement Policy, inter alia, includes identification therein of
elements ofrisl6, including those which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the
Company. Risk manageme,nt process has been established across the Company and is designed to
identi&, assess and &ame a response to tbreats that affect the achievement of is objectives, Funher, it
is e,mbedded across all the major fimctions and revolves around the goals and objectives of the
organization. However, during the year under review there are no such risks which in the opinion of the
Board may threaten the existence of your organization.

VIGIL SIM

The Vigil Mechanism as e,nvisaged pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Rules prcscribed therermder aad Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is implemented tbrough the company's whistle Blower policy to
enable the Directors, employees and all stakeholders of the company to report genuine concerns, to

I
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provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make
provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Under this policy, your Company €ncourages its employe€s to report any reporting of taudulent -
financial or other information to the stakeholders, and any conduct that results in violation of the
Company's code of business conduc! to the management (on an anonym.ous basis, if eoployees so
desire). Likewise, rmder this policy, your Company has prohibited discrimination, retaliation or
harassment of any kind against any employees who, based on the employee's reasonable belief that
such conduct or practice haq occurred or are occurring, reports that information or participates in the
investigation. Also, no personnel have been deaied access to the Chairman ofthe Audit Comrnittee.

Whistle Blower Policy ofyour Compaay is available on the Company's website and can be accessed at
the Web-link httlr://www.veritasindia.na.com/iavestorinformation/dowoloads.aspx.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In trrms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules fiamed thereunda, your Company
has constituted a Committee oames as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The CSR
Comnittee comprises of Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-Executive Dircctor Non-Ind€pe,nd€nt
Dtector, Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Whole-Time Director and Ms. Alpa Parelfi, Non-Executive
Indep€,ld€nt Director. The Cotnmittee has been c,ntrusted with the responsibility for recomme.nding to
the Board about the implem€,nting of the CSR activities. Also, the Committee inter alia monitors the
CSR activities.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committce had formulated and recomme,nded to the Board a

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy ('CSR Policy') which was subsequently adopted by it and is
being inplemented by the Company. The CSR Policy includes a briefoverview ofthe projects and / or
programs proposed to be undertaken by the Company and can be accessed at the Company's website at
the WebJink htto://www.veritasindia.net/investorsinformation/downloads.aspx.

The Company was rmable to spend the amount as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 during the
fimncial year. The Company is finalizing formation of Trust and suitable projects to bc started under
its CSR policy.

SHARE

The issue{ subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31 , 2016 stood at Rs. 26,810,000/-
(Two Crore Sixty-Eight Lacs Ten Thousand only) comprising of26,810,000 Ordiaary (Equity) shares

ofRs.l each fully paid-up as compared to Rs.2,42,10,000/- (Two Crores Forty-two Lakhs Te.n Thousand
only) Ordinary (equity) sharcs in the prwious financial year ended March 31, 2015 on allotment of
Rs.26,00,000 Ordinary (equity) shares of Re.l at a price of Rs.100 each including of a premium of Rs.

99 per shares to I:titude Consultants Limited, a Foreip Portfolio Investor on prefer€ntial allotment
basis.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights
nor bas granted any stock options or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2016 none of the Directors of the
Company holds instruments coDv€rtible into €quity shares of the Compaoy.

EXTRACT OF A}TNUAL RETURN

The extract of Arnual Rehrm as on March ll,2016 in the pre.scribed format Form No. MGT - 9,

pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule l2(l) of the Companies (Management

and Administratioo) Rules, 2014 is attached as Amexure fV and forms part of this report.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECENOLOGY ABSORPTION A}ID FOREIGN
EXCEAI\GE EARIIINGS AI\D OIJTGO

The provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Ac! 2013 read with Rules 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 providing for the details of Conversation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are trot applicable since the Company is into tadiag and
distribution business.

However, your Directors have taken prop€r care to consewe the enerry during the year under review.

FOREIGN F-KCEANGE EARIIINGS AND OI]TGO

Particulars Yerr Ended
31.03.2016

Year Ended
31.03.2015

EARNINGS
Dividend
LiC Commission from Subsidiary
Interest from Subsidiary
FOB Value of Exports - Tradcd Goods

17,865,316
116,07,7s0
2,662,3M

97,793,089

11,E45,31E
NIL
NIL

362,E97,177
TOTAL 129,928,49t) 371,742,495
OIITG'O
CIF Value of lmports - Traded Goods NIL r79,420,220

TOTAL NIL r79.420J20

The Company has takezr various initiatives for developm€nt of export markets for sale of various
products in the International market to increase its foreip exchange earnings.

GEI\ERAL DISCLOST]RES

The Chairman of the Company did not receive any re, uneration or commission from any of the
subsidiary of your Compaoy. The Whole Time Director of the Company did not receive any
commission from any of its subsidiaries.

Your Directors state that no disclosures or reporting is required in respect ofthe following items as

there were no transactionJevents on these items during the year rmder review:

. The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.

. No Siglific€rt or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going cotrcern stahB or Company's operations in future.

. Issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares and Employee Stock Options) to employees
of the Company rmder any Scheme.

. The Company has not bought back any shares during the year.

o During the year under review, no cases w€re filed pursuant to the Sexual llarassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

EEAN9E OF REGISTERDD OTTICE OF THE COMPAIYY:

During the year undcr review, your Company has shifted its regist€red offrce within the limits of
Mumbai city. Address of new Registered offrce is Veritas house, 3d Floor, 70, Mint road, Fort, M"mbai
400 001.
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ACKNOTYLEDGEMENTS:

Your Dtectors are higNy gratefi.rl for all the guidance, support and assistance received from the
Goverooent of India, State Government of Gujarat, State Gov€rnm€nt of Maharashta, Other State
Governments Wherein ttre Company has its operations, Gujarat Maritime Board, Various Financial
Institutions and Banks. Your Directors thank all shareholders, esteeured custom€rs, suppliers and
business associates for their faith, trust atrd coDfide,nce r€posed in the Company.

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere apprcciation for the dedicated efforts and cotrsistent
contribution made by the e,mployees at all levels, to eosure that the Company continues to grow and
excel.

For end on Behdf of the Borrd of Directors

PLACE: Mumbai
DATE: 126 August,2016

sd/-
(Nitin Kumar Didwania)

CEAIRMAIY & DIRECTOR
DIN:00210289
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ANNEXUR.Etr

SECRETARHL AT]DIT REPORT

Form No. MR-3

For the finaocial year ended March 31, 2016

[Pwsuant to Section 2O4(l) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companie.s (Appointment
and Remuneration of Maoagerial Penonnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
Veritas (India) Limited
Veritas House, 3d Floor
70, Mint Road, Fort
Mumbai -,100 001
Maharashtra

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to god corporate practices by Veritas (India) Limitd bearing CIN
L23209MH19E5PLC035702 (hereinafter refened as "Company') having its Registered office at
Veritas House, 3 Floor, Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner fi6f ple vided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances
and expressing our opinioo thereon.

Based on orr verification ofthe books, papers, minute books, forms and renrms filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the iaformation provided by the Company, its officcrs, ag€nts and
authorized rearesentativcs during the cooduct of sccretarial audi! we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended March 31, 2016 complied
with the statutory provisio[s listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the me"ner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms aad retums filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2016 according to the provisions
of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws fra.med there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made there under to the

extent ofForeip Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investmetrt and Comnercial Borrowings;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange.Board of

India Act 1992 ("SEBI ACT'):
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board oflodia (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulation, 201l;
@) The Securities aod Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, I 992

and Securities Exchange Board oflndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 201 5;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of Iadia (Issue of Capital aod Disclosure Requirements)

Regulation, 2009 and amendments from ti.Ee to time;
(d) The Securities atrd Exchange Board of lodia (Employee Stock Opion Scheme and Employee

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Issue and Listing ofDebt Securities) Regulatioos,
2fi)8; (Not applicable to the Compatry during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Registars to an Issue and Share Tra.nsfer Agents)
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exch,nge Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India @uyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secraarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange;

(iii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 20 1 5 (with effect from I st December, 20 I 5).

(iv) Other applicable laws like The Employees State Insuratrce Act, 1948, The Fmployees Provident
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisious Act, 1952, the Maharashtra State Tax ou Professions,
Trades, Cellings and Employm.ents Act, 1975, the Maharashtra Shops and Establishments Act,
1948,

During the pcriod rmder review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, etc. as mentioned above.

We fi.uther report that:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Dtectors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review wer€ carried out in
compliance with provisions of ttre Act.

b) During the year under review, Mr. Mukesh Tank ceased to the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from March ll,2016.

c) The Company during the period under review has approved the proposal to issue and allot
Ordinary (equity) shares on preferential basis of the Company by way ofPostal Ballot on May
30,2015.

d) Adequarc notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on ag€nda w€re s€,nt at least seve,n days in advance and a system exiss for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meetiag.

e) As per the minutes ofthe meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of
the Board or Committee of Directors were rmanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded-

We firrther r€port that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
tle size and opei'ations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelioes, standards, etc.
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We further repod that during the audit period no specific eventJ actions took place having a major
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance ofthe above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards etc. referred to above.

For JMJA & Ascocirtes LLP
Precticing Comprny Secreteries

sd/-
Parher

Mrnri Demrnia
FCS No.:7447
COP No.: tl20

Mumbai
August 12, 2016
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Annerure IIf

NOMINATION AI\D REMI'NERATION POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
AIYD EMPLOYEES AND TEEIR REMI]hTERATION

L Gcneral:

The Companies Act,2Ol3, the Rules made thereunder in terms of Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule tr of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (lhe
Regulations') requires every Company to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
atbibute.s and independence ofdirectors. Thc Compaay is also required to adopt a policy, relatinS to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

Accordingly, the Nomioation and Re,muneration Committee (NRC) of Veritas (India) Limited has
adopted the following policy and procedure with regard to idEntifrcation and nominalisa of persons
who are qualified to become directors and who maybe appointed at senior management level.

II. Crlterie for identifyirg Derrons for apooinhent rs Directors end Senlor Manrqement:

The Nomination and Remuneration Comnittee is responsible for evaluating the qualification of each
director candidates and of those directors who are to be noninated for election by shareholders at each
Annual General Meaing of shareholders, and for recommending duly qualified director nominees to
the full Board for election. The qualification criteria set forth herein are desiped to describe the
qualities and characteristics required for the Board as a whole and for the Board individually.

I)irectors:

l. Candidates for Directorship should possess appropriate qualifications, skills and expcrtise in one or
more fields of frnaoce, law, general corporate management, information maDagement, science and
innovation, public policy, financial services, sales & marketing and other disciplines as may be
identified by the NRC and/or the Board from time to time, that may be relevant to the Company's
business.

2. The director candidates should have completed the age of21 years. The maximum age of executive
directors shall not be more than 70 years at the time of appointment / re-appointment. However, a

candidate who has attained the age of 70 years may be appoiated if approved by shareholders by passing
of special resolution-

3. The Board has not established specific education, years of business experieoce or specific types of
skills for Board members, but, in ge,neral, expects qualiEed directors to have ample experience and a
proven record of professional zuccess, leadership and the highest level of personal and professional
ethics, integrity and values.

4. The catrdidate to be appointed as Director shall have a Director IdeEtification Number allotted under
section 154 of the Companies Act,20l3 (Act).

5. In addition any person to be ap,pointed as a Managing Director or whole time director itr the Company
(hereinafter referred to as 'Executive Dhectors') shall have to meet the following requirements for being
eligible for appointment shall have to meet the requireme,nts set out itr Part I of Schedule V of the Act
and the limits of directorships s€t out in listing agreemelrt with stock exchanges.

5. Above all, every candidate for Directorship oa ttre Board should have the following positive
attributes:
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a) Possesses a high level of integrity, ethics, credibility and trustworthiness;
b) Ability to handle conllict constructively and possess the willinpess to address critical issues

proactively;
c) Is familiar with the business ofthe Company and the industry in which it op€rates and displays

a keen interest in contributing at the Board level to the Company's growth in these areas;
d) Possesses the ability to bring independent judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations

especially on issues of skategy, p€rformance, risk manageme,nt and resource planning;
e) Displays willingness to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs;
f) Values Corporate Governaace and possesses the skills and ability to assist the Company in

implementing good corporate governance practices;
g) Possesses leadership skills and is a team player.

4. Criteria for Independe,nce applicable for selection of Indepe,ndent Directors

a) The Company may select the candidate from data [nnKs) containing names, address,
qualification ofpgrsons who are eligible and willing to act as Indepe,ndent Directors maintained
by anybody, institute or association as may be notifred by the Ce,ntral Governme,nt having
expertise in creation and mainteiraoce of such data bank.

b) The prospective canfidates for alpointment as Ind€,?€nd€,!t Directors shall have to meet the
criteria oflndependence laid down in sub-section (Q of Section 149 of the Aa and in terms of
Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations.

c) Such Candidates shall submit a Declration of Indep€nd€nce to the NRC / Board, initially and
d) thereafter, annually, based upoo which, the NRC / Board shall evaluate compliance with this

criterion for Indepeirdence.
e) In the process of short listing Independcnt Directors, the Board shall ensure that there is

appropriate balance of skills, experience and howledge in the Board so as to enable the Board
to discharge its functions aod duties effectively.

5. Change in status of Independeirce

Every Independent Director shall be required to inform the NRC / Board immediately in case of any
change in circumstances that m.y put his or her indepe,ndence in doubt, based upon which, the NRC /
Board may tate such steps as it may de€rr fit in the best interest ofthe orgadzation.

III. Directors sel€cdon procedqrt

l. Human Resources (HR) department shall identifr and shortlist appropriate candidates for election to
the Board based on director's qualification criteria.

2. For each shortlistcd director candidate considered for election to the Boar4 the Nomination and
Remuueration Committee shall evaluate each director candidate and recommend to the Board any duly
qualifi ed director caudidates.

3. To aid in the short listing and screening process the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may
take the support ofprofessional age.ucies, conduct intaviews or have a personality check ud€rtak€n or
take any other steps to ensure that the right candidates are ide,ntifred-

4. A determination ofa director's qualifications to serve on the Board shall be made by the Board upon
the recommendation of the Committee, prior to nominating said dircctor for election at the Company's
next Annual General Meeting.

5. The compaoy shall issue a formal letter of appohhent to inde.pende directors in ttre manner as

provided in Paragraph IV (4) of Schedule VI the Act.

AT
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IV. Removel of Dlrector:

1. lf a Director incurs any disqualifrcation mentioned uuder the Companies Act, 2013 or any other
applicable law, regulations, statutory requtemcnt, the NRC may recom:nend to the Board with reasons

recorded in writing, the removal of the said Director subject to the provisions of and compliance with
the statutory provisions.

2. Such recomme,ndations may also be made on the basis of performance evaluation of the Directors or
as may otherwise be thought fit by the NRC.

REMUITIERATION POLICY:

l. All remuneration/feeV compe,nsation, payable to Directors shall be frxed by the Board of Directors
and payment of such remuneration feeV compen sation shall require approval of shareholders in general
meeting except for sitting fee payable to Non-Executive / Independent Directors for attendi'g
Board/Comni$ee.

2. The Board shall decide on the remuneratioo/feeVcompensatioo, payable to Directors based on the
recomme,ndations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

3. The total managerial remuneratiotr payable, to its directors, including Managing Director and Whole-
time Director, (and its mannger) in respect of any financial year shall not exceed eleven pei ce,nt of the
net profits of the company for that financial year computed in the manner laid down in Section 198 of
the Act. Provided that the company in general meeting may, with the approval of the Central
Government, authorize the payment of remuneration exceeding eleven per cent ofthe net profits of the
company, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Act.

4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure the following while recsmagn.ling the
remuneration/feey'comp€nsation payable to Directors:

5. Remuneration to Non- Erecutive / Independent Directors:
The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Dk€ctors shall not excd, 1o/o of the net profrts of the
Company

b. A Non-Executive dfuector may be paid remuneration by way of fee for atte,nding meetings of the
Board or Committee thereof or for any other purpose whatsoever. The amount of zuch fee shall not
exceed Rs.1,00,000/- ffi attqrding each meeting of the Board or Committee thereof or such higher
amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government.

a. Sittinc Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director receive remuneration in the form of sitting
fees for attending the meetings of Board or Committee thereof of the Compaoy and its subsidiaries
where zuch Director maybe so appointed. The Independetrt Directors also receive sifting fees for
atte.uding separate meetings of the Iade.pendent Directors, provided that the amount of such fees shall
not exceed maximum amouot as may b€ prescribed by the Central Government from time to tine.

b. Com.mission: The remuueration payable to the Non-Executive / Indep€nd€nt Dircctor in the form of
Commission may be paid within the monetary limits approved by shareholder's subject to the limit not
exceeding 1% of the profis of the Company computed as per applicable provisions of the Companies
Act,2013.

c. An independe,nt dtector shall not be entitled to any stock option.
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6. Remunerotion to the lYholeTime Directors / KMPs / Senior Manrgement Personnel:

a. The Whole-Time Director / KMPs and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as per the HR policy of the Company in force from time to time aad in compliance with
the rdquired applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013. The total r€mumration comprises ofa
fixed basis salary, perquisite as per the Company policy, retirem€.[t b€,nefits as per company Rules and
Statutory requirem€rxts, performance linked incentive (on aa aonual basis) based on the achievement of
pre-set KRAs and long term ince,ntives based on value creation.

b. The remun€ration payable to any q1s managing directo4 or whole-tine director or man.ger shall aot
exceed five per c€,nt. of the oet profits of the compsny and if there is more than one such director
remuneration shall not exceed ten per ccnt of the net profits to all such directors and manager taken
together. Else the re,mrmeration will be subject to approval of cenbal gov€rnm€nt as may be requned.

b. In case of inadequacy of profits,
o The Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-Time Director in accordaoce wittr the

provisions ofthe Schedule V ofthe Act.
o ln case the Company wants to pay remuneration in excess of the limits as prescribed under

Schedule V of the Act, the same can be provided with the approval of Centsal Governme,nt.

c. If any Managerial Personnel &aws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any
zuch sums in excess of ttre limits prescribed uader the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central
Government, where required, he / she shall refirnd the sums to the Company and until such sums is
refimdd hold it in tnrst for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery of such sum
refimdable to it unless permitted by the Central Govcmment.

For end on Behrlf of the Board of Directors

PLACE: Mumbai
DATE : I 2d August, 20 I 6

sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania

CEAIRMAN & DIRECTOR
DIN:00210289
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Annexure - fV

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF AI\NUAL RETT'RN

As on the llnancirl yeor ended on Mrrch 31,2016

tPursu8nt to s€ction 92(3) ofthe Compaaies Act, 20li and mle l2(l) of the
Companies (Management and Administztion) Rules, 20141

I. REGISTRATION AIVD OTEER DETAIIS

IL PRINCIPAL BUSIIYESS ACTTVTIIES Otr'THtr', COMPANY
AII the businesE activities contibuti"g 10 o/o or more of the total tumover of the company shall be stated:

sl.
No

Namc and Description of main products /
seruces

MC Code of the
ProducV service

o/o to iotal tumover of the conpany

I Wholesale frde, ercept of motor vehicles
rld motorcycles

46 99.14

r) CIN L21 209MHt 9 I sP LC03 57 02

n) Registration Date 2t/03/1985

in) Name ofthe Company Veritas (India) Limited

iv) Catcgory / Sub-Category of the Company Company limitcd by ShareV Indian Noq-Government Company

v) Address of the Registered officc and contact
details

Veritss House, 3d Floor, 70 Mint Roa4 Fort, Mumbai - 400001,
Maharashu-a.
TelNo.: +91 222275 55551 6184 W00

Yi) Whether listed company Yes

vii) Name, Addrc.ss atrd Contact details of Rcgistrar
and Transfer Agent, if any

Univenal Capital Securities Private Limited
(Formerly loown as 'Mondkar Computers ltivate Limited")
2l Shakeel Niwas, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri East, Mumbai -
400093,
Tel No.: +91 22 2E20 7203 I 05.
Email : ravi@.uniscc. in

20
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Itr. PARIICIJLARS OF IIOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AI\TD ASS(rcIATE COMPANIES

IV. SEARE EOLDING PATTERN (Equity Shrre Crpital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

st.
No

Nrme strd Addrcss of th€
Company

CIN / GLN Eolding /
Subsidiary /

Associrte

7" of sharcs
held

Applicable
Section

1 Dhrrni Farming Private
Limited
701, Embassy Centre, Narimar
Point, Mumbai - 00021

u0l403MH20l lPTC2 ls0 l0 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2 Veritrs Agro VenturB PriYrte
Limited
AP-114, AF Block, 5th Street,
l lth Main Road, Anna Nagar,
Chenrai - 600040.

u01403TN201 1PTC103236 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

3 Veritrs Polychem Private
Limited
701, Fmh6sY 66o6", Nariman
Point, Mumbai - 40002 I ,
Maharashta.

u?4233M11201IPTC21266/ Subsidiary 100 2(87)

4 Erzel Internrtional FZ,E
Plot No# lA-08
Hamriyah

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

5 Vcritrs Intertratiotrel f,'ZE
Iaft4 Dubai - UAE

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

6 Yeritas America Trading Inc
2118, 7t Steet, Suite 620 Austin
T€xas, Tx- 78701-3218

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

7 Verit$ Globrl PTE Llmitcd
16 Rafles Quay
#27{lB Hong L,eong Building
Singapore 048581

NA Step down
Subsidiary

100 2(87)

8 GY InYestmetrt Finlnce
Compaay Limited
66 Floor, Tower I
NexTeracom Building, Ebene
Mauritius

NA Step down
Subsidiary

100 2(87)

Ce wise Share
Cat€gory of

Shrreholders
No, of Shar€s held rt th€ bcgitrDing of

the yerr
(as on 1r April 2015)

No. of Shares held at the End of the year
(rs on 3ld March, 2016) Change

during
the year

Total o/o of
Total
shares

Demat Physical Total %6 of
Total
shares

Demat Physical

A- Promoters
(1) Indian

6s.94 15,963,100 15,963,100 59.54G)IndividuaY
HUF

15,963,100 15,963,100

(h) Central
GovL

(i) State

Govt.(s)
1.03 2,50,000 2,50,000 0.93O Bodies

Corp.
2,50,000 2,50,000
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(k) Banh/TI
0) Anv

Other
Sub-Total
(A) (1): -

16,213,rO0 16,213,100 66.97 16,213,100 16,213,100 60.47

(2) Foreign
(a) NRIs-

Iodividuals
O) Oth€r -

Individuals
(c) Bodies

Corp.
(d) BaDks/FI
(e) A:ry

Othcr
Sub-Totd
(B) (2):-
Totd
rhercholding
of Promoter
(A)=
(AXr)+(AX2)

t6213,100 16r13,100 66.97 r6,213,100 r62r,100 60.17

B. Prblic Shareholdirg
Br)
Institutions
(a) Munul

Futrd

O)Barke/Fl
(c) Ceotra.l

GovL
(d) Stal€

Govt.(s)
(€) Vmture

capital
Fund

(f) hsurance
Companies

(c) Fu
@) Forcign

Vetrture
Capital
Fund

(i) Othen
(spect!)
Forcign
Portfolio
lovestor

26,00,000 26,00,000 9.70 100

Sub-Totrl
(B)(1): -

26,00,000 26,00,000 9.70 100

82) Non-
Inrtitutions
(a) Bodies

corp.
r0,l4,0Et 4,62,000 r4,76,081 6.10 r0,13,877 462000 14,7 5,877 5.50

(i) Indian
(ii) Oveneas
(b)hdividuds
(i)Individual

shareholder
s holding
nominal

99,596 6,10,500 7 ,10,196 2.93 99,772 6,10,600 7,10,372 2.65
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sh8rc
capihl up
to Rs.l lacs

(ii) Individnl
sbrrEhold€r
s holding
noEird
shsre
ceital in
cxcess of
Rs.llacs

1,02,154 17,o8,o7
0

18,10,224 7.4t 1,02,154 17,08,070 18,10,224 6.75 ML

(c) Others
(spcci&)

NIL

(c -D Clearing
Mcmb€r

184 0 184 0.00 61 5l 0.00

(c -ii) NRV
OCBs

215 0 2t5 0.00 366 366 0.00

(c -iii) Foreign
Nationals

0 4000000 4000000 t6.52 40,00,000 40,00,000 14.92

(c-iv) Forcign
Bodies

Sub-Totll
(B)(2):-

tzt6210 6780670 7996900 33.03 t2,t6,230 67,80,670 79,96,m0 29.t3 NIL

Totrl Publlc
ihrreholdhg
of (B) =
(Bxrlh@x2)

174293t0 67t0670 242t0W0 33.03 3E,16,230 67 )tO,570 10596900 39.53 NIL

C. Sheres
hetd by
Curtodirn for
GDR! &
ADR!
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

t7429330 67t0670 24210000 100 20029330 67,t0,670 26tr0000 100 NIL

Itl SfurchoWbg of Promoters:

SI
NO.

Shereholder's
Neme

Shareholding at the beginnilg of the
yerr

Shrreholdirg rt the end of the yerr

No. of
Shares

o/o of
totd

Sharcs of
the

company

% of Shares
Pledged /

encumbcred
to total
shares

No. of
Shares

o/o of
!otal

Shares of
tie

company

% of Sharcs
Pledged /

encumbered
to total
shares

% ohange in
shareholding

during the ycar

I Nith kumar
Decndayal
Didwania

92,s0,000 3E.21 NIL 92,50,000 34.54 NIL NIL

1 NitiNitin
kumar
Didwania

67,13,100 27 .73 NIL 67,13,100 25.M NIL NIL

3 Groupe
Veritas
Limited

2,50,000 1.03 Nil 2,50,000 0.93 ML NIL

Totsl 1,62,13,100 6.97 NIL r,62,r3,100 @.47 NIL ML
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ill) Ctungc in Prontot ts' Shareholdhg (plcLse specih, if thcrc b no chaage)

lv) ShuchoUiag Pct ra of bp t d sharchodas (other than Dbccto4 Proaotcn oad Eoldcn of GDRs aad ADRs): No
Change duing lhe year under review.

SI
NO. Particulrrs

Shrreholding rt the
begirnirg of the yeir (As

on lr Aprll, 2015)

Cumulativc Shareholding during tte year (As
on 31d Mffch, 20lO

No. of
sharcs

Yo of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares Yo of tot^l shares of the
@mpany

At thc beginning of year

I Nitin kumar Deendayal
Didwania

92,50,000 1t.21 92,50,000 t4.y

2 Niti Nitin kumar Didwania 67,l3,100 27 .73 67,l3,100 25.04
3 Groupc vcritas Limited 250000 1.03 2,50,000 0.93

Date wise Lncreas€ / D€cre3sc
ia PromotcrB Sharcholding
during the year specifring the
reasons for increase
/ decrease (e.g. alloment /
transfsr / bonu.d swest equity
etc):

No Chaage During the Year

At thc End of ycar
1 Nitin Kumar Dcendayal

Didwania
92,50,000 14.s4 92,50,000 34.54

2 Niti Nitin Kumar Didwania 67,13,100 25.M 67,13,100 25.U
3 Groupe Veritas Limited 2,50,000 0.93 2,50,000 0.93

SI
NO.

Shrreholdlng rt the bcgiuing of
the yc.r (A3 on 1r AprU 20lt

Cumuhtive Shueholdhg during the ycir
(As on 1r April, 2016)

For Eech of the Top
l0

Shrrcholde13

No. of shares o/" of lot^l
shares of the

coEPany

No. of shares % of total sharcs of the
company

I Onix A$sets Limitcd 30,00,000 12.39 30,00,000 11.19
2 I-atitudc Consultants

Limited
26,00,000 9.70

3 Kamalasini Tradelink
Private Limit€d

14,71,300 6.O7 14,71,3@ 5.48

4 Aventia Global Limited 10,00,000 4.13 10,00,000 3;13

5 Sanjay Agarwal 5,44,000 2.25 5,,14,000 2.03
6 AEan Bhatis 4,00,000 1.65 4,00,000 t.49
7 Neeti Bhatia 3,50,000 1.45 3,50,m0 l.3l
E Manish Harshad SatrghYi 2,64,570 1.09 2,9,570 0.99
9 Bha&€sh B D€sai 1,49,500 0.62 1,49,500 0.s5
l0 Shirish Dshyalal

Upadhyay
1,02,154 o.42 t,02,154 0.38

2+
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v) Shtrchoklhg ol Ditcctor; aad Ecy Maaqerial Pcrsonnel:

Note: Ms. AIpa Parekh, Mr. Sbafr Sayeed Partar, Mr. Rajaram Sha-nbag and Mr. Mukesh TaDk did not hold any sbares of the
Company during the finnncial year 2015- 16.
Mr. Mukesh Ta* resigaed on 1 16 March, 2016.

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstsnditrg/accrued but not due for payment

SI
NO.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the yerr

Cumuletive Shrreholdirg durirg the yelr

For Erch of the Directorr
end KMP

No. of
shares

Yo of rot,tr
shares of the

compatry

No. of sharcs o/o of tntzl shares of the
bo-p.oy

I Mr. Nitin tunt Dindayd
Dldwtdr (Dlr€ctor)

At the beginning of year 92,50,000 3t.21 92,50,000 34.54
Date lr,ise lncrcas€ /
Dccrease ia Shareholding
during the ycsr speciryiry
the ressotrs for ircrease
/ decrcase
(c.9. allotment / transfer /
bonuy sweat
cquity etc.)

No Chaage During the Year

At the End of year 92,50,000 38.21 92,50,000 34.54
2 Mr. Seurebh Dlpek

Srryhvi
(Wholc Time Irirector)
At the begindng of year 20,000 0.08 20,000 0.07
Datc wise lncre:s€ /
Dccrca5e in S harcholding
dwiog the year speciSing
the reasons for increase
/ decrease
(c.g. allotment / transfer /
bonuJ sweat
€quity etc):

No Change Duriag thc Year

At the End of year 20,000 0.08 20,000 0.07

Secured Loans
ercluding deposits

Unsec[red
Loans

Deposits Total
Ind€btedtress

Indebtedness at the $qginning of thc frnancial ycar (As on 01.04.2015)
(i) Principat
A-Eount

tE7,651t,9s2 It7,6fi,952

(ii) tntercst due but
not paid
(iii) Interest
accrued but not due
Totrl(i+li+iii) 187.656,9s2 187.655,9s2

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
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Additioos 594p5,r31
59435,13r

Reduction

Net Change 594,35,131 594J5,131

hdebtedncls rt th€ End of the llntncld ycer (As on 31.03.2016)
(i) Principal
Amount

24,70,vr,0t3
24,70,92,0t3

(ii) Int€rcst due but
not paid
(iii) Intercst
acorucd but not due rA9,-EO r.49Jt0
Tot.l(td+ill) 247 241363 247 241363

VERTTAS (rNDrA) LTMTTED

YI. R.EMI'NER,ATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSOIINEL

l. Remuncration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager

*Remuneration paid to the Whole-Time Director is \rirhin the ceiling provided under Scction
197 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

B. Remuaeration to other diectors:

SI
NO.

Prrdculin of
Remuneration

Nrme of Dir€ctors Totrl Amourt

Mrr. Alpr
Mayanh
Prrekh

Mr. S. S.
Parkar (Retd.)

Mr. RrtrB
Moondre

I Indepe,rdcat Directors
. Fec for au€nding

board/committ€e
mcctings

26,W0 26,000 52,000

Commission
Otbers, pleas€
speci&

Total (l) 26,000 26,W0 52,000
2 Other Non-Executive Directors

. Fee for att€trding
board/committ€e
mectings

SI
NO.

Perticulrrs of Rcmunentiou Name of t[e Whole'Time Dlrector - Mr.
Saurabh Dipek Srnghvi

I Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisioos contaiaed in section I 7( I ) of tbe Income-ux
Act,t96l

28,50,000

(b) Value of pcrquisites u/s I 7(2) Income-tax Act, I 96 I
(c) Profits in lierr of salary under section l7(3) Income- tax Act, 196l

2 Stock Optiotr
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

- As a o/o of proft
5 Others, plese spcci&

Total (A) 28,50,0@
Ceiling as pcr thc Act+

I

%
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Comnission
o Others, please

spccifv
Total (2)

Total (BF (l+2) 26,000 26,000 52,000
Total Maoagerial
R€mutraatioE
Ovcrall Ceiling as irr
thc Act

Rs. 1,00,000 per mceting

SL
No.

Prrticulan of Rcmunerrdon Key Murgerld Peruomel

Mr. Rrjerem Setyendre
Shenbhrg
(Chlef tr'lnencid Ofttcer)

Mr. Muk6h Tlnk **
(Comprny Secretry)

I Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contain€d in scction
l7(l) ofthc Income-t8r Actl96l

74,@,000 17 25,9tt

@) Value ofperquisit€s u/s l7(2) Income-t x
Act, 1961
(c) Profib in lieu of salary under scction l7(3)
Income- tax Act, 196l

2 Stock Option
3 SwEat Equity
4 Commission

- As % ofprofit
5 Othcrs, please speci&

Totd 7,1.6,1.000 t72s9tt

C. Rcnuaeration to M Personnel othsr thsn MD/ WTD

" Mr. Mutesh Tstrk rcsigned on I 16 March, 2016

Vtr. PENALTITS/ PIJMSEMENT/ COMPOTJTIDING OF OtrTENCES:

Type Secdon of the
Complrl€r Act

Brlef
Dacrlpdor

Detrlk of
Pendty/

Pu.drhme[t
Compounding
feer imDos€d

Authority
IRD/NCLT/

coIJRT|

Appcal Mrde, lf Ary Give
detdlr)

A. COMPA}IY
Pendty

N.A.Punishrnent
Coryounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penatty

N.APunishment
Coryouadinc
C. OTEER OTTICENS IN DEFAI'LT
PEralty

N.A.Punisbment
Coryounding

There were no peoalties punishment/compounding of offences for violation of thc provisioos of the Coqani€s Act, 2013 against

the Coryany or its D.rectors or other officcrs in default dring the year-

For and on Behelf of the Borrd of Dircctors

S.U-
Nitin Kumar Didwada
CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR
DIN:00210289

PLACE: Mumbai
DATE: 126 Augusl 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1. Industry Structure and Development
The Company is engaged in the business of imports, export, trading and distribution of
che,micals, metals, rubber and other commodities. The Company is also engaged in the
generation of wind energy. The global economic environment in recent times has been
challengrng and marked by increasing volatility and uncertainty. Concems range from the
slowing Chinese ooonomy, falling oil and commodity prices, to geo-political risks.

Chemical Industrv

Chemicals have become essential part of modem day life as it is widely used in a variety of
products. lndian Che,rrical Industry is the 66 largest in the world and the 3d largest in Asia. In
2015, India chemicals industry had a market size of about USDI,+4 billion. Indian chemical
industry could grow at I I per cent p.a. to reach size ofaround USD224 billion by 2017. Product
from the Chernical Industry have improved the quality of life world over and contributed
sipificantly to everyone's day-to-day requirements. Industries are cautiously optimistic about
future growth prospects.

India is currently the world's third largest consumer of polymers and third largest producer of
agrocherricals. Chemical Industry in India has graduated from manufacturing principal
cherricals in a higtrly regulated market to being a mature industry in a liberalized economy. In
India the chemical industry is among the fastest growing Industry. The bulk of chemicals
produced in India comprise either upstream products or intermediates, which go into a variety
of manufacturing applications including fertilizers, phamraceuticals, textiles and plastics,
agrochemicals, paints and dyes.

With Asia's growing contibution to the global chemical industry, lndia has ernerged as one of
the focus destinations for chemical companies worldwide. India specialty chernical market is
expected to reach USD70 billion by 2020.

Your Company also has a well-developed and robust logistic and marketing network which
affords the buyers in the multiple choices of chemical products at reasonably competitive rates.

Wind Enerw

The growing consumption and steady increase in price of non-renewable sources has forced
the industries to look for alternative fuels that are available cheaply and can meet their growing
demand for wind energy. New and renewable energy tecbnologies are considered to be one of
the viable options to meet the challenge of achieving sustainable development while conserving
natural resources that have been depleted due to the rapid growth in populatioq urbanization
and fossil fuel constunption.

The largest component of renewable generation capacity is wind power. Wind energy not only
offers both a power source that completely avoids the ernission of carbon dioxide, the main
Green House Gas (GHG), but also produces none of the other pollutants associated with eithe'r
fossil fuel or nuclear generation.
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The Govemment's fiscal incentives for wind power generation will provide sufficient boost for
wind power project.

2. Opportunities & Threats
Opportunities:
lndia's chemical industry is expected to grow at about l5 per cent per annum to reach around
US$ 290 billion by 2017 .India's growing per capita consumption and demand for agriculture-
related che,micals offers huge scope of growth for the sector in fuhlre. Give,n the zubstantial
growth of chemical industry and in particular the Petro- cheinical industry the Managemerrt
feels the Company is in good stead to further dwelop and enter into various global markets.

Threets:
The Global inflation effect on costs especially the cost attributed to the logistic and zupply
chaitr mrnrgement cheaper zubstitutes by mass p,roducing countries like China on account of
low labour costs and forex fluctuations are likely threats having the effect of eroding the
margins to some extent.

3. Ouflook
The manage,ment is quite positive on its outlook in terms of rev€,oue in the coming period as

economies all over the world are slowly recovering and it is expected that the gobal markets
will respond well to the Various products taded by the Compaoy. With beginning of the re-
emergenc€ of healthy economic environmen! barring unforeseen circumstances, yow
Company is optimistic and confident to receive large demands and give,n the current financial
performance of the Company the Board is confident in its outlook for future that the Company
shall grow zubstantially over and above its de,monstrated growth in terms of tumover and
profits.

The Company's business of power generation through wind mills, being a non- conventional
source of energy. The manage,ment is confdent of steady growth over the coming period.

4. Risk end Concerns
o The margins could come rmder pressure due to increase in logistic costs and other expenses.
o Competition from mass exporting countries like China and Taiwan where manufacturing

and labour costs are quite low.
o Adverse fluctuation in forex rates.

The Company evaluates and monitors all risks associated with various areas ofoperations such
as sales, marketing, inventory managernetrt, debtor's matragem€nt, insurance, supply chain
management, legal and other issues having a material impact on the financial health of the
Company on a regular basis with a view to mitigate the adverse impact of the risk factors.

5. Internal Control Systems
The Compaoy has an adequate intemal control syste,m in place which is commensurate with its
size and nature of its business. The inteinal control systern ensures that all the assets of the
Company are safeguarded from loss, damage or unauthorized disposition. Checks and controls
are in place to ensure that transactions are adequately authorised and recorded and reported
correctly to the concerned personnel.
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6. Financiel Performance with respect to Operetional Perforrnance:
During the year consolidated revenue Rs. 14,557,855,1881- as Compared to previous year of
Rs. 15,027,351,443i- and consolidated Net Profit after Tax Rs. 602,318,615/- as compared to
previous year of Rs. 480,332,407 I -.

7. Human Resource Management
The Company provides suitable environment for development of leadership skills which
enables it to recruit and retain quality professionals in atl fields. Thc employer- ernployee
relationship is cordial and mutually supporting at all levels.

8. Cautionary Statement
Certain statements in the Managernent Discussion and Analysis Report describing the
Company's objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward-
looking state,ments within the meaning of ap,plicable laws and regulations. Actual results could
differ from those expressed or implied.

For and on Behalf of the Board

PLACE: Mumbai
DATE: 1210812016

sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania

Chairman & Director
DIN: 00210289
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REPORT ON CORFORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPAilY PHITOSOPHY OTI CORPORAIE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has been following fair, transparent and ethical govemanoe practices. The governance
processes and practices embedded into the culture of the Organization ensure that the interest of all the
stakeholdeE are taken into account in a balanced and transparent manner, Your Company believes that
good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of best management practkes and compliance
with the laws coupled with the highest standards of intetrity, transparency, accountability and business
ethics.

Your Company also believes that sound Corporate Governance is critical to enhance and retain investor
trust. Your Company continues to strengthen its governance principles to generate long term value for its
stakeholders on sustainable basis thus ensuring ethical and responsible leadefship both at the Board and
at the Management levels.

A Report on compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("Listing Regulations') is given below:

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At Veritas, we believe that an active, well-informed and independent board is necessary for ensuring
the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors being at its core of Crrporate
Governance practice, plays the most pivotal role in overseeing how the management works and
protects the long-term interests of all the stakeholders. veritas Board consist of an optimal
combination of Executive and lndependent Directors who are highly renowned professionals drawn
from diverse fields, possess the requisite qualifications and experience in general corporate
management, finance, bankinB, insurance, economics and other allied fields which enable them to
contribute effectively to your Company and enhance the quality of Board's decision makinB process.

2.1 Comoosition of the Eoard

The size and composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and Section 149 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"). As on date of this Report, the Board

consists of fle Directors comprising one Non-Executive Chairman, three lndependent Directors and

one Executive Directors. None of the Director is a Directo. in more than 10 (ten) public companies as

specified in Section 165 of the Act or acts as an lndependent Director in more than 7 listed companies
or 3listed companies in case he/she serves as a Whole-Time Director in any listed company as

specified in Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulation as on March 31, 2016. Further, none of the
Directors of the Company is a Member of more than 10 (ten) Committees and Chairman of more than
5 (five) Committees (Committees bein& Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee)
across allthe companies in which he/she is Director. None ofthe DirectoG ofyour Company aie inter-
se related to each other and the Crmpany has not issued any non-convertible instruments.

The details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)/Committee
Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) held by them are provided herein below:
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ame of
Directors

Catetory Number of
Board

Meetings during
the year 2015-16

whether
attended
last AGM
held on

Septemb
er 29,
20t5

Number
ol

Directors
hips in
othel

compani
es

Number of
Committee posltlons

held in other
companies

Held Attended Member
ship+

Chairman
ship+

Mr. Nitin
Kumar
Didwania

Non-
Executive
(Promoter
Group)

6 6 Present 5.

Ms. Alpa
Parekh

lndepend
ent
Director

5
6

Absent NIL

Mr. Saurabh
Sanghvi

Whole-
Time
Director

5

5
Present 5.

Justice S. S.

Parkar
(Retd)

lndepend
ent
Director

6
5

Absent 1r

@ Mr. Ratan Moondra ceased to be the director ofthe Company with effect from May 01, 2015.

+ Committees considered are Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, includint that
of your Company. Committee Membership(s) and Chairmanship(s) are counted separately.

* Excludes private limited companies, foreign companies registered under Section 8 of the Act and
Government Bodies.

2.2 BOARD PROCEDURE:

During the year under review, Board met 5 (Six) times on April 02, 2015, May 30, 2015, July 27,2OL5,
August 13, 2015, November 10, 2015 and February 12, 2015. The Board meets at least once in every quarter
to review the Company's operations and the maximum time tap between any two meetings is not more
than 120 days.

A detailed Agenda, setting outthe business to be transacted at the Meeting(s), supported by detailed notes
is sent to each Director at least seven days before the date ofthe Board Meeting(s) and of the Committee
Meeting(s). Adequate information is circulated as a part of the Board Papers and is also available at the
Board Meeting to enable the Board to take decisions. As required under Regulation u(3) of Listing
Regulations, the Board periodkally reviews compliances of various laws applicable to the Company. The
Directors are also provided the fucility of video conferencing or other Audio Visual mode to enable them
to participate effecttuety in the Meeting(s) as and when required except in respect ofsuch Meetings/ ltems
which are not p€rmitted to be transacted throuBh video conferencing,

Oetailed presentations are made at the Board / Committee meetings coverinB operations of the Company,
business performance, finance, sales, marketin& global business enviionment and related issues. All
necessary information including but not limited to those mentioned in Part A of Schedule ll to the Listin8
Regulations, are placed before the Board of Directors. The Members of the Board are at liberty to bring up
any matter for discussions at the Board Meetin8s and the functioning is democratic. The Company has a
well-€stablished process in place for reporting compliance status of various laws applicable to the
Company.
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2.3 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS. ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORSAT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
ANO AT I}IE ATIilUAt GE]TERAT MEEnilG

During the year 1n April, 2015 to 31st March, 2015, Six Board Meetings were held on the following
dates - ozd April, 2015, 30d' May, 2015, 27r luly,2015, 13s August, 2015, 10d' November, 2015 and
12th February 2015. The Board met at least once in every Calendar Quarter and the gap between two
Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. These MeetinSs were well attended. The 30b
AGM of your Company was held on 296 Septemb€r, 2015.

The attendance of the Directors at these Meetings was as under:

Name of Director Board Meetings Attendance at last
AGM held on

September 29, 2015
Held durlng
the tenure

Attended

Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania 6 5 Present

Ms. Alpa Parekh 5 6 Absent
Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 5 6 Present

Justice S. S. Parkar (Retd) 6 5 Absent

@Mr. Ratan Moondra ceased to be the director of the Company with effect from May 01, 2015.

MEMNG OF INDEPEilDENT DIRECTOR

During the year under review, a meeting of lndep€ndent Directors was held on August 13,2015
without the presence of the Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Director, other Non-
lndependent Director(s) or any other Management Personnel, inter alia, to discuss on the following
matters

to review of performance of Non-lndependent Directors and the Board as a whole;

review the performance of the Chairman of the Company (taking into account the views of
the Executive and Non-Executive Directors!;

assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
Mana8ement and the Board that is necessary for the Eoard to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.

ln addition to these formal meetings, interactions outside the Board meetings also take place between

the Chairman and lndependent Directors.

DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOI EI{T / RE.APPOIl{TMENT

Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Whole-Time Director is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible for re-

appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has offered himself for re-appointment.

The brief resume and other information required to be disclosed under this section is provided in the
Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

a

a
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CODES OF CONDUCT

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct (The Code") for all the Board Members Senior
Management Personnel ofthe Company in accordance with the requirement under ReBulation 17 of
the Listing Regulations. The Code has been posted on the Company's website
htto://www.veritasindia.net. All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct for the financial year 2015-15. A declaration to
this effect signed by the Chairman to this effect forms part of this Report.

The Board has also adopted a separate Code of Conduct for lndependent Directors which is a guide to
professional conduct for lndependent Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of
Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD EVATUATION

ln terms of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and
Part D of Schedule ll of the Listin8 Regulations and on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors has put in place a process to formally evaluate the
effectiveness of the Board, its Committees along with performance evaluation of each Director to be
carried out on an annual basis. Accordingly, the annual performance evaluation of the Board, its
Committees and each Director was carried out for the financial year 2015-15.

Feedback was sought by way of a structured questionnaire prepared to evaluate the performance of
the Board as a whole and individual performance of each Director covering various aspects of the
Board's functioninS such as Board effectiveness, understanding of the role and responsibilities,
understanding ofthe business and competitive environment, effectiveness ofthe contributions made
during the Board meetings, adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board
culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance and the evaluation
was carried out based on responses received from the Directors.

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee plays a vital role in undertaking the
evaluation of performance for the Board and the Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee discussed on the evaluation mechanism, outcome and the feedback received from the
Directors. The lndependent Directors at their meetin8 also discussed the performance of the Non-
Executive/Promoter Directors including the Chairman of the Board.

The overall outcome of this exercise to evaluate effectiveness of the Board and its Committees for the
financial year 2015-15 was discussed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the result
was positive and members expressed their satisfaction.

FAMIU!\RIZATIO!{ PEOGRAIT,IiIIE FOR INDEPE'{DEIIT DIRECTORS

Your Company has in place a structured induction and Familiarization Programme for all its Directors
including the lndependent Directors. Your Company throuth such familiarizes not only the
lndependent Directors but also any new appointee on the Eoard with a brief background of your
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature of the industry in which it operates, business
model operations, presentations on lnternalControls over Financial Reporting, framework for Related
Party Transactions, on8oing events, etc. They all are updated on business related issues and new
initiatives. They are also informed of the important policies of your Company including the Code of
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and the Code of Conduct for Prevention of
lnsider Trading.

3+



Pursuant to ReSulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, brief details as required are available on the
Company's website and can be accessed at the web link: http://www.veritasindia.net/investors-
ioformation/download.apsx.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS:

A. Remuneratlon Polky

The remuneration policy ofthe Company is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review
of achievements on a periodic basis. The Compariy endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate
the high-caliber executives and to incentivize them to develop and implement the Group's Strategy,
thereby enhancing the business value and maintain a high performance workforce. The policy ensures
that the level and composition of remuneration of the Directors is optimum.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors / lndependent Director:

The details of sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2015-16 is as under:

llame of Director Sittlnt Fees for the Board /
Committee Meeting

Ms. Alpa Parekh 25,m0
Mr. Ratan Moondra @

Justice S. S. Parkar (Retd) 26,0@

@ Mr. Ratan Moondra ceased to be Non-Executive director of the Company with effect from May 01,
2015 and could not attend any meeting during the year.

Remuneratlon to Whole-Time / Manating Director:
Remuneration of the Executive Director consist of the fixed component and a variable performance

incentive. The Nomination and Remuneratlon Committee makes annualappraisal of the performance

of the Executive Directors based on a detailed performance evaluation, and recommends the
compensation payable to them, within the parameters approved by the shareholders, to the Board
for their approval.

Shareholding of l{on-Erecutive Director

Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-Executive Promoter Director is holding 92,50,000 equity shares of Rs.

1/- each in the Company. None of the Other Non-Executive Directors hold any shares in the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the gove.nance structure ofthe Company and have been

constituted to deal with specific areas / activities which concern the Company and need a closer
review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval ofthe Board to carry out clearly
defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good
governance practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees and

is responsible for their action. The Chairman of the respective Committee informs the Board about
the summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of the meetin8s of all
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Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board Committees can request special
invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate.

The Board has currently established the followinS statutory and non-statutory committees

AUD]T COMMITTEE

The composition of Audit Committee is in alignment with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Re8ulation 18 of Listing Regulations. All the members of the Audit
Committee have accounting and financial management expertise. All the members of the Committee
are Non- Executive Directors except Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi and two-thirds of them are lndependent
Directors. Mr. Ratan Moondra ceased to be the memb€r of the Committee and subsequently Ms. Alpa
Parekh was inducted as the Chairperson of the Committee in place of Mr. Ratan Moondra. The

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Committee met four (4) times during the year under review. The Committee meetings were held
on May 30, 2015, August 13,2OL5, November 10, 2015 and February 12, 2016. The gap between two
Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The attendance at the meetings was as under:

Name of Members Number of Meetings attended
Justice S. S. Parkar 4

Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 3

Ms. Alpa Parekh 4

The terms of reference of Audit Committee in line with the regulatory requirements mandated under
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part C of Schedule ll of the Listing Regulations. The
Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and the lnternal Auditors and the Board of Directors
of the Company. lt is authorized to, inter alia, review and monitor the Audito/s independence and
performance, effectiveness of audit process, oversight of the Company's financial reporting process

and the disclosure of its financial information, review with the management, the quarterly and annual
financial statements and auditor's report b€fore submission to the Board for approval, select and
establish accounting policies, review Reports ofthe Statutory and the lnternalAuditors and meet with
them to discuss their findings, suggestions and other related matters, approve (wherever necessary)
transactions of the Company with related parties including subsequent modifications thereof, grant
omnibus approvals for related party transactions subject to fulfilment of certain conditions, scrutinize
inter-corporate loans and investments, valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, review
the risk assessment and minimization procedures, evaluate internal financial controls and risk
mana8ement systems, monitor end use of the funds raised throuBh public offers and related matters,
etc-

The Audit Committee has been granted powers as prescribed under Regulation 18(2Xc) ofthe Listing
Retulations and reviews all the information as prescribed in Part C of Schedule ll of the Listin8
Regulations. The Committee also reviews on quarterly basis the Report on compliance under Code of
Conduct for Prevention of lnsider Trading adopted by the Company pursuant to Securities and
Exchange Board of lndia (Prohibition of lnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015. Further, Compliance
Reports under Whistleblower Policy are also placed before the Committee.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMTTTEE:

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted as per the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations,
2015.

Meeting and attendance:
There was no meeting condu€ted during the year under review.

As per section 178(7) of the Act and Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in his
absence, any other Member of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend the
General Meetings of the Company. - Ms. Alpa Parekh, Chairperson of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements mandated in
the Act and Part D ofSchedule ll ofthe Listing Regulations. The brief terms of references of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee are as under:

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive att.ibutes and
independence of a Director and recommended to the Board a Policy relatinB to the
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of lndependent Directors and the Board.

Oevising a policy on Board diversity

ldentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in
Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board
their appointment and removal and carryinB out evaluation of every Directo/s performance.

Carry out the evaluation of every directo/s performance and formulate criteria for evaluation
of lndependent Directors, Board/Committees of Board and review the term of appointment
of lndependent Directors on the basis ofthe report of performance evaluation of lndependent
Directors;

To recommend / review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-time
Director(s)/ Executive Director(s) based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

REMUNERATIOl{ TO DIRECTORS:

Remuneration to Non-Executiye Directorc / lndependent Director:

The Non-Executive - lndependent Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company except
for sitting fees. However, the Company has not paid any commission to lndependent Directors. During
the year, there were no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the Company with any of its
Non-Executive Directors. The Company has not granted any stock options to its Non-Executive
Directors.
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The details of sitting fees paid to Non-Executive lndependent Directors during the financialyear 2015-

16 is as under:
I{ame of Director Sitting Fees for the Board /

Committee Meeting
Ms. Alpa Parekh 26,000

Mr. Ratan Moondra @

Justice S. S. Parkar (Retd) 26,00o

Remuneration to Executive Directors:

Remuneration of the Executive Director consist of the fixed component and a variable performance

incentive. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee makes annual appraisal of the performance

of the Executive oirectors based on a detailed performance evaluation, and recommends the
compensation payable to them, within the parameters approved by the shareholders, to the Board
for their approval.

During the financialyear 2015-16, remuneration paid to the Executive Directors was as under:
(Amount in Rs.)

Subject to the approval of the shareholder at the ensuint AGM the tenure of office of the Whole-Time
Director is for a term of three years from November L, 2Ol4 to October 31, 2017 and can be
terminated by either the Company or the Whole-Time Director by BivinB three months' notice in
advance or salary in lieu thereof. No Severance fees is payable to him. The Company has no Employee
Stock Options Scheme in force at present.

Details of Shareholding of l{on-Executiye Director as on March 31, 2015

Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-Executive Promoter Oirector is holdinB 92,50,000 equity shares of Rs.

1/- each in the Company. None of the other Non-Executive Directors hold shares in the Company.

SHAREHO]DERS REIATIONSHIP COMM]TTEE

The composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee is in compliance with Regulation 20 of
the Listing Regulation. The Committee functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania,
Non-Executive Non-lndependent Director. Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi and Ms. Alpa Parekh are the other
members of the Committee.

Meetlm and attendance:
There was no meetin8 conducted during the year under review.

As pea Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in his absence, any other Member of the
Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend the General MeetinBs of the Company. The
Chairman of the Committee, Mr. l{itin Kumar Didwania was present at the 306 Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on September 29, 2015.

Salary Component Mr. Saurabh Sangavi

Basic Salary 28,5o,mo
Perquisites, allowances and Other benefits
Commission
Total 28,50,000
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The role and terms of reference of the Committee covers the areas as contemplated under Regulation 20
read with Part D of Schedule ll of the Listing Regulations besides the other terms as referred by the Board
of Directors. The Committee meets, as and when required, to inter alia, deal with matters relating to
transfer^ransmission of shares, request for issue of duplicate share certificates and monitor redressal of
the grievances of the security holders of the Company relating to transfers, non-receipt of Annual Report,
non-receipt of dividends declared, etc. The Committee is also authorised to approve request fo.
transmission of shares and issue of duplicate share certificates.

During the year under review, no complaints have been received from the shareholders.

CORPORATE SOCIAI. RESPOSIBITITY COMMITIEE:

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to the provisions of
Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014
Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi and Ms. Alpa Parekh as the members of the Committee.
The Committee meetings were held on August 13,2015 and February 12,2016. All the members of the
Committee were present at the meeting.

The role of this Committee also includes recommendation ofthe amount of expenditure to be incurred on
the CSR activities as enumerated in Schedule Vll of the Act and also referred to in the cSR Policy of the
Company, as also to monltor the implementation of framework CSR Policy, etc.

SUBSIDARY COMPANIES

Regulation 15 of the Listing Retulations defines a 'material subsidiarf to mean a subsidiary, whose income
or net worth excceds twenty p€rcent of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed
entity and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. Under this definition, the
Company does not have any unlisted material subsldiary incorporated in lndia and hence is not required
to nominate an lndependent Director of the company on the Board of any Subsidiary. The Company has

formulated a policy for determining its 'Material' Subsidiaries and the same is available on the website of
the Company and can be accessed through web.link: htto://www.veritasindia.net/shareholders-
information/downloads.asor(.

The Company monitoE the performance of its subsidiary compan{s inter-olro, by the following means:

i. The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements of the subsidiary companies, along with the
investments by the them, on a quarterly basis.

ii. The Board of Directors reviews the Board Meetin8s minutes and statement of all significant
transactions and arrangements, if any, ofthe subsidiaries company on a quarterly basis.

6. DlSCLOSURES

A. Policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries
Your Company has formulated a Policy for Determining 'Material' Subsidiaries as defined in Regulation

15 of the Listing Regulations. This Policy has also been posted on the website of the Company and can

be acceised through web link: htto://www.veritasinida.net/shareholders-
information/downloads.aspx.

B. Policy on Materiality of and Dealint with Related Party Transactions
Your Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality of and DealinB with Related Party Transactions

in accordance with relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulation which specifo

the manner ofenterint into related party transactions. This Policy has also been posted on the website
dia.net/shareholders-of the company and can be accessed through web link: htto://www.veritasin
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information/downloads .asDx- All the related party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee
prior to entering into the transaction.

During the financial year 2015-15, there were no such Related Party Transactions, either as per Companies

Act, 2013 or listing Regulations which were required to be approved by the Board of Directors or the
shareholders of the Company. Further, there were no material significant Related Party Transactions and
pecuniary transactions that may have potential conflict of interest. The details of Related Party

Transactions are disclosed in financial section of this Annual RePort.

c. whinhblowe, Pollcy
Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy to enable stakeholders
(including Directors and employees) to report unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The Policy provides adequate safe8uards against

victimization of Director(s)/ employee(s) and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in

exceptional cases. Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have been denied access

to the Chairman and that no complaints were received during the year.

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the web
link htto://www.veritasindia.net/ shareholders-information/downloads.aspx and circulated to all the
Directors/employees.

D. Reconclliatlon of Share Capital Audit
Pursuant to Regulation 55A of the Listing Regulations with the stock exchanges, the Company has

engaged a qualified practicing Company Secretary to carry out a share capital audit to reconcile the
total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the
Central Oepository Services (lndia) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity share capital.
The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number
of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

The Company files copy of this certificate with the Stock Exchange as required.

E. Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Standards in lndia (lndian GAAP) and comply with the Accountint Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

F. Codc for Preventlon or lnsider Tradint Practices
The Company has instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of lnsider Trading and
the 'Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Oisclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive lnformation'
in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Prohibition of lnsider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 ("the Regulations") which came into force from 15th May,2015. All Directors,
Designated Employees who could have access to the Unpublished Price Sensitive lnformation of the
Company are governed by the Code.

Veritas Code of Conduct has been formulated to re8ulate monitor and ensure that the reporting of
trading by the Employees and Connected persons are in accordance with the procedures as laid down
in the guidelines and caution them of the consequence of violations.

G. Disclosures wlth respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account
The Company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.
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H. Detalls ot Non-Compliances:
Your Company has generally complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. There has
been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years and no penalties or structures have been imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority.

l. C,ompliance with Mandatory requlrements:

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations relating
to Corporate Governance.

J. Compliance with Non-mandatory requirements

i. The Board:
The Non - Executive Chairman of your Company has been provided a Chairman's Office at the
Registered Office of your Company,

ii. Audit Qualification:
During the year under review, there is no audit qualification in you. Compan/s standalone and
consolidated financial statements. Your Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime
of unqualifi ed fi nancial statements.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
The Company recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders and of giving
a balanced reporting of results and progress and responds to questions and issues raised in a timely
and consistent manner. Shareholders seeking information may contact the Company directv
throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask questions in person at the Annual General
MeetinB. Some of the modes of communication are mentioned below:

Quarterly: The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are normally
published in one leading national (English) business newspaper and in one vernacular (Marathi)
newspaper viz. Mumbai edition of "The Free Press Joumal" and 'l{avshakti' newspaper.

Annual Report: Physical copy of the Annual Report is sent to all shareholders who have not registered
their email ids for the purpose receiving the documents / communication from the Company in
electronic mode. Full version of the Annual Report is sent via email to all shareholders who have
provided their email ids and is also available at the Company's website at www.veritasindia.net.

Webslte: ln compliance with ReSulation 46 of the listing Regulations, the compan]/s website contains a

separate section under'lnvestors lnformation'for use of shareholders. The quarterly, half-yearly and
annual financial results are promptly and prominently displayed on the website. Annual Reports,
quarterly Corporate Governance Report, Shareholding Pattern and other Corporate Communications
made to the Stock Exchanges are also available on the website. Annual Report ofsubsidiary companies
are also posted on the website.

BSE has developed a web based application called BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing Centre for
corporates. Allthe quarterly, half-yearly and yearly compliances are filed electronically on BSE ListinB

Centre.

Exclusive email lD for investors: The Company has designated the email id coro@veritasindia.net
exclusively for investor servicing, and the same is prominently displayed on the Company's website
www.veritasindia.net.
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8. Addltlonal Sfta lnformation
Company Relisration Details
The Company is registered in Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Corporate ldentification Number (ClN)

allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 123209MH1985P1C035702.

Annual General Meeting
Date: Friday, 306 September, 2016
Time: 11.30 am
Venue: 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020

Financial year of the Company

Financial year cover the period from ln April to 31n March of the next year.

Tentative Schedule for declaration of results during the flnancial year 2015-17

Date of Book Closure and Dividend Payment Date

The book closure for Dividend will be from Saturday, 24th September, 2016 to Friday 30h September, 2016
both days inclusive.

Listlns of Ordinary (Ecuity) sltares onlhe Stgrllrcnaoses and Slock code

Your Compan/s Ordinary (Equity) Shares are listed on 8SE Limited (BSE). The requisite Annual listing
fees for the financial year 2015-16 have been paid in full to the Stock Exchange. The Company has paid

custodial fees for the year 2O13-2OL4 to National S€curities Oepository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (lndia) Limiled on the basis of number of folios of shareholders for their shares held in
the electronic form.

Results for the Quarter ending 3oh June, 2016 Second week of AuBust, 2016

Results for the Quarter ending 3@ September, 2016 Second week of November, 2016
Resuhs for the Quarter ending 3ln December, 2016 Second week of February, ?Ot7
Annual Resutts of 201G17 Second week of May, 2017 or Audited

Resuhs by 30h May,2Of7

I{ame and Address of Exchange Type of Security / Scrip
Code

lnternational Secuiities
ldentification t{umber

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Ordinary
Shares /
512 229

(Equity) tNE379J01029
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9. Stock Market Data

Month Equity Shares

BSE timited

Hirh (Rs.l tow (Rs.l

April 2015 6t.7 58.2

May 2015 72.1 62.9

June 2015 77.9 73.5

July 2015 42.6 79.45

August 2015 91.1 u.25
September 2015 98.5 92.9

october 2015 L78.2 100.45

November 2015 128 120.5

December 2015 128 125.5

January 2016 747.7 L28

February 2016 138.5 125.2

March 2016 L25.L 7L7 .9

10, Stock Performance

The performance ofyour Company's shares may be compared with S&P BSE Sensitive lndex,

11. Retistrar and Transfer Agents

M/s. Univercal Capital Securities Private Limited (formerly known as "Mondkar Computers Private
Limited"), are the Share Transfer Agents of the Company. The Contact details are given below:

M/s. Univercal Capital Securities Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Mondkar Computers Private Limited")
Corporate Or* 21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple,

Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E),

Mumbai- 400 093.
Tel Nos. 022- 28207203 I 05
Tele lax. O22- 28207207
Email: ravi@unisec.in:

12. Share Transfer System
For administrative convenience and to facilitate speedy approvals, authority has been delegated to
the Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to approve share transfers up to specified limits. Share transfers/
transmissions approved by the RTA and/or the authorized executives are placed at the Board Meeting
from time to time.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee is authorized to approve transfer of shares in the physical

segment. The Committee has delegated authority for approving transfer and transmission of shares

and other related matters to the executives of the Company. A summary of all the transfers/
transmissions etc. so approved by the executives of the Company is placed at every Committee
Meeting. Shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered and returned within a period of
fifteen days from the date of receipt of the documents, provided the documents are valid and
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complete in all respects. ln case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by NSDL /
CDSLthrough respective Depository Participants.

13, Shareholding as on March 31, 2016:

13(a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31n March, 2015

13 (b! Shareholding Pattem accordint to category of shareholders as on 31n March, 2016

11, Dematerialization of Shares and tiquidity:

As on 31tr March , 2076,2,N,29,330 Equity Shares representing 74.71% of lhe total equity capital of
your C.ompany are held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited and Central
Depository Services (lndia) Limited. Promoters' holding as on 31n March, 2016 is around 6O.47% and
the stock is highly liquid.

12, Address for Correspondence:

Shareholders can correspond with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at:

M/s. Universal Capital Securities Priyate Limitcd
(Formerly known as "Mondkar Computers Private Limited")
21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400 093.
Tel Nos. 022- 28207203105 rele tax. O22- 282O7207
Email: ravi@unisec.in

Number of Shares
(in tems of nominal valuel

Shareholders Shares

From To Number % of Total Held % of Total

1 5mo 42L 92.527 151224 0.564

5m1 1(xDo 8 L.758 79552 o.297

1mo1 2q)00 7 0.440 35,000.m 0.131

20001 30000 1 o.220 30,m0.00 o.Ltz

3mo1 4(xm 4 0.879 1s3,600.00 0.573

4mo1 5(xm 3 0.559 141,000.m 0.526

50@1 10qrc0 z 0.440 125,000.00 0.456

100001 And above t4 3.O77 26,@4,624.OO 97.332

4 1@ 25,810,(m 1m

Categories Number of
shareholderc

Number of
Shares

%ol
Holding

Promoter and Promoter Grcup 3 15213100 @.47
Foreign Venture Capital lnvestors 2 4000000 L4.92

Foreign Portfolio lnvestors 1 250(xm 9.70
NRls / OCB5 / Foreign Corporate Bodies 6 356 0.01
Private Corporate Bodies 10 L475877 5.50
lndian Public 429 2520595 9.40

4Others (Clearlng Members) 51 0.00
Total 455 2,68,10,m0 1q)

IIIIIII
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for all matters relating to transfer/dematerialization of shares, payment of dividend and any other
query relating to Equity shares of your Company.

Your Company has also designated corp@veritasindia.net as an exclusive email lD for lnvestors for the
purpose of registering complaints and the same has been displayed on the Company's website.

For all investor related matters, the lnvestor Relations Department can also be contacted at:
lnvestor Relations Department
Verltas (lndia) timited
Veritas House, 3d Floor,
70, Mint Road,
Fort, Mumbai - /100001.

rel: +9L - 22 - 227 5 5555 / 5184 (xrcO

Faxi +97 - 22 - 2275 5555 / 5184 O0O1

E-mail: corp@veritasindia-net

Your Company can also be visited at its website: htto://www.veritasindia.net

13. Outstandlnt GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instrument, conversion and likely impact
on equity: Nil

14. Commodity Price Risly'Forelgn Exchange Risk and Hedglng: apt

15. Plant Locations

The Company being in the lnternational Trade and Distribution business there are no
manufacturing units or plants across the country.

5. GEI{ERAT BODY MEMNGS

The date, time and venue of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years and
special resolution passed thereat are as follows:

Financial
Year

Date Venue Time Special Rsolution passed

2014-15 29{9-2015 Orchid, 1n Floor, Centre 1
Euilding, World Trade Centre
Cuff Parade, Mumbai - 4qn05

3:30 P.M. NIL

2013-14 2649-20L4 Orchid, 1r Floor, Centre 1
Building, World Trade centre
Cuff Parade, Mumbai - 400005

11:30 A.M. 1. Approval for increase in
borrowing limits
2. Approval for transactions
with related parties.

3. Approval for re-
appointment and increase in
the remuneration of Mr.
Saurabh Sanghvi, Whole-
Time Director.

2072-73 2749-20t3 Orchid, ln Floor, Centre 1

Building, World Trade Centre

Cuff Parade, Mumbai - 400005

11:30 A.M NIL
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No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held during the year 2015-16. Further, no special resolution
is proposed to be undertaken by postal ballot.

Postal Ballot

During the financial year 2015-16, pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014 (including any statutory amendment(s) or
re-enactment(s) made thereunder), the Company has successfully obtained approval of its members
by passing following resolutions by the way of postal ballot as mentioned below.

The details of Voting Pattern are as under

Ms. Mansi Damania, Practicing Company Secretary, was appointed as the Scrutinizer for carrying out
the postal ballot process in a fair and transparent manner.

Procedure for Postal Ballot:

ln compliance with Sections 108, 110 and other applicable provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Rules issued thereunder, your Company provided electronic voting (e-voting) facility to all its
members. The Company engages the services of NSDL for the purpose of providing e-voting facility to
all its members. The members have the option to vote either by physical ballot or through e-voting.

The Company sent the Postal Ballot notice to all the shareholders, along with a draft resolution
explaining the reasons thereof and requesting them to send their assent or dissent by either casting
their vote by sending back a postal ballot form by a postage pre-paid envelope sent to them along
with the Notice or throuBh e-voting which could be exercised on a secure platform provided by
National Securities Depository Limited. Your Company also publishes a notice in the newspapers
declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements under the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules issued thereunder.

The Scrutinizer submits his report to the Chairman, after the completion of scrutiny and the
consolidated results of the voting by postal ballot are then announced by the Chairman / authorized
officials of your Company. The results are displayed on the website of your Company
(www.veritasindia.net), besides being communicated to the Stock Exchanges and Registrar & Transfer
Agents.

The date of declaration of results of Postal Ballot shall be date on which the resolution would be
deemed to have been passed, if approved by requisite majority.

Date of Postal
Ballot llotice

Date of declaration
of result of postal

ballot

Description
Resolution

of Outcome (%)

ln the Favor Against

30 May, 2015 09 July, 2015 lssue of Share
Preferential basis

on 100 0.00
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Declaration by the Chairman under the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia ltistint Oblitations
and Disclosure Requirementsl Regulations, 2015.

I hereby donfirm that:

I

the Comdany has obrtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel,
(s) that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior
nt Penonnel in respect of the financial year ended 31* March, 2015.

For and on Behalf of the Eoard of Directors

affirmati+
ManaBenle

i
i

PI-ACE: Mumbai
DATE: 12tn Augrst, 2015

sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania
Chairman & Director

Ut{: 00210289
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CERTIFICATE OIII CORPORATE GOVER]IANCt

To,
The Members of
Veritas (lndia) Limited

We have examined the compliance of Corporate Governance by M/s Veritas (lndial timhed (the
Company'), for the financial year ended March 31, 2016 as stipulated in the applicable regulations of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility ofthe Management. Our
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. lt is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in

the SEBI (ListinB Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability ofthe Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For JM,A & Associates LLP

Practicing Company Secretaries
sd.l-

Mansi Damania
Partner
FcS No.:747 | COP flo.: 8120

Places Mumbai
Date: 12n August, 2015
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FTNANCIAL OFFTCER (CFO)

We have reviewed the financial state,ments and the cash flow stat€m€nt for the year ended
March 3 I , 20 I 6 and that to the best of my knowledge and beliet, I state that:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue staternent or omit any material
fact or conrain stat€m€flts that may be misleading;

(ii)These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and
are.in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. We also ccrtiff tha! based on our knowledge and the information provided to us, there
are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactiorut entered into by the
Company during the year, which are fiaudule,nt, illegal or violation of the Company's
code of conduct.

3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal conhol systerns of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficienqies in the desigrr or operation of such intemal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to be taken to rectifi
these deficiencies.

4. We furttrer certiff that we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Cornmittee:

(i) That there have been no sipificant changes in int€mal control ove,r financial
reporting during the year;

(ii) That there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the yeer
except which have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statern€nts; and

(iii)That there were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware
and the involvernent Orereiru if any, of the managernent or an employee having a
significant role in the company's intemal contol system over financial reporting.

Place: Mumbai
Date: l2e August, 2016 sd/-

Rajarem Shanbhag
Chief Finencial Ofiicer
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS A}TD
SEMOR MANAGEMENT PERSOI\TNEL WITH TIIE CODE OF CONDUCT IJNDER
REGULATION 17(s) SEBr (LTSTTNG OBLTGATTONS AlrD DTSCLOSUR-E
REQI'IREMENTS), REGTJLATIONS, 2015

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted Code of Conduct (&COC') for its employees
including the Chairman and Whole-time Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted the
COC for Non-Exocutive Directors as well and is posted on the Company's website.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended 3l March, 2016, received
from the senior managernent team of the Company and the Members of the Board a declaration
of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaratioq Senior Managernent Team means the Mernbers of the
Managernent one level below the Chairmao & Director as on 3ls March, 2016.

For Veritas flndie) Limited

Place: Mumbai
Drte: 126 August, 2016

sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania
Cheirmen & Director

5o



Independent Auditor/s Report

To the Members of VERITAS (INDIA) UMITED

Report on tfie Standalone Flnancial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalorE financial statements of VERITAS (INDIA)
UMITED ftlre Company"') which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the
Statefilent of Prdt and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accountirE policies and other erplanatory infiormation.

Managemenfs Responsibility for the Standalone Finandal Stateorents

The Company's Board of Direcbrs is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 C*the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone finarrcial
statements that give a true and fair vievv of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounung principles generally accepted in
India, includirE the Aaounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This respon$bility also irdudes maintenarrce of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company aM br preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
sdection and application of appropriate acounting pdicies; makirp judgments and edimates
that are reasonaHe and prudenq and design, implernentation and maintenance of adequate
intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
comdeteness of the acounung records, relevant to the preparation and prEentation of the
finarrcial slatements that give a true and fair view and are free frorn material missternent,
whefier due to fraud or enor.

Auditor's Responsibilfi

Our rsponsitility is to €D(press an opinion on these findalone financial sbternents based on
our audit.

We have taken into acount the prwisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matteE which are requircd to be included in the audit report undeE the prwisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(f0) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ehical requiranents and dan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurarrce about whefier the financial *atements
are free from material misslatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, irrcluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statemenB, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
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statements that give a true and fair viev, in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstarrces, but not fior the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Company has in place an adequate intemal financial controls systern over financial reporting
and the operating efectiveness of such conEols. An audit also includes s/aluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Companyt Directors, as well as waluating the overall presentation of
the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit ryidence we have obtained is sufncient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statemenb.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the oelanations given to ut
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the informauon required by the Act in the
manner so requircd and give a true and fair vierv in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016, and its
Profit and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulabry Requir€ments

1. As required by the Companies (Audito/s Report) Order, 2016 (\he Order"), as amended,
issued by the C€ntral Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the 'Ann€xure A" a statement on the matters speified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent apdicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and o$ained all the informaUon and explanations which to the best of
our knodedge and belief were nece.sary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statemmt of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified urder section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.
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f. Wth respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Crmpany and the operatirE effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in 'Annexure 8".

S. Wrth respect to the o&er matters to be included in the Audibr's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our infonnaEon and according to the oelanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term cont-acts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material fureseeable losses.

iii. There were no arnounts which were required to be transffi to tlrc Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Shabbir & Rita Associatee L.L.P.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regiskation No: 1(Xl4il0W

sdl-
Shabbir S f,rgarlalsala
(Partner)
Membership No - 039855

Place: Mumbai
Datez24/O5/7ILG
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'Annexure A" b the Indeoendent AuditorJ Reoort

Refened to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requiremenf of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 3t, 2016, we report that:

1) (a) The Company has mainbined proper records showing full particulars, irrcluding
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phas€d
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed assd has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between
the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) The tiue deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

2) (a) The management has condrcted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals.

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verificauon of the inventory as comparcd to
books records which has been properly deaft with in the books of account were not
material.

3) According to the information and o<planations given to us, the Company has granted
unseured loans to six wholly owned subsidiaries covered under section 189 of the Act.

(a) The terms and conditions on which loan has been granted to the borrower Company
covercd under Section 189 of the Act is not, prima facig prejudicial to the interest of
tlle Company.

(b) The principal amount is repayable within two years ftom the date of receipt of such
loan. The borrower has been regular in paying intere* on loan.

(c) There is no overdue arnount of more tian 90 days in respect of loan granted to the
party listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

4) In our opinion and acmrdirg to the information and explanations given
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Com
2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

5) The Company has not-accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the prwisions of Sections 73 rs 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of C,ost Records has not been specified by the

to us, the
panies Act,
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7)

Central C'overnment under suFsection (f) of Section 1,18 of the Act, in respect of the
activiues canied on by tfe company.

(a) According to infurmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
o(aminaton of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing uMisputed *ahrbry dues irrcluding Pro/ident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value added Tax, Cess aM any other stahrtory dues with the approfiate authorities.
According to the infonnation and o<planations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2016 for a period of
more than six months from the date on when they becone payable.

b) According to the infonnation and explanaUon given to us, tlrc following dues of
Income Tax and Sales Tax / Value Added Tax have not been deposiEd by the
Company on account of disputes.

8) In our or,inion and according to the informauon and explanations given b
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company
taken any loan either from finarrcial instihltions or from the government and
issued any debenfures.

s) Based upon the audit procedures performed aM the informaUon and oplanations given

by the management the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further puHic offer including debt inffuments and term Loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and o<planauons given
by the managernent, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informauon and oQlanations given
by the managemen! Ure managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

us, the
has not
has not

Neme d
Stetute

the Nature of dnea Amourt (In I Period to which
the amount
relrtes

Foru.a where
dispute ir
pcnding

Irrcome Tax Act,
7%7

krcome Tax and
Interest

1,89,%,sil

{refer aoteT}

A.Y.
2012

2m1- C.I.T
(Appeds)

MVAT AcC 2002 Sales Tax, Interest
and Penalty

z@,534 A.Y.
m].o

2W9- Sales Tax
Officer (STO)

NoE-'L: Net of amounts pakl urulet oppeal,

55



't2) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Crmpany. Therefore, the prwisions of clause
4 (xii) of the Order are not apdicable to the Company.

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
L77 aN 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting sandards.

t4) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has made preferential allounent of equity shares
during the year under rsrieuv and has complied with all the requirements of section 42
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised by the Company.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and qplanations given
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash ts-ansactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (w) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of IMia Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (wi) of the
Order are not apdicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For Shabbir & Rita Aseociates L.L.P.
Chartered Accountantg
Firm Regiekation No: 10!)420W

sd/-
Shabbir S Bagaerawala
(Partner)
Membership No - 039865

Place: Mumbai
Datez24/O$12O16
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'Annexure B' to the Independent Audib/s Report of even date on the Standalone
Financial Statements of VERIAS (IilDIA) LIMITED

Report on the InEnra! Fanancia! Contrcls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of thc Companles Act 2013 Cthe Act-)

We have audited the intemal financial mntrds over financial reporting of VERIAS (INDIA)
Limited Cthe Company) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial sbtements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Irlanagemenrs Responsiblllty for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for esbHishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the inEmal control over financhl reporting criteria estaHished by the
Company considering the essential componenB of internal contol #ed in the Guidarrce Note
on Audit of Internal Enancial Controls Over Financial ReportirE issued by the Instih.fte of
Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate intemal financial conbols that were operating etrectively for ensuring
the orderly and efFcient condrct of its business, including adherence to compan)/s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention aM detection of frauds and enors, the accurry and
completeness of the accounting rccords, and the Umely preparation of reliable finarrcial
infurmauon, as requircd under the Companies Act, 2013.

Audibrc' Responslbility

Our responsitflity is to express an opinion on the Companfs intemal financial conbols over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Oyer Financial Reporting (the "Guidance NoteJ and
the Standards on AudiUrE, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies fut, 20f3, to the oftert applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit d Intemal Finarrcial Controls and, both issued by tlrc Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
itssurtnce about whefis adequate intemal financial mnbds over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if sr.rch contnols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit sridence about the adequacy of the
intemal finarcial controls system over financial reporting aM their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an urderslanding
of internal financial controls over financial reportirE, assessing the risk that a material weakness
e)d*s, and testirE and waluating tfie design and operaUng effectiveness of internal contrd
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audibr's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that Ule audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to proride a
basis for our audit odnion on the Compan/s intemal financial controls systern over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Fanancial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
finarrcial statements fur e\ternal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting irrcludes those policies
and prccedures tnt (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
proMde reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepardUon

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and qpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statemenB.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial conbols over financial reporting, irrcluding
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of conkols, material misslatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any waluation of the
intemal financial controls over financial reporting to ftrture periods are subject to the risk that the
intemal finarrcial conEol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our oflnion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial conbols
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial repofting were
operating effectivdy as at March 3L,2016, based on the internal conbol over financial reporting
criteria esbblished by the C.ompany considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conbols Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Instihrte of Chartercd Accountants of India.

For Shabbir & Rita Aseociates L.L.P.
Chartered Accountantg
Firm Regietration No: lG)4ll0W

sd/-
Shabbir S Bagasrawala
(Partner)
Memberehip No - 039855

Place: Mumbai
Datet2$O$/ZJ1I6
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Amount in Lacs

Particularc Note
As At

31i March, 2016

As At
31n March, 2015

I. EQUITY AND IIABIUTIES

l1l Shareholder's Funds

(a) Shar€ Capital

(b) Reserves and surplus

l2l Non{urrent Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

l3l Current Uabillties
(a) Short-Term Borrowings

(b) Trade Payables

(c) Other Current Liabilities

(d) Short-Term Provisions

Total EquW & Uabilities

II.ASSETS

(11 Non{urrent Assets

(a) Fixed tusets
(i)Tantible Assets

(ii) work-in-Progress

(b) Non4uffent lnvestments

(c) Long-term Loans & Advances

l2l Current Assets

(a) lnventories
(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash and Bank Balances

(d) short-term Loans and Advances

(e) Other Current Assets

Totat AsseB

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2

20

TI
14

15

16

268.10

74,294.22

/10.95

149.13

2,437.46

\as7.2o
20s.61

56.02

242.1O

10,980.64

115.88

195.20

L,7@.69

4,344.2r

516.58

181.05

19p02.@ 18,190.45

773.55

3,020.98

76.L6

10.32

8,O47.93

7,323.56

6,040-59

9.60

669.50

103.95

267.O9

65.59

2,325.59

10,389.31

r,469.42

1,306.67

1,739.33

t9,g)2.69 18,3:t5.45

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

fhls ls dp adoncc Shetn rcl.rrcd ao It otr aa,ott a, aat dota,

For Shabbir & Rita Associates lIP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 109420W
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For and on behalf of the Board

ill-
Shabbir S. Bagasrawala
Partner
Membership No. : 039865

sd.l_

Nitin Kumar Didwania
Director

sd,l-

Alpa Parekh
Directol

Place : Mumbai
Dare :2410312016

ill-
Raiaram Shanbhag

Chief Financial (fficer

VERTTAS (rNDrA) UMTTED
BAIANCE SHEET A5 AT 31't MARCH, 2016
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VERTTAS (rNDrA) UMTTED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERTOD ENDED 31"I MARCH, 2016
Amount ln Lacs

Sr,

No
Pa.tlculars l{ote

For the yea.
ended

3l March, 2016

For the year

ended

31n March, 2015

v
vt
v[
vIt
tx
x

xl
xlt
x
xrv
xv
xvt

I

I

tv

Revenue from Operations

Other lncome

ul. lotol Ra,eaue (t +tt)

Ex0€ns6:

Purchase of Stocki n-Trade

Chan8es in lnventories of Stock-in-Trade

Employee B€nefi t Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation ant Amortisation Expense

Operation and Other Expenses

fotal FlLpenl€s (rl)
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary ltems and Tax

Exceptional ltems

Profit before Extraordinary ltems and Tax (V - vl)
Extraordinary ltems

Profit before Tax (Vll - Vlll)

lax el,,ense:
(1) Current Tax

(2) Current Tax Expense relating to prior years

(3) Deferred Tax

Profit(Loss) from the perid from Continuing Operations

Profi V(toss) f rom Discontinuing Operations

Tax Expense of Discounting Operations

ProfiV(tossl from Discontinuing Operations (xll - xlll)

ProfiV(loss] for the period (Xl + XIV]

Eaming Per Equity Share:

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

t7
18

19

20

2t
22

10

23

(lll - rv)

(rx-x)

45,L92.26

325.50

50,595.01

785.10

41,5L7.76 51,3t0.11

4t,319.72

2,315.27

u5.47
225.56

64.59

:t69.73

51,350.33

l2,t8L.t2l
304.50

t62.57

58.@

596.76

4,W.9 fi29,.22
9f7.42 1,08849

gnA2 1p8839

47r.4. 1,(E849

170.24

(46.07)

229.72

(17.66)

79t25 rr6"8:t

75t.8 cr6,B

2.at
2.81

3.62

3.62
orEs To Accourrrrs

lt tbd'. S@n cafi 4 @t, Lo,!.arat zdl, kt oor a.Nt 4.rc,/r t,ala.

For Shabblr & RIta Associates lIP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 1qr420w

s,dl-

Shabblr 5. BaSarrawala

Partner
MembeBhlp No. : 039865

Place : Mumbai
Dat€ :2410512016

For and on behalf of the Board

1to39

sd.l_

Nitin Kumar Didwania
Director

ill-
Rajaram Shanbhag

Chief Financial Officer

yh
Alpa Parekh

Directol
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VERTTAS (rNDrA) LrMrrED

Cash Flow Statements for the year ended 31n MARCH 2015
Amount in Lacs

A.

B

c.

PARTICUI.ARS YEAR EXOED 31ST MARCH 2016 YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIV]TIES :

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit before tax

Add/ (tess): on cash & t{on Op€rating ltem

Depreciation

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Commission From WOS

lnterest From subsidary

lnterest & Finance Charges

Profit on Sale of Non current lnvestment

Dividend Received

Op€rating Profit Before Woddng Capital Changes

Adjuded fo.:
(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories

(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables

(lncrease)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances

(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets

lncreasey'(Decrease) inTrade Payables

lncrease/(Decrease) in other current Liabilities

cash Generated ftom Ope.ations

Direct Taxes Paid

€t Cash Used ln Ope.ating Activlties (Al

CASH FLOWFROM I VEsn G ACNVITIES:

Purchase ofTangible & lntangible Assets

Proceeds from disposal of Fixed assets

Purchase of Non{urrent lnvestments

Sale of Non-Current lnvestments

commission From wOS

lnterest From Subsidarv

Dividend Received from subsidiary

Dividend Received on Other lnvestments

Net Cash Flows From lnvesting Actlvitl6 (Bl

casH FLOW FROM FI]IANCIIIG ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds from issue of Equity share Capital including

share premium

(Repayment oo/Proceeds from Short Term Borrowin8s

lRepayments of Long Term Borrowings

lnterest Paid

Dividend Paid

et Cash Flows From Financlng Activities (C)

(A+B+C)

Cash and cash Equivalent at the beginning ofthe year

Other Bank Balances at the beginnin8 ofthe year

64.59

0.18

(115.08)

(26.621

225.56

178.65

2,375.27

2,347.37

(4,733.921

7,729.73

12,487.071

11.o7

477.42

58-08

762.67

(666.51)

118.49

12,7aLtzl
(167.471

(984.88)

(1,739.33)

3,342.22

334.88

1,088.89

877.42

(31.02)

8,,6.@

(1,145.63)

1,O8a19

(s64.3s)

521.9

(1,395.70)

(69.88)

5.00

12,7s3.891

116.08

26.62

L78.65

l2e9.2tl
(307.40)

(606.631

12,497.42t.

(116.89)

(5.95)

7,619.24

118.45

0.04

(871.161

(111.88)

(983.041

1,673.92

2,600.00

670.77

114.971
(22s.s5)

ltz.Ll

12,197.12l-

2,958.18

0.00

(28.14)

(97.341

1762.671
(12.11)

1,613.92

(300.26)

2,958.18
(14s.861

(300.26)

3:Xr,62

53.85

7,475.57

43.19

1,09s.61

Cash & Bank Balances (lncl. Cash & Cash Equiyalents) At
The End O, The Year 1,323.56 1,469I2

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealtlry business"
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tz.2a

s8.70

9.29

33.90

Cash and Bank Balances

(Al Cash rnd cash Equlvelents

With Banks:

- ln Cunent Account

ln Cash on Hand

(81 Other B€nk Balanc.s

ln Dcposit Account

ln Earmarked Accounts

1,241.46

11.12 1,252.58

70.98

1,(x)3.51

2.m r.475.57

53.85

Tot l Crsh lnd Banl Bd.nc6 (t{ote 1{l 1323,56 r,&942
OTES TO ACCOt i TS'1 to 39'

7,Jt b th. c6tt fut si,',r,,'E,,t,4sEd 
'Dhour 

R@rl4d6td@
As pat our repolt of €ven date
For Shabblr & nita Assoclates LlP

Charterrd Accountants
FR:109420W

For and on behalf of the Board

ill-
Nftin l(umar Dldwania

Dlrector

ill-
Shabblr S. Bagasrawala

Partncr
Membe6hlp 1{o, : 039855

sh
Alpa Parekh

Director

Placc : Mumbai
Dare t24l0'lmr:6

Rajaram Shanbhag

Chlef Flnanclal Officer
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vERTTAS (rNDrA) LtMtTED

Not6s formlnq Dart of Financial Stalements:

coeorate lnformation!

The Company is in the business of lnternational Trade & Distribution of Polymers, Paper & Paper Boards,

Rubber, Heavy Distillates, chemicals, Development of software, Manufacture of ceramics prodocts etc. The

Company is also entaged in generation of wind enerty.

2. Statement of SlSnlftcant Accounting Policies

(A) Basls of Preparation of Financlal Statements:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles {'GAAr} in lndia and presented under the historical cost conventions on accrual basis of

accounting to comply with the accounting standards as notified by the Companies (Accountint

Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and with the relevant proyisions of the Companies Act,1956 (The

Acf).

(B) Us€ of Enlmates:

The preparation of Financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted accounting

Principles ('GAAP) in lndia requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of Assets and Liabilities and the disclosures of contingent Liabilities on the date of

Financial Statements and reported amounts of lncome and Expenses durint the reporting period.

Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions,

actual results could differ from these estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates

are recognized in the year in which the results are known/ materialized.

(C) Flxed Assets and capital wo*-in-Protress:

Tangible Fixed Assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated

depreciation. The cost of Fixed Assets includes taxes (other than those subsequendy recoverable from

tax authorities), duties, freight and other directly attributable costs related to the acquisition or

construction of the respective assets. Profit or loss on disposal of tangible assets is recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss. lntan8ible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of

such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Capital work-in-

progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting

date.

(D) Depreclatlor and Amortization:

Depreciation is being provided on all tangible assets on "Straight tine Method" as per the rates and in

the manner prescribed under Part C of Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets

purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged. lntangible assets are amortize oyer the

"A business t}|at consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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VERTTAS (tNDtA) LtM|TED

respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, commencing from the date the

assets is available to the company for its use.

(E) lmpairment of Assets:

At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine nhether there is any indi(2tion of

impairment in the carrying amount of the Company's assets. lf any such indication exists, the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an

asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether ther€ is any indication that an

impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have

decreased. lf any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying

amount of the fired asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so that the

increased carrying amount do€s not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is

recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

After recognition of impalrment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation

charte for the fixed asset is adiusted in future periods to allocate the asse(s revised carrying amount,

less its residual value (if any), on straight line basis over its remaining useful life.

(F) Foreign Currencylransactlons:

(i) lnltlalRecotnhion:

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange

rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange

transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date:

Foreign currency monetary items, other than net investments including Long Term Advances in the

nature of lnvestments in non-integral foreign operations, of the Company are restated at the

ClosinB exchange rates. Non- monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailin8 on the

date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

(G) lnvestments:

lnvestments are classified into Current and Long-Term lnvqstments. lnvestments that are readily

realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of acquisition are classified as

Current lnvestments. All other lnvestments are classified as Non{urrent lnvestments / Long Term

lnvestments.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual

lnvestment basis.

Long-term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution in the value of Long-Term

lnvestments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

On disposal of an lnvestmen! the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(H) Lease Accountint:

i) operatlnt leases

Lease rentals on assets taken on operating lease are recognized as expense in the Statement of

Profit and Loss on an accrual basis over the lease term.

lll Flnance lcasel

ln respect of assets obtained on finance leases, assets are recognized at lower of the fair value at

the date of acquisition and present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding

liability to the lessor is included in the Balance sheet as a finance leases obligation. The excess of

lease payments over the recorded lease obligation are treated as 'finance charges'which are

allocated to each lease term so as to produce a constant rate of charge on the remaining balance of

the obligations.

(l) Revenue Recotnltlon:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefrts will flow to the

company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

il Sale of Goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of

ownership to the buyer. The amounts recotnized as sale is exclusive of sales tax / VAT and are net

of returns- Exports sales are accounted on the basis of date of bill of lading.

iil Rsenue from Enerty Generatlon:

Sale of power is reco8nised at the point of Transmission of electricity generated from windmill.

iii) lnterest:

lnterest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount

outstanding and the rate applicable.

ivl Divldend:

Dividend income from investment is recognized when the ritht to receive the payment is

established.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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(J) lnventories:

lnventories (including in transit) of traded goods are valued at Lower of cost or Net realisable value. The

valuation of inventories is done on First in tirst Out method. The valuations of wastage / packing

materials are valued at Nil.

(K) Benefits to Employecs:

(il Shod Te]m Employce Benefitsl

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve month of renderinS the service are classified as

short term employee benefits and they are recognired in the period in which the employee renders

the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee

benefits expected to be paid in exchange for seNices rendered as a liability (accrued expenses) after

deducting any amount already paid.

(ii) Post-€mployYnent benetrtsl

(al Deflned comrlbution plans

Defined contribution plans are Employee State lnsurance Scheme and Government

administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable employees. The Company's contribution

to defined contribution plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit and l-oss in the financial

year to urhich they relate.

(bl Elned beneflt plans

(i, Provldent Fund scheme

The company makes sp€cified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund

Scheme to a separate trust adminlstered by EFPO. The Company has no further obligation

under the Provident Fund Plan beyond its monthly contribution.

(lll Gratulty Scheme:

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees. The Company

contributes to a separate entity (a fund managed by LIC), towards meeting the Gratuity

obligation. The Company determines the liability for Sratuity funding as per actuarial

valuation by the independent actuary of LlC.

The cost of providing defined benefits is delermined using the Projected Unit credit method

with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance sheet date. Past service cost is

recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, else is amortized on

a straight-line basis over the ayerage period untilthe amended benefits become vested.

The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of

the defined benefit obligations as adrusted for unrecognized actuarial Sains and losses and

unrecognized past service costs and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting from this c:lculation) is

recognized representint the unrecotnized past service cost plus the present value of available

refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The company presents the above liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet as

per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary of LIC of lndia; however, the entire liability

towards &atuity is considered as current as the company will contribute this amount to the

gratuity fund within the next 12 months.

(llll LeaYe Salary:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both

accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The exPected cost of accumulating compensated

absences is determined by actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

(L) Borowing Cost :

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary cost incurred in connection with the

arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the

extent they are regarded as an adiustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifyinB

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

(M) Provision for Cu.rent and Defered Tax:

Tax expense for the year comprises of Current tax and deferred tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, after taking into

consideration, the applicable deductions and exemptions admissible under the provisions of the lncome

Tax Act, 1951.

Deferred tax expense or benetit is recognised on timing differences being the difference between

taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or

more subsequent peribds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

ln the event of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognised

only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that sufficlent future taxable income urill be available to

realise such assets. ln other situations, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is

reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income wlll be available to realise these assets.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-

settin8 advance taxes paid and income tax provisions arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the

Company intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a leBally enforceable right

and these relate to tares on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

(N) Earnin$ Prr Share:

The basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (-EPS") is computed by dividing the net profrt after tax for the

year by weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the year.

(O) Proposed Dlvldend:

Dividend recommended by the Board of Directors is provided for in the accounts, pending approval at

the Annual General Meeting.

(P) PreliminaryExpenses:

Preliminary Expenses are written off in accordance with 45-26 as prescribed by lnstitute of Chartered

Accountants of lndia.

(Q) Provislons, Contlngelrt uabilities and Contlruent Ass€ts:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a

present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to accounts when there is a

present obliSation or present obligation that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where

a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assetg are not recotnised.

(R) Cash Flow Staternent:

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the "lndirect Method' set out in Accounting Standard 3 on

"Cash Flou, Statement'and presents the cash flows by Operatin& lnvesting and Financing activities of

the Company.

(s) cash and cash Equlvalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash & cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with bank

and other short-term highly liquid investments where the oridnal maturity is three months or less.

"A business that consistently enriches liyes is a ucahhy business"
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Notes Formlrt lntegral Part of tlre Balance Sheet as at 31r March, 2015

Note:Sshare@pitol
Amount in lacs

ote 3 Sh.re capltal (contd.)

(l) Reconclllation of tlie number of sh..es and amount outstanding at the beginnlnt and at the end ol the reporting

Note 1 Durint the year the Company had issued 26,00,000 equity shares of Rs V- each at price of Rs 100/- per share
(lncludinS premium of Rs 99/-) on a preferential basis as per the special resolution passed by members of the
Company throu8h postal ballot .

Sr.

No
Partlculars

3ln
As At

March, 2015

As At
31$ uarch, 2015

t

2

Authorb€d Share capltal

1O00,0O,mO Equity Shares Of I V- Each

(P.Y. 10,0O,0O,OOO Equity Shares Of t 1/- Each)

ls6u€d. Subcrlb€d & Paid Uo Caolti.l

2,6E,10,(nO Equity Shares Of t V- Each

(P.Y. 2,42,10,0@ Equity Shares Of I 1/- Each)

1,000.00 1,000.00

1,(n0.00 1,0@.m

268.10 242.1O

Totel 25t.10 242.10

opening BalanceSr.l{o. Particulars Fresh Issue Closing Balance

(Al Equtty shares wlth Yotint rlghts

Year ended 31 March, 2016

242,10,000.m 25,00,0@.00- Number of shares 26&10,0m.m
- Amount (l ) 242.10 26.00 268.10

Year ended 31 March, 2015

242,1O,W- Number of shares 242,LO,W
- Amount (l ) 242.LO 242.LO

IIIIIII
(ll) Iretalls of shar6 held by each shareholder holdlng mo.e than 5% Crares:

Sr.No.
chss ot sha.es / t{amc of

shareholdel
As at 31 March, 2015 As at 3l March, 2015

t{umb€r of shar"s t6 holdlnt Number of shares x holding

Equtty shar6 of t V- each tully
pald-up wttfi rrotirlg rithts

I Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania 92,s0,0@ 34.50 92,50,0@ 38.21

2 Ms. Niti Didwania 67,13,L@ 25.04 67,13,1@ 27.73

3 Xamalasini Tradelink Ad Ltd. 14,7r30o 5.49 t4,7t,3@ 6.08

4 Onix Assets Ltd 30,00,000 11.19 30,00,(D0 L2.39

5 Aatitude Consultants Limited 25,00,000 9.70

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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t{otes Fo.mlnt lntegral Part of the Bahnce She€t as at 3lr March, 2016

Note:4Reserue&S

Note : 5 Term B

Amount in lacs

Sr.

No
Paruc lal5

3ltt
As At

March, 2015

As At

31r March, 2015

7,L37.69

2,574.@

7,t37.69

9,rtt.69 7,1t7 s9

805.79

8rl5.79

t05.79 Et5.79

3,037.16

753.25

2.4

13.41

2.74

2,172.94

876.84

1.97

t2-Lt
2.48

,n6.74 3,Ot7.16

Add :

Less

i

1

2

2

Add

Surplus ln Statement of Profit and Loss

As per Last Balance Sheet

Profit for the year

Oedit for Tax on Dividend

Dividend

Proposed Final Dividend on Equity Shares I 0.O5 per share (P.Y. < 0.05)

Tax on Dividend

Oosint balance

Caphal Rese.Y€

As per Last Ealance Sheet

Transferred durinr the vear

Closint balance

,4.29tt.22 1Op8O.6{Totrl

Sr.

I{o
Pardculars

As At
31* March, 2016

As At
31r Ma?ch, 2015

1 Term loans

Secured loans

- From Banks

{Refer Note 5 (lxi)&(ii} below}

/rc.95 115.88

to.95 115J8Total

t{ote 5(11 lont Term Bonowln$ (contd.l

(ll Terms of Repayment

Sr.

no.
ilatule of loans lnstallments ModG of Payme{ts

Rete ot
lnt€rest

Natu.e o, Secudty
Month and Year of

Matu.tW

1 Term Loan 23.O2
28 Quartedy lnstallments

from June 2010

Base Rate

+2%

Equitable morttage
on Land at Satara and
Hypothecition of
Wind Electric

Generator & Personal

Guarantee of the
Director.

31n March 2017

2 Term Loan o.73
59 Monthly lnstallments

from June 2012
10.59% Hypothecation of car Ol't April 2017

(iil
The above term loan exclude < 99.44l- (P.Y. t 99.tt4l-) falling due for payment within one year, which is shown as other
current liabilities.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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t{otes Fomlnt lntegral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31r March, 2016

Amount in Lacs

Note:6 Shoft Tem

ote 6 (1) Short Tenn Borowlnls (contd.l

0 Prlm.ry S€curlty
Exclusive charce on the Curent Assets ofthe Company

(i0 Collat€ral
Personal Guarantee ofthe Director Mr. Nitin Kumar Oidwenia

Note : 7 Trode

Note : 8 (Xhet Currcnt Uobilities

$.
1{o

Partlculars
As At

31r March, 2015

A3At

31r March, 2015

1 toans Repafable on Demand
- From Bank ( secured )

{Refer Note -6 (1Xi)&(ii)}
2,43L.46 7,7@.69

2AILfi 1160.69Total

As At
31n March, 2016

5r.
o

Particulars
Ar At

31r March, 2015
I Trade Payables:

- Sundry Creditors La57.2O 4,344.21

\as7 20 4,9.2LTotal

Sr.

No
Particulars

As At
31* March, 2015

As At
31r March, 2015

1

2

3
4

Current maturities of Long Term Borrorvings {refer note no. 5(1Xil}}

lnterest accrued but not due
Statutory Liabilities
other payables {Refer Note E(4Xi}}

9.44

5.59
99.s8

99.44

2.4L
15.43

399.40

Total m5.61 916.68

ot€ t (41 Other Curent uabiliticr (contd.l
(it Other payables includes undaimed dividend amt to < 11.12/- (P.Y. t 8.15/-)

Note : 9 Shoft Term Provisions
Sr.

No
Particulars

Ar At
31n March, 2016 3ln

As At
March, 2015

1 ProvlCon - Othe6:
- Provision for Proposed Equity Dividend
- Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend
- Provision for Tax (Net of Adrdnce Tax)

13.41

2.74
39.87

12.10
2.48

L66.47

Total 56.02 181.05

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business" +L



VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED

raot.. tamht rrl{d Pr.i o, th t LlE Slr..r t. .r 3r' rr..dt 2O16

C.t

25.12

19.19

3.6

a)34

45fi 3.Oa

21.27

3.22

la.o

&a3z

15.63

tt.95

80.4t

52.54

t15.37

242.O5

29.11

1.7t

1.27

21t.11

25l

35.4t

7.{

1./t5

6.15

8.55

5.02

19./15

1.:!t

155

I

2

3

1

5

5

7

tl-@

aaz.5l)

t7.56

1ra

a,a7

62.68

124

2n 19

u.5c

a.2a

6.:Xt

32,13

5.E5

tl.oo

990.4!

17.95

t.72

74.t9

:to.ss

/l(l.7r

ta.@

6t 0.45

7.1!,

0.09

2.1r9

39.12

Ll6

1039t IEIIIIIII
'A bu6ln.!s th.t cDndst ntly.ndch.r [v.t ls r u.ritlry buth*'

+3

I



vERrrAs (rNDIAI UMTTED

Notes Formlng lntegral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31r Match,2ol5

Note : 77 Non Cufient tnvestment
Amount in tacs

Sr.

No
Partlculars

As At
31s March, 2016

A5 At
31n March, 2015

1

2

Non-Trade-t nquoted

whdv ormed subsuary

Veritas Polychem h,t Ltd

10000 (P.Y NIL) Equity shares of 1Ol- Each.

lnvestement in veritas Am€ricas Trading lnc

10000 (P.Y Nll-) shares of S .01 Each.

Veritas lnternational FZE UAE

16 (P.Y 1) Shares of 100(X)00 AED Each

Hazel lntemational FZ E UAE

35 (P.Y 35) Shares of 1fl)o AEo Each

Veritas Agro Venture Pvt l-td

10,000 (P.Y 10,0m) Equity shares of < 10/- each

Dharni Farmint Private Umited

10,0OO (P.Y Nlt) Equity Shares of I l0l- each

Quoted
Vitan Agro lndustries Limited

4,00,@0 (P.Y 40O,O0O) Equity Shares of t 1/- each in
((Market value t 54.92l- (P.Y. 50.82)l

DB (lntemational ) Stock Brokers Ltd.

5,00,000 (P.Y. s,m,(m) Equity Shares of t 2/- (P.Y. i 2/, each fully paid up

{(Martet value t 99.50/- (P.Y.< 238.@)}

Rander Corporation Ltd.

457,387 (P.Y.457,387) Equity Shares of { l0/- each fully paid up

((Market value t 63.58/- (P.Y.r 16.10/-))

CCL lntemational Ltd

15,m0 (P.Y. 75,mo) Equity Shares of t l0l- each fully paid up

{(Market value 1 14.49 I - P.Y.< 216.251-ll

1.00

0.68

2,901.36

5.96

1.00

1.00

6.00

29.m

5.95

69.03

Total rp20.98 26r,O9

749.L5

5.96

1.00

1.00

5.00

29.@

s.95

69.03

Note : 72 Loons ond Advonces
Sr,

No
Partlculars

As At
31n M.rdr, 2016

As At
31r March, 2015

1

2 Advance Tax Net of Provisions

[oant and AdYances

- Othen 4.00

72.L6 61.59

4.00

76.L6 55.59Totel

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business" ft



VERTTAS (rNDrA) LrMrrED

ilotes tormlnt lntetral P.n ofthe Balance Shect as at 31r March,2016

Amount an lacs
Note : 73 Tmde Reci*ables
Sr.

ilo Particulars
As At

31r March, 2016

As At
31n March, 2015

I
(a)

(b)

Unsecured
Overdue for less than six months
- Considered Good
Overdu€ for more than six months
- Considered Doubtful & Under Litigation

7,544.23

503.70

10,389.31

Total ap47.9t 10,3t931

Note : 74 Cosh and Bonk Balances
Sr.

ilo Particulars
As At

31* March. 2016

As At

31r March, 2015
1

2

Carh & Cash Equhalents
(il Balances with Banks

- ln clrrent accounts
(ii) Cesh on Hand

other bank bahnc€s
(i) Earmarked balances with banks
(ii) Atainst martin money for SBLC

1,2.28

s8.70
4.84

49.O1

70,98

11.12
r,241.46

53.t5

8.16
1,407.41

L2s2.* tAt .57
Total 1.323.55 t69A;2

Note :75 Short ferms Luns and Advonces
S..

No
Particulars

As At

31r March, 2016

A3Ar

31r March, 2015

I
2

3

4
5

6

Security Deposits
toans and Advances to Employees

Advance to Others
To Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
Prepaid Expenses

Balances with Go/ernment Authorities

:t4.91
o.44

44I).34

4065.93
113.87

1,384.10

46.78
1.60

30E.42

1.00
35.51

913.36

Total 6p4O59 I,N,6'

Note :76 Cnhet Cufient Assets
Sr.

No
Particulars

As At

31d March, 2016

As At

31n March. 2015

1

2

Recievable on Disposal of Subsidiary
Other Recievable 9.60

7,627.34
111.99

9.60 1,7393t

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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vERrrAs (rNDrA) UMTTED

Not s Fo]mlnt P.rt of the St tement ot Profrt & Loss

Note: 77 Rarenue

Note : 78 Othet tncome

Amount in Lacs

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year erded

31r March, 2015

For the year ended

31r March, 2015

1 sale ot Products (Refer t{ote (ll belowl 45,192.26 s0,595.01

45,19i2.26 50595.01Total

For the year ended

31r March, 2015

Fof the year ended

31n March, 2Ot5

Not
e

Particularc

65.33
50.9!)

24.L3

49.72

rfi32

45,O74.94

73.85

50,521.r6

(i) Sale ot Products Comprises:
Generation of Electricity
Atricultural Farm Produce

Total

Traded and Developed Goods

Total 45,O74.94 50,521.15
fotal - Sale of Products 45,152.25 50,595.01I

Sr.

No
Partlculars

For the year end€d

31r March, 2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

1

2

3

4

5

Dlvldend lncome:
from Non- Current lnvestments
- Othe6
- Subsidiary
Commission From WOS

lnterest From Subsidary
Other Operatint lncome
Proflt on Disposal of Subsidiary

178.65
116.08

26.62

4.15

0.04
118.45

666.51

Total 3'15.50 7t5.10

"A business that consistently enriches llves is a weahhy business" 1€



VERTTAS (tNDtA) LtMITED

Notes Forming Part of the Statement of Profit & Loss

Note : 79 Purchose Troded Goods

Note : 20 ln tnventories ol Stock-in-Trode

Note : 27 Employ*

Note : 22 Finance cost

Amount in lacs

Sr.

No
Partlculars

For the year ended

31{ March, 2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

I Traded Goods 41,319.72 51,350.33
Total 4L,319.12 51.3sO.33

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

31$ March, 2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

10.32

2,325.59

2,325.59

144.47

2,315.27 l2,t8t.Lzl

1

2

lnventories rl the end of the yea.:
Stock - in -Trade

lnventories at the beginning ofthe year:
Stock - in -TGde

Net (increase) / decrease

23t5.2t (2,18r-1ZlTotal

Sr.

No
Pa iculars

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

I
2

3
4
5

6

Salaries and Wages

Contributions to Provident Fund

Contributions to Gratuity Fund
Staff Welfare Expenses
Remuneration to Director
Directors Sitting Fees

295.72
12.88

7.63
0.15

28.50
0.59

256.57
L2.27

4.O8

1.16
30.00
o.42

i,,,5.47 :1o4.5{,Total

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

31r March, 2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

I

2

on Fixed Perlod Loan
- lnterest on Term Loan
- lnterest on Car Loan

On Working Capital Loan
- Bank lnterest {Refer Note 22 (2Xi) below}
- Bank Charges, Commission & Others

21.6t
1.36

95.79
103.80

33.61
2.@

116.68
70.29

Total x25.s6 162.67

Note 22(2) Finance Cost (contd.l
(0 Bank lnterest is net off lnterest received of < 103.83 lacs (P.Y. t 107.60 lacs) on Margin Money against Credit Facility

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"

fr-



vERrrAs (tNDrA) uMrrED

Notes Fo.mlng Part of the Statefient of Profit & Loss

Note : 23 ond (Xhet
Amount ln Lacs

For the year ended

31r March, 2015

Sr.

l{o
Particulars

for the year ended

31i March, 2015

4.15
29.98
4.57
1.9!)

1.@
22.O9

29.0s
1.24

28.98

'l8.69
8.59
5.35
0.r8
8.87
5.70
8.06

rL7.67
14.55
34.42

14.94

6.26
2.U
5.33
0./rc

17.r7
18.80
o.72
6.23

29.53
4.49
0.40

432.33
0.84

35.10

5.33
7L.22

3.63

5
6

7

8

9

l0
11

t2
13

15

15

t7
18
19

1

2

3
4

Logistics Expenses

Packint ChaBes
Rent Paid

Repairs & Maintainance
- Machinery
- Others
lnsurance
Rates and Taxes

Brokerate & Commission Charges

Communication Expenses

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

Printint and Stationery Expens€s

Advertisint / Business Promotion Expenses

Legal and Professional Fees

Payments to Audito6 (Refer Note 23(i) below)
Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction & Translation
Loss on sale of Fixed assets

Electricity ChaGes
Farmint Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

:t59.73 596.76

Note : 23 Operation and Other Expenses (Contd:)

Particulars
For the year ended

31r March, 2016

For the year ended

31r M.rch, 2015

(0
Payments to the Auditors Comprises (lnclusive of serylce tar l:

- Statutory Audit Fees

- Certification Chartes
- Tax Audit Fees

7.59

1.00

3.37
0.2E

0.84
Total 8.s9 4.49

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business" +8
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VERTTAS (rN DrA) LtM |TED

Notes formina part of the Financial Statements:

24. Contincem Liabilities and Commitments:

ContinBent Liabilities:

(Figures in [acs)

Retirement benefit plans:

Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard 15 (Reyised) on Employee Benefrts:-

(i) ln respect of gratuity, a defined benefit scheme (based on actuarial valuation) are given belowi

(F ures in lacs

25.

Corporate Guarantee /Stand by letter of Credit 44,772.75 10,953.25

lncome Tax demand pending Appeal & Rectification 189.57 1,894.27

Sale Tax Demand PendinB Appeal (F.Y. 2008-2009) 2.O9 2.O9

Total 44,gil.4L 12,',4,9.5L

I
chante in obligation durint the year ended March 31,

2015

I
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at

beginning of the year
53.51 39.69

8.73 7 .82
2 Current Service Cost

3 4.28 3.18
lnterest Cost

4 (2s.40) 2.82
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

(s.17)5 Benefits Paid

53.51
6

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at end of

the year
35.95

I
Chante in Assets during the year ended March 31,

2016

50.82 41.51
I Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

(s.17)2 Actual Benefits Paid

4.95 4.203 Expected returns on Plan Assets

5.1111.43
4 Contributions by Employer

5 Actuarial Gains /(Losses)

50.8262.O3
5 Plan Assets at the end of the year

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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vERTTAS (rNDrA) LtM tTED

Net Asset/(Uabilityl recognized in the Ealance Sheet

as at March 31, 2016

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
35.95 53.51

z Fair Value of Plan assets as a March 31, 2016
62.03 50.82

3 Fund Status Surplus/(Defi cit)
25.08 (2.59)

4 Net Asset/(tiability) as at March 31, 2015

tv
Expens€s recotnized in the statement of Profit & Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2016

1 Current Service Cost
8.73 7 .82

? lnterest Cost
4.28 3.18

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets (4.es) (4.20)

4 Net Actuarial (6ains)/Losses
(8.06) (6.80)

5 Total Expense

v
The major categorles of plan assets as a perccntage of

total plan

lnsurer ManaBed Funds
1m% t@%

vt Actuarial Assumptions

1 Discount Rate
8% 8%

2 Rate of Return on Plan fusets
9% 9.15%

3 Mortality Table
Lrc (1994-96) Lrc (1s94-96)

4 Retirement Age
60 yea rs 50 years

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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vERTTAS (rNDtA) LtMITED

(ii) ln respect of Leave Encashment, a defined benefit scheme (based on actuarialvaluation) are given

below:- (Figures in l_acs)

Chante in Oblig.tion durint the year ended March 31,

2016

1
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at

beginning of the year
lL.46

2 Current Service Cost 6.43 6.30

3 lnterest Cost
0.86

4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
(3.s2) 5.82

5 Benefits Paid
(3.30) (1.66)

5
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at end of

the year
11.93 LL,46

I
Chante in Assets during the year ended March 31,

2016

I Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

2 Actual Benefits Paid

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets

4 Contributions by Employer

5 Actuarial Gains /(Losses)

6 Plan Assets at the end ofthe year

N€t Asset/(Uabilityl recognlzed in the Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2016

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
11.93 71.46

2 Fair Value of Plan assets as a March 31, 2016

3 Fund Status Surplus/(Deficit) (11.s3) (11.46)

4 (11.s3) (11.45)
Net Asset/(tiability) as at March 31,2016

tv
Expenses recotnized in the statement of Profit & Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2016

1
6.43 5.30

Current Service Cost

0.85
2 lnterest Cost

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets

6.82(3.s 2)
4 Net Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

3.77 13.125 Total Expense

''A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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26.

vERTTAS (rNDtA) LtMtTED

Serment lnformation:

i) Business Setment:

The Company has identified business seBments (industry practice) as its primary segment and

geographic segments as its secondary segment. Business segments are primarily Tradin& Development

of Software and Distribution & wind Power Generation etc.

Revenues and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable se8ment.

Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the

basis of associated revenues of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not

attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each

reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable. Fixed assets that are

used interchangeably among segments are not allocated to primary and secondary setments.

iil Geographical Setment: The secondary reporting segment for the Company is Beographical segment

based on location of customers, which are as follows:

v Actuarial Assumptions

1 Discount Rate
8.03% 7.8%

2 Rate of Return on Plan Assets

3 Mortality Table

lndian
Assured

Lives
Mortality
(200ffi8)

lndian Assured
Lives Mortality

(2006{8}
4 Retiremdnt Age

50 years 50 years

(Figures in lacsf

Revenues f rom External Customers
44,2r433

(46,956.04)

977.93

(3,628.971

45,r92.26

(s0,s9s.01)

Segment Assets
18,389.53

(14,456.13)

913.05

(3,880.32)

19,302.59

(18,336.4s)

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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vERTTAS (rNDtA) Lt MTTED

27. Deferred Tax

Malor component of Deferred Tax arising on account of temporary timing difference is as under:-

(Figures in tacs)

28. Related Partv Disclosures :

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties as defined in the

Accounting Standard are given below:

a) Related Parties:

(i) Subsidiary Companies including step down subsidiary

. Hazel lnternational FZE

. Veritas lnternational FZE

. Veritas America Trading lnc

. Dharni Farming Private Limited

. Veritas Agro Venture Private Limited

. Veritas Global PTE Limited

. GV lnvestment Finance Company limited.

. veritas Polychem Private Limited

(ii) Associates: NIL

(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

. Nitin Kumar Didwania - Director

. Saurabh Sanghvi - whole Time Director

. Rajaram Shanbhag- Chaef Financial Officer

o Mukesh Tank- company secretary till llth March 2016

(iv) Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence

. Veritas lnvestment Limited

o Diva Trade lmpex private Limited

. Sears Real Estate Private Limited

. Clairvoyant Trade lmpex Private Limited

. Veritas Housing Development Private Limited

. Hazel Logistics Private Limited

Defened Tax Liability

OpeninB Balance 195.20 2t2.86

Reversal of Deferred Tax (46.07) (17.65)

149.13Closing Balance 195.20

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"



VERTTAS (rNDrA) LtM]TED

b) Transactions with related parties and the status of outstanding balances as at March 31, 2016:

(Figures in Lacs)

Particulals
Subsiilidries KMP & their

relatines ' 'tt' "

Enterprite over

Which l(MP

exefulse control

lnvestments made during the

year

2,752.92

(6.s5) (-) (-)

Advances made during the year

(Net)

4,067 .tL

t-l (-) (-)

Salary and other employee

benefits to KMP (-)

720.40

(112.61) (-)

Rent paid 1.60

(1.60) (-)

7.86

(s.27].

Dividend received 178.65

(118.4s) C) (-)

Deposit Given

( ) (-, (2s.oo)

Services Taken

(-) C)

t2.9t

(2s6.01)

Purchases

(-) (-) (3e.68)

Sales

(-) (-) (0.1s)

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"



29. Eat..lllings Per Equiry Share (EPSI:

Basis of calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity share is as under:

30. Auditor's Remuneration {includins s€rvice tax}

31. Eamin:s in Foreipn Currency:

vERTTAS (rNDrA) LtMtTED

(F res in Lacs)

(F ures in Lacs

ures in Lacs)F

:Y,e,l1

Profit After Tax 753.25 876.83

Weighted average number of Equity Shares

258.10- Basic 242.1O

- Diluted 268.10 242.tO

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (1) l 1

Earnin8 per Share ({)

- Basic 2.81 3.62

- Diluted 2.8L 3.62

,ldltn-"*'t**,
.i.,:lfiUirh,r"otE?;

-:fei tfri.rcar ended .

,,#itliffii ts+i;,,.
7.59 3.37Statutory Audit Fees

0.28Certification Fees

1.00 0.84Tax Audit Fees

8.59 4.49Total

.For tlrq year ended ,

1r,fi;*4;!09;i3

:, .,or,$9.y9,q19n!ea

:. 3lr.{arch,2015
-' ].! :}..: jl]::.:+: 

-:

1. .! i .. ,- i....r';

*iI' 'l 
r .Y .'

r "irr" ,_ -,1

118.45Dividend from Subsidiary 178.65

116.08 NILLC Commission from Subsidiary

Nttlnterest from Subsidiary 26.62

FOB value of Exports

3,628.97977.93-Traded/Developed Goods

1,299.24 t,747.42Total

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"



vER|TAS (rNDrA) LTMTTED

ures in Lacs)

32. value of lmport calculated on CIE balis:

33

F

(a) During the year, the Company have acquired 10096 shareholding in M/s. 'lr'eritas Polychem Private

Limited" as a wholly Owned Subsidiary Company.

(b) Further A Scheme of Amalgamation of one of the Subsidiary M/s. Kudrat Farming Private Limited,

(referred to as "Transferor Company'') with step down Subsidiary M/s. Veritas ABro Venture

Private Limited (referred to as "Transferee Company'') and their respective shareholders, under

sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 ('"The Scheme") has been approved by the

shareholders of the respective companies and sanctioned by the Hcnorable High Court of Bombay

(vide its Order dated 30t March 2016).

The company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium enterprises as at the year

end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises is based on management's knowledge of

their status. The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under

the MSMED Act 2006.

lnterest due and payable for the period of delay

in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the period) but

without addinB interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

al CIF value of lmports

-Traded Goods Ntt L,794.20

NttTotal 1,794.20

Principal amount remaining unpaid (but within

due date as per the MSMED Act)

(ii) lnterest due thereon remaining unpaid

(iiD lnterest paid by the Company in terms of Section

16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2q)6, along-with the amount

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during the period

(iv)

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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34.

35.

vERTTAS (lNDtA) LtMtTED

(v) lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid

(vi) lnterest remaining due and payable even in the

succeedint years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the

small enterprises

There are no specific claims from suppliers under interest on delayed payments covered under Small Scale

& Ancillary Act, 1993.

ln the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of the

current assets, loans & advances, deposits, in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value

stated in Balance Sheet. The liabilities on account of supply of Boods & services are also not more than the

value of liabilities except liability written off on account of Shortage / Rate Difference / contract

performance /Quality lssues etc.

During the year effective 116 March 2016, the company secretary has resigned and the Company is in the

process of appointing a company secretary.

Leases:

a) The Company has taken commercial spaces on an operating lease basis. The lease rentals are payable

by the Company on a monthly / quarterly basis.

b) Future minimum lease rentals payable as at 31n March, 2016 as per the lease agreements:

(F res in Lacs

The Company has recognized all the claim receivables / liabilities with various government authorities

towards Custom duty, VAT, Cess, lncome-tax, SAD, Unutilized CENVAT credit and lnsurance claim etc. on

accrual basis and shown under the head Loans & Advances and Current Liabilities respectively.

17

35.

LO.26 9.13i) Not later than one year

1.96ii) Later than one year and not later than five years 3.43

Total 13.59 11.09

38.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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39. Previous Year comoaratives:

Previous years'figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever necessary to correspondence with the

current yea/s classification / disclosures.

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala

(Partner)

Membership No.- 039865

Place: Mumbai

Oatet 24lO5l2OLG

For and on Behalf of the Board

Nitin Kumar Didwania

Director

Alpa Parekh

Director

Rajaram Shanbhag

Chief Financial Officel

"A business that consistently enriches Iives is a wealthy business"



tndependent Audito/s Report

To the Members of VERITAS (lNDlAl UMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of VERITAS (lNDlA)
UMIIED (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company''), its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as'the Group") comprising the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
consolidated fi nancial statements").

Management's Responslbllity for the Consolldated Financlat Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Board of Directors of the Company are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accountinB records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responslblllty

Auditors' Responsibility Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to
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obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. Opinion ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Company, as at 31 March 2016, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations Biven to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia:

i) ln the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet , of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at 31n March, 2016;

ii) ln the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the consolidated profits
for the year ended on that date; and

iii) ln the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the consolidated cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries as mentioned in Annexure A to this
report, whose financial statement reflect total assets of <1,67,084.19 lakhs as at 31st March,
2016, total revenues of 11,00,387.90 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to {77.63 lakhs for
the year then ended, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements, except one subsidiary whose unaudited financial statements are furnished to us,
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiaries and our report in terms of
the sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

80



Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on the Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements

1. As required by SuFsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of
subsidiaries as noted in the "Other Matter" paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of consolidated
financial statements.

b. ln ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant book of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding

Company as on 31 March 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding

Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies

incorporated in lndia, none of the Directors of the Group companies incorporated in

lndia is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being appointed as a Director of that
company in terms of sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

c
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Holding Company and Subsidiaries incorporated in lndia and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito/s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as

also the other financial information of subsidiaries as noted in the "Other Matte/
paragraph:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements;

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses; and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia.

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LIP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 1O942OW

sdl-
Shabbir S Bagasrawala
(Partner)
Membership No - 039865

Place: Mumbai
Date:24lO5l2OtG
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"Annexure A" to the tndeoendent Auditorc' Report
(referred to in our report of even date)

The following subsidiaries have not been audited by Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP, whlch are
consldered for the consolldatlon of Veritas (tndla) lImhed.

in Lakhs

' Veritas Global PTE Ltd is a wholly owned subBldlary of ve.itas lnternadonal FZE.

't GV lnvestment Flnance @mpany ttd is a whdh owned subsidiary of Veritas Atroventure Pvt. Ltd.
r"Total Ass€ts & Net Cash Flow are computed at d6int conversion rate. Total Reyenue are
computed at averate conversion rate.

Name of the
Subsidiary

Accountlng
Pcriod

Subsidiary Total
Assets rtr

Total
ReYenue

Net Cash

lnflow
/(outflow)
*aa

I{ame of
the
Auditor

Hazel
lnternational
FzE

O1.04.2015 to
31.0t.2016

48'217.8rDirect 54.96 Youssry &
Co.

Verftas
lnternational
tzE

01.04.2015 lo
31.03.2016

Direct 33479.61 100:t45.57 (0.431 ASP

Auditing.

Veritas
America
Trading INC

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

Direct 27.99 27.1r9

O1.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

lndirect 356.t3Verftas
Global PTE

Ltd I

(6.ss) Mehenran
Singh &
Co.

GV
lnvestment
Flnance
Company
Ltd.r I

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

lndirect 4,85 (o.84) Clarkson &
Associates

Dharni
Farming Pvt
ttd.

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

Direct o.67 (0.121 G.R.Modi
& Co.

84985.75 41.33 17.271 G.R.Modi
& Co.

Veritas
AEroventure
hn ttd.

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

Direct

Veritas
Ploychem
Prrt ttd.

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

Direct 0.68 (0.111 G.R.Modi
& Co.
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"Annexure B" to the lndependent Audito/s Report of even date on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of VERITAS (!NDIA) tlMlTED

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act")

ln conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of Veritas (lndia) timited
("the Holding Company'') as of and for the year ended 31$ March, 2016, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in lndia as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in lndia, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") issued by lCAl and the Standards on Auditin& issued by lCAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of
lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audito/s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
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whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Flnancial Controts Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fiirly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

lnherent Limitatlons of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportin&
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies

incorporated in lndia, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting

were operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the lCAl.
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Other Matterc

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to
three subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in lndia, is based on the corresponding
report of the auditor of such company.

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 109420W

sdl-
Shabbir S Bagasrawala
(Partner)
Memberchip No - 039865

Place: Mumbai
Date:24lOSl2OL6
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COI{SOTIDATED BAI.ANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2015
Amount in Lacs

Partlculars ote
As At

31st March, 2015
As At

31st March , 2015

I. EQUITYA D UAEIUTIES
(11 shareholder's Funds

(a) share capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

(21 Non-Current Uabllltles
(a) Long-T€rm Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Llabilities (Net)

(c ) Other Non-Current Liabilities

(31 cunent uabllltlej
(a) Shod-Term Borrowings

(b) Trade Payables

(c) Other Current Liabilities

(d) short-term Provisions

Totol EquW & Llob ltles

[.ASSETS
(11 t{on{urrent Assets

(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible Assets

(ii) lnanglble Assets (Goodwillon Merger)

(il) lnanglble Assets (Goodwill on Consolidation)

(lli) work-ln-Progress

(b) Non<urrent lnvestments

(c) Lont-term Loan3 & Advances

l2l Current Arsets
(a) lnventories

(blTrade Receivables

(c) cash and Caih Equivalents

(d) short-term Loans and Advances

(e) Other Current Arsets

Toaal Assets

3

4

5

28

6

7

8

9

10

11

11

12

13

2t
14

15

15

77

258.10

1,11,307.68

25,472.70

149.69

15,563.49

15,28s.50

10,058.55

247.73

56.02

242.10

1,02,106.99

5,839.53

195.85

596.57

14,003.98

71,594.L7

5s5.98

181.05

1,79,4o,3.17 7,42,516.22

8s,658.18

16.81

1.36

34,@7.7 L

109.98

76.16

34.17

41,692.54

8,591.70

4505.15
9.60

8s,s55.02

0.58

4,444.93

109.98

65.59

2,349.14

34,435.00

1,537.83

8,453.61

1,654.14

1,79,&3.47 1,42,676.22

NOTES TO ACCOUT{rS

riNt It t . ,tu c. $et .t ddd @ h ot . lcpo,t o, ar.n .hE,

For Shabblr & Rlta Assoclates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN:109420W

1to37

For and on b€half of the Board

t-
shabbl. S. Batasrawala
Partner
MembeBhlp o. : 03!1865

sdl-
t{itin Xunar Didwanla

Director

sdl-
Alpa Parekh

Dlrector

Place : Mumbai
oete ': ,,.l05l20t6

sdl-
Ralaram Shanbhat

Chlef financial Office.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business" s8



VERTTAS (tNDtAlUMTTED

CoNSoUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFTT & IOSS FOR TltE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
Amount in Lacs

Sr.

o
Partkulars Note

For the year

ended
31 March. 2016

For the yeal
ended

31 March. 2015
I

I
m

tv

v
vt
vll
vm
tx
x

xl
xll
xIt
xlv
xv
nl

ReYenue f rom Operations

Other lncome

. ,rt. Toul R.wnuc ( +ttt

Exen*s:
Purchase of Stock-ln-Trade

Chantes in lnventorlcs of Stock-ln-trade

Employee B€nefrt Expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenset

Operatlon and Other Expenses

fobt E4cntct (tlrt
Profrt b€fore Excepdonaland Extraordinary ltems and Tax

Exceptional ltems

Profit before Extraordlnary ltems and Tax (v - vl)
Extraoridinary ltems

Profit before Tax (vll - vlll)
lqx e,,cr,l,c:
(1) GjrrentTax
(2) c!rrentTax €xp€nse relating to prior years

(3) Defurred Tax

Profit(Loss) From the Period From Contnuing Operauons

Profit/(Loss) From Oiscontlnulnt Operauons

Tax expense of Oiscountlnt Operations

ProfiV(Losr)from Dlscontlnuing operations (xll - xlll)

ProfiV(Loss)for the perlod (xl + xlv)

Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic

(2)Diluted

18

19

20

2L

22

23

11

24

(lll - rv]

(rx-x)

1,45,578.55

4.11

L,50,273.57

1.64

L45,582.69 r,50,275.15

1,35,652.82

2,3t5.27

350.10

@4.51

59.99

413.46

L,45,547.fl
(2,181.12)

391.46

612.20

60.03

813./O

1,39,436.15 r,45,257.57

6,145.54 s,O,7.A

6,146.54 5,Ot7.U

6,146.54 5,Ot7.

170.25

(0.72)

(/l5.16)

232.97

(0.s0)

(18.14)

6,023.17 480331

6,023.17 4803.31

22.47

22.47

19.84

19.84

1to37

sdl-
hin Xumar Oldwanla

Director

sd/-
Ralaram Shanbhat

Chlef Finandal Offlcel

otEs To accou r:t
n*b6e.,E,,taL,fE,?h,'cn6houtt goa d cvln tuc.

For Shabbir & Rita Assoclates LLP

Chartered AcEountants

For and on behaff of the Board

sd/-
Alpa Parekh

Diaector

sdl-
shabbir s. Bagasrawala

Paltnel
Membershlp t{o. : 03!rt55

Place : Mumbai
oete | 2410512016

'A buslness that consistenuy enrlches lives is a weahhY business" a9



VERTTAS (rNDrAlUMTTED

CONSOUDAIED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31N MARCH, 2016
Amount in Laca

PARTICUIARS

YEAR EI{DED

31ST MARCH 2016
YEAR ENDED

31Sr MARCH 2015

A

B.

c.

CASH FI.OW FROM OPERATI G ACTWNES :

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit before tax

Add/ (Lessl: Non Cash & Non Ope6ting ltem

Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation & Amortisation lntangible

Effect of exchanSe differences on translation of

assets and liabilities

lnterest & finance Charges

Dividend Received

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

operating Proflt B€fore Workint Capital Changes

AdJusted for:
(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Trade & other Receivables

(lncrease)/Decrease in Long term Loans and Advances

(lncrease)/Decrease in Short term Loans and Advances

lncrease/(Decrease) in other Current Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

lncrease/(Decrease) in Non Curent Liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations

DirectTaxes paid

l{et Cash Used ln Operating ActMties (A)

C SI{ FIOW FROM II{VESTU{G ACTIVITIES I

Purchase of Tangible & lntantible Assets

lncrease in CapitalwlP

Purchase of shares in Subsidiary

sales proceeds from disposal of Fixed assets

Dividend Received

Refund of LongTerm Advances

t{et Cash Flows From lnrestlnt Activities (B}

CASH FLOW FROM FI G A(:NVITIFS :

Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Gpital including

Share Premium
Chan8e in Short Term Borrowings

Change in Long Term Borrowlngs

lnterest paid

Oividend paid, including dividend tax

Net Cash Flows From Fanancing ActMtles (Cl

Net lncrease / (Decr€asel ln Cash And Cash Equiyalents
(A+Brtl

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year

Other Bank Balances at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and Cash Equivalent Acqu ired on Amalgamation

55.80

4.20

595.93

504.51

0.18

5,146.54

60.03

231.a2

632.20

(0.04)

5,OL7.U

6,746.54

1,277.62

5,077.64

924.Ot

2,3L5.27

l7,2s7.e)
0.00

3,958.44

7,U4.54
(7,83s.61)

(314.s1)

15,966.92

7,4tA.t6

4,477.57

(2,787.121

(12,606.49)

20.41

18,122.97!.

(s5.71)

13,502.30

409.01

596.55

5,941.65

(8,338.99)

(70.30)

13o,266.73l.
(1.00)

5.00

15,895.67

(3O7.42)-

15,588.2s

(30,333.03)

(12.91)

(8,444.93)

(1.00)

0.04

(2,397.34)

(114.63)

{2,sr1.971

8,458.80

2,600.00

1,281.31

1&633.17

(504.s1)

(12.11)

(30,333.03)

2L,497.46

5,287.97

6,626.3r

(632.20)

(12.11)

8,458.80

77,269.97

27,497.46

7,153.08

17,269.97

299.20

t22.26

7,475.57

0.79

742.20

1,095.61

0.82
Cash and Cash Cqulvalent At The End Of The Year 4,697.70 1,s37.83

business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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(A| Cash and Cash EqulvalenS

With Bank:

- ln Current Account

ln Cash on Hand

(Bl Other Bank Balanc6

ln Deposit Account

ln Earmarked Accounts

7,356.24

az.a7 7,439.1r

7,252.59

1l5.$

75.lE 122.26

7,415.57

7,247.47

77.12

7,107.4t

8.16

Tot l Cash .rd C.sh Equly.lcnts (Note l/fl 8,691.70 1,537.83

[otcs on Flnand.l Strtamrntr ' I - 37 '
hat,. c,6h fut!,wn nt,t..rrdbh N Rcpnd.la fu-

As per our lrport of den date

For Shabblr & Rfta Assodat6 LIP
Chartered AcEountants

FR :109420W

For and on behal, of the Eoard

$l-
Shabbh S. Batasnwala
Panner
Membership o. :039655

sd,l-

itin Kumar Oldwanla

Dlrectol

sd/-
Alpa lh.ekh

Dlrectol

Place : Mumbai
Oate | 2410512016

sdl-
Rajaram Shanbhag

chlef Flnanclal Oftlcer
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l{otes formlnc part of the Consolidat.d Flnanclal Statements:

l. corporatelnfonnatlon:

The Group is in the business of lnternational Trade & Distribution of, Polymers, Paper & Paper Boards,

Rubber, Heaw Distillates Chemicals, Development of Software, Manufacture of Ceramics products etc. The

Group is also engaged in generation of wind energy.

2. Statement of Slrnlficant Accountln: Pollcles

(a) Prlnclples of Consolidation:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards 21

(AS-21) 'Consolidated Financial Statements" prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 (read with

the General circulet 8l2ol4 dated 4s April, 2014 issued by Ministry of corporate Affairsl. These

flnancial statements relate to M/s. VERITAS (lNOlA) tlMlTED (Parent Company) and its wholly

owned subsidiaries and it's step down subsidiaries i.e. M/s. VERITAS INTERNATIONAL FZE, Mls.

VERITAS AMERICAS TRADING INC, M/S. GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LIMITEO, M/S. HAZET

INTERNATIONAT FZE, MIS. VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LIMITED, M/S, VERITAS POLYCHEM PRIVATE

tlMlTED, M/s. DHARNI FARMING PRIVATE LIMITEO & M/s. VERITAS AGRO VENTURES PVT LTD

(Together refer to as The Group).

(ii) The financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary are combined on a line-by-line

basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,

after fully eliminating the intra -€roup balances and intra --group transactions in accordance with

Accounting Standard (AS) 21- 'Consolidated Financial Statements".

(iii) h cese of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, reyenue items are

consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are convened at

rates preyailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is

recognized in the Forei8n Exchange Translation Reserve.

(iv) The difference between the cost of investment in subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of

acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statement as goodwill or

capital reserve as the case may be.

(v) As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting

policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the

same manner as the Company's separate financial statements.

'A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealtty business"
32-
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(b) The audited financial statements of foreign subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of its country of incorporatlon or lnternational Financial

Reporting Standards. The differences in accounting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries are not

material.

(c) lnvestments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per Accounting Standard

(AS) 13 on "Accounting for lnvestments".

(d) Other significant accounting policies:

These are set out under "Significant Accounting Policies" as given in the Company's separate financial

statements.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"



VERTTAS (rNDrA) LTMTTED

Notes Forming lntegral Part of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2016

Note : 3 shdte tal

t{ote 3 Shar€ Caphal (contd.}

(ll Rcconclllatlon of the numb€r of sha.es and amount outstandinS at the

(FiBures in Lacs)

ni and at the end of the re

As At
31st March , 2016

Sr. No Partlculars
As At

31n March,2Ol5

1,000.00 1,000.00

1

2

Authorised Share Capital

10,00,00,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 1/- Each

(P.Y. 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 1/- Each)

lssued, Subcribed & Paid Up Caphal

2,68,10,000 Equity shares Of Rs. V- Each

(P.Y. 2,42,10,000 Equity shares Of Rs.1/- Each)

268.10 242.70

268.10Total 242.1O

openint BalanceSr,No, Paltlculars Fresh issue Closing Balance

(A) Equity shares with votint rights

Year ended 31 March, 2016

- Number of shares 242,70,opo.O0 26,00,000.00 254,10,000.00

242.10- Amount 26.00 268.10

Yea, ended 31 March, 2015

- Number of shares 242,r0,@O.OO 242,10,OO0.OO

- Amount 242.L0 242.70I
(iil Details of shares held by eadr shareholder holdlnt more than 5x shares:

Sr.No.
class of shares / Name of

shareholder

As at 31 March,2016 As at 31 March,2015
Number of shares

held
% holdint t{umb€r of shares

held
% holding

Equlty shares of < 1/- each fully
paid-up whh votint rights

1 Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania 92,s0,000.00 34.50 92,50,000.00 38.21

2 Ms. Niti Didwania 67,13,100.00 25.04 57,13,100.00 27.73

3 Kamalasini Tradelink hn Ltd. 14,71,300.00 5.49 14,71,300.00 5.08

4 Onix Assets Ltd 30,00,000.00 11.19 30,00,000.00 12.39

5 Aatitude Consultants Limited 26,00,000.00 9.70

Note 1 During the yeat the Company had issued 26,00,000 equity shares of Rs U- each at price of Rs 100/- per share

(lncluding premium of Rs 99/-) on a preferential basis as per the special resolution passed by members of the
company through postal ballot.

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy buslnes5"
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Notes Formint lntetral Pa.t of the Conaolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 Ma.ch, 2015

Note:4Reserve&

Note:5lon Tem

(FiSures in Lacs)

Sr. No Particulars
As At

31st March,2016

As At
31st March,2015

7,117.69
860,l().00

7,137.69

93,117.69 7,137 -69

276.29
s96.91

1,560.15
(1,283.86)

873.20 276-29

84,251.53

$,ir45.74

E05.79
83,425.36

20.38

t05.19 842s1.s3

r0,441.48
6,O23.17

2.49

13.41

2.73

9,390-87
4,&1.32

1.95
3,7L9-70

20.3E

L2.lt
2.4

16,/15t.q, 10,441.48

Add
Add
Less

Les5 :

Less :

Less :

1

2

3

4

Add

Add

Securitles Premlum Account
As per last Ealance Sheet

addition duJing year

Closing balance
I

Foraitn Cur.ency T.anilatlon Reierve
As per last Balance Sheet

CurTent year trantlation reterve
cloling balance

Capital Res€rva
As per last Balance Sheet

ouring the year

Taansfer from General Reterve
Adjusted durint the year

closing balance

Surplus In Statemant of Proftt and toss
As per last Ealance Sheet

Profit for the year

Credit fo. Tax on Dividend
Loss on disposal ol subsldiary
Transferto Capital reserve on merger
Dividend
Proposed Final Diyidend on Equity Shares < 0.05 per share (P.Y t 0.o5)

Tar on dividend
Cloring balance

1,11,30r.6E 1,02,106.9!'Totel

Ar At
315t Malch,2016

Sr. No Partiorlars
As At

31st March,2015
1

2

Term Loans

seaured loans
-From Banks (Refer Note 5 (1xi)&(ii) below)

BridSe Loan(revolving) (Refer Note 5 (lxiii) below)

25,472.70 115.88

6,723.65

25,172.70 6,839.53Tot l inI
l{ote 5 Term Borrowl

Terms of

Mode ol PayrneoBSr. aro. llature of loans lnstallmenB
Rate of
lntcrert

atu.c o, Sccurlv
Monlh ard Year of

Maturlw

Term Loan 23.O2

28 Quarterly
lnstallments from

June 2010

Base Rate

+2%

Equtuble mortgage

on Land at Satara and
Hypothecation of

Wind Electric

Generator & Perional
Guarantee ofthe

31st March 2017

59 Monthly
lnstallments from

hh. 7n1?
10.59% Hypothecation of Ca. 01st April 20172 Term Loan o.73

532,5r7
24 Quarterly

lnstallments trom
September 2017

Eot T-2

Years
Eibor plus

4.75%

and for 3-

I years

Eibor plus

4%

Mort&te of
lmmovable Paopefty

Constructed on the
Project land. Personal

gurantee o, Diaector

Joint and Several

Corporate 8lJrantee
of associates

companier, SeptembeJ 2023

3 Term Loan

(ii)

-heaboveterriloanexcfude599,43iEY.99.43)falllngdueforpaymentwithinoneyear,whichisshownasother

cunent liabilities.
(iii) During the year, bridBe loan facility urds sett€d in follthrough syndicated term loan hcility.

"AEaainess tfat conaiitentlteniches Iiv$ is a wealthy business'
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Notes Forming lntegral P..t of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2015

Note : 6 Other Non-Current Liobilities

(Figures in Lacs)

Sr. l,lo Partlculars
As At

31n March, 2015

As At
31* Ma.ch, 2015

1 From Related Party 16,S63.49 596.s7

Total 16,563.49 595.57

Note:7 Short Term

Note 7(llShort Term Borl'owlngs (Contd.)

(i) Prlmary Security
Exclusive Charge ojl the current assets ofthe Company

(ii) Collateral
Personal Guarantee of the Director Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania.

sr. l{o Partlcuhrs
As At

31n March,2016

As At
31n March, 2015

1

2

toans repayable on demand

- From Eanks ( Secured ) {Refer Note 7(i)

Loans & Advances From Related Partles

-From Directors (Un-secured)

13,807.05

1,478.45

t2,494.Aa

1,509.10

15,285.50Total 14,003.98

"A business that consistently enrlches lives is a wealthy business"



Notes Forming lntetral Part of the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 3l March, 2016

Note:STrddePd les

Note : 9 Other Cufient Liabilities

Sr. No Particulars
As At

31i March, 2015

As At
31n March, 2015

1

2

3

4

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings

lnterest Accrued but not due

Statutory Remittances

Other Payables:

99.44

8.20

134.09

99.44

2.47

15.58

438.45

Total 24L.73 555.98

Note : 70 Short Tem Prcvisions

Sr. No Particulars
As At

31n March,2016

As At
31n March, 2015

1 Provision - O{hers:

-Provision for Proposed Equity Dividend

-Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend

-Provision for Tax (Net ofAdvance Tax)

13.41

2.-14

39.87

12.11

2.44

166.45

Total 55-02 181.05

Sr. No Particulars
As At

31n March,2016

As At
31n March, 2015

1 Tr.de Payables:

-Sundry Creditors 10,058.56 L7,494.t7
10,058.55 17,494.L7Total

AEuSmEStthafconsistenBy ennches lves rs a weathy busrness-
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Notes Forming lnteSral Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2015

(Figures in Lacs)

Note : 72 Non Current lnvestment

Note : 73 Long-tem Loons ond Advances

Note : 74 Trude Recievobles

Sr.

No
Particulars

As At
31st March,2015

As At
31st March,2015

1

(a )

(b)

Unsecured,
Overdue for less than six months
-Considered cood
Overdue for more than six months
-Considered Doubtful & Under Lltigation

47,188.94

503.70

34,435.00

Total 41,692.64 34,435.00

Note : 75 Cash & Cdsh uivdlents

Sr.

No
Particulars

As At
31st March,2015

A9 At
31st March, 2015

1

lnvestments (At costl

Other
Vitan Agro lndustries Limited

- 4,0O,0O0 (P.Y 4,00,000) Equity Shares of { 1/- each in

{(Market value 54.92 (P.Y. 50.82)}

DB (lnternational )stock Brokers Ltd.

- 5,0O,00O (P.Y. 5,00,000) Equity Shares of t 2/- (P.Y. < 2/-) each fully paid up
((Market value 99.50/- (P.Y. 238.00)l

Rander Corporation Ltd.

- 457,387 [P.Y.457,387) Equity Shares of { 10/- each fully paid up

{(Market value 53.58 (P.Y. 16.10)}

CCL lnternational Ltd

- 15,OOO (P.Y. 75,000) Equity Shares of { 1Ol- each fully paid up

{(Market value 14.49 (P.Y. 236.25)l

5.00

29.00

5.95

59.03

6.00

29.00

5.9s

59.03

Total 109.98 109.98

Sr.

No
Particulars

As At
31st March,2016

As At
31st March,2015

1

2

Loans and Advances to Relatcd Pa.ties
Loans & Advances - Others

Advance Taxes Net of Provisions

4.00

72.t5

4.00

51.59

76.76Total 55.59I

Partlculars
As At

31st March,2016
As At

31st March, 2015

Sr.

Itlo

7,356.24
42.87

77.L2
7,24L.47

45.08
76.74

8.15
1,407.47

1

2

Cash & cash EquiYalents
(i)Balances with Banl6

- ln current accounts
(ii) cash on Hand

O,ther Bank Balances
(i) Earmarked balances with bank5

(il) Against margin money for SgLC

8,591.70 1,537.83Total

"A buslness that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy buslness"
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Notes Forming lntegral Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet a5 at 31 March, 2015

Note :76 Short Tems Loons ond Advonces
Sr.

No
Partlculars

A5 At
31st March,2015

As At
31st March, 2015

1

2

3

4

5

6

Security deposits

Loans and Advances to Employees

Advance to Others

Balances with Government Authorities

Prepaid Expenses

Advance Taxes net of Provisions

39.33

o.44

2,75a.50

1,384.10

322.70

0.09

50.13

a3.42

7,450.8t

913.36

35.80

0.09

Total 4,505.16 8,463.51

(Figures in Lacs)

Note :77 Other Cufient Assets
Si.
No

Particulars
As At

31st March,2016
As At

31st March,2O15

9.6{)
-L

2

Recievable on Disposal of Subsidiary
Other Recievable

7,627.34
26.80

9.50 7,6s4.L4TotalI

AOus rness maI consrslenuy en te5 ues Sawe atInY DustneSS
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

Note : 78 Revenue from Operations

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended
31st March,2016

For the year ended
31st March,2015

1 Sale of Products (Refer Note (i) below) 1,45,578.55 7,50,273.5L

Total 1,45,578.55 1,50,273.5r

l{ote Particulars
For the year ended
31st March,2016

For the year ended
31st March,2015

(i) Sale of Products Comprises :

Generation of Electricity

Agricultural Farm Produce

Total

Traded and Developed Goods

Total

64.90

90.71

24.13

47.73

155.51

1,45,422.94

111.85

1,50,151.55

7,45,422.94 1,50,151.55
Total - Sale of Products 1,45,578.55 1,50,273.57

(Figures in Lacs)

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthY buslness"
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Statement oI Profit & l-oss for the year ended Ma.ch 31, 2015

Note : 79 Other lncome
(Figures in Lacs)

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

31st March,2016
For the year ended
31st March,2015

1

2

3

Dividend lncome:
-Others

Other Operating lncome

Rentallncome
4.r4

0.04

1.60

Total 4.L4 7.54

"A business that consistently enriches lives i5 a weahhy business"
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss tor the year ended March 31, 2016

Note : 20 Purchose Traded Goods

Note : 27 Chdnges in lnventories Stock-in-Trude

(Figures in Lacs)

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

313t March,2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

1 Traded Goods 7,35,652.82 1,45,547.54

1,35,652.82Total 1,45,54t.54

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

31tt March, 2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

34.L7

2,349.44

2,349.44

168.32

2,375.27 Q,LAt.72l

1

2 lnventories at the betlnnlng of the year:

Stock - in -Trade

Net (increase) / decrease

lnventories at the end of the year:

Stock - in -Trade

2,375.27 (2,181.12)Total

"A buslness that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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Notes Formint Part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Note : 22 Employee Benelit ses

Note : 23 Finonce Cost

(Figures in Lacs)

For the year ended

31n March,2016

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

5r.

No
Partlculars

300.35

12.88

7.63

0.15

28.50

0.59

343.53

72.27

4.08

1.15

30.00

0.42

1

2

3

4

5

6

Salaries and Wages

Contributions to Provident Fund

Contrlbutions to Gratuity Fund

Statf Welfare Expenses

Remuneration to Director

Directors Sitting Fees

350.10 391.46Total

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

For the year ended

31n March, 2015

1

2

On Flxcd Period Loan

{nterest on Term Loan

-lnterest on Car Loan

On Worklng CapltalLoan

-gank lnterest (Refer Note 23 (2)(i) below)

-Bank Charges & Commission

23.51

1.35

474.44

to4.70

33.61

2.09

355.04

24L.46

Total 604.51 632.20

Note 23(21 Finance Cost (contd.)

{i) Bank lnte.est is net off lnterest received of 103.83 lacs (P,Y, 107.50 lacs) on Margin Money against Credit Facillty

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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t{otes Formint Part of the Conrolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015.

Note : 24 tion ond Other Expenses

(Fi8ures in Lacs)

Sr.

No
Particulars

For the year ended

31n March, 2016

For the yea. ended

31n March, 2015

4.L5

29.98

4.58

9.19

1.50

30.21

38.77

2.02

28.98

73.L4

LO.72

5.52

0.18

8.99

t2.54

ttl.67
11.15

14.55

45.52

6

7

8

9

10

11

72

13

74

15

!7
18

L

2

3

4

5

Logistic Expenses

Farming Expenses

Packing charges

Rent Paid

Repairs & Maintainance

- Machinery

- Others

lnsurance

Rates & Taxes

Brokerage & Commission Charges

Communication Expenses

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

Printing and stationery Expenses

Advertising,/Eusiness Promotion Expenses

Legal and Professional Fees

Payments to Auditors (Reter Note (i) below)

Foreign Currency Transaction & Transalation

Loss on Sales of Fixed Assets

Electricity charger
Miscellaneous Expenses

l4.94

6.26

2.32

13.64

0.40

55.85

25.38

1.04

6.34

158.16

9.A2

0.57

432.33

19.11

0.84

45.60

5.46

75.34

443.46 413.40Total

Notes
Particulars

Fo. the year ended

31n March, 2016

For the year ended

31d March, 2015

(i) Payments to the Audhors comprls€s (lnclusiw o, service tax):

- statutory Audit Fees

- Certification Charges

- Tax Audit Fees

Total

9.72

1.00

8.70

0.28

0.84

1o.72 9.82

FIrOSlness rnar conststen[lY enncnes tves 15 a wealmY oustness
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements:

25. continEent Liabilitie and Commitments: (Figures in Lacs)

26. Retirement Benefit Plans:

Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) on Employee Benefits:-

(l) ln respect ofgratuity, a defined benefit scheme (based on actuarial valuation) are given below:-

(Figures in Lacs)

Forthe year ended
i,iarch 3r, 2oi6

!.otrhi yeiii ended
' 

MarFh 3t,,iols.

Contingent Liabilities

Corporate Guarantee /stand by letter of credit 44,772.75 10,953.25

lncome Tax demand pending Appeal & Rectification 189.57 r,894.27

Sale Tax Demand Pending Appeal (A.Y. 2009-2010) 2.10 2.LO

Total 44,964.42 L2,449,62

Commitments

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed 30,o7t.77 36,502.70

Total 30,o7L.77 36,5O2.7O

I
Change in Obligation during the year ended March 31,

2016

Present Value of Deflned Benefit Obligation at

beginning of the year
53.80 39.89

I

8.75
2 current Service cost

7.88
3 lnterest Cost

4.24 3.18
4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

(2s.62) 2.8s
5 Benefits Paid

(s.17)

6

Present Value of Defined Benefit obligation at end of

the year
36.04 53.80

Change in Assets during the year ended March 31,

2016

1 Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
54.80 45.13

2 Actual Benefits Paid
(s.17)

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets
5.28 4.53

4 Contributions by Employer
11.43 5.14

"A business that conslstently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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(i0 ln respect of Leave Encashment, a defined benefit scheme (based on actuarial valuation) are given

below:- (Figures in Lacs)

5 Actuarial Gains /(tosses)

6 Plan Assets at the end ofthe year
66.14 54.80

lll
Itlet Assev(Uabllltyl recognized In the Ealance she€t

as at March 31, 2015

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Oblitation
36.05 53.80

2 Fair Value of Plan assets as a March 31, 2016
66.34 54.E0

3 Fund Status Surplus/(Defi cit)
30.29 1.00

4 Net Asset/(Liability) as at March 31, 2016
30.29 1.00

tv
Expens6 recognlzed ln the statement of Profit & Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2016

1 Current Service Cost
8.75 7.88

2 lnterest Cost
4.28 3.lE

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets (5.28) (4.s3)

4 Net Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
(7 .75\ 3.11

5 Total Expense
0.00 9.64

v
The maror catetorles of plan assets as a petcentate of

total plan

lnsurer Managed Funds
1@% 1m%

Actuarlal Asrumptlons

1 Discount Rate
8% 8%

2 Rate of Return on Plan Assets
9% 9%

3 Mortality Table
Lrc (1994-96) uc (1994-96)

4 Retirement Age
50 years 60 years

change ln ObllFtlon durint the year ended March 31, 2016

1 Present Value of Oefined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year
11.45

Current Service Cost 6.43
2

o.86
3 lnterest Cost

4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
(3.s2)

(3.30)5 Benefits Paid

lL.926 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year

I Change ln Assets durint the year ended Mardr 31, 2016

1 Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wcalthy business"
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27.

vERTTAS (rNDrA) LIM|TED

Setment lnformatlon:

i) Business Segment:

The Company has identified business segments (industry practice) as its primary segment and

geographic segments as its secondary segment. Business segments are primarily Tradin& Development

of Software and Distribution & wind Power Generation etc.

Revenues and expenses directly atributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment.

Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the

basis of associated revenues of the se8ment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not

attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each

reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable. Fixed assets that are

used interchangeably among segments are not allocated to primary and secondary segments.

2 Actual Benefits Paid

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets

4 Contributions by Employer

5 Actuarial Gains /(Losses)

6 Plan Assets at the end ofthe year

m Net Asset/(Uabilityl recognized in the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

7 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
11.92

2 Fair Value of Plan assets as a March 31, 2016

3 Fund Status surplus/(Defi cit)

4 Net Asset/(tiability) as at March 31, 2016
(11.s2)

tv
Expenses recognized in tlle statement of Profit & loss for the year ended

March 31, 2016

I Current Service Cost
6.43

2 lnterest Cost
0.86

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets

4 Net Actuarial (Gains)/l-osses
(3.s2)

5 Total Expense
3.77

Actuarlal Assumptions

I Discount Rate
8.03%

2 Rate of Return on Plan Assets

3 Mortality Table
lndian Assured
Lives Mortality

(2006{8)
4 Retirement Age

60 years

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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vERTTAS (tNDtA) LIMtTED

ll, Geotraphical Setment: The secondary reporting segment for the Company is geographical segment

based on location of customers, which are as follows :

Tar Expemas

al Mened Tar

Major component of Deferred Tax arising on account of temporary timing difference is as under:-

Fi res in Lacs

Related Partv Dlsclosures :

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties as defined in the

Accounting Standard are Biven below:

a) Related Parties:

(i) Associates: Nll-

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

. Nitin Kumar Didwania - Director

. Saurabh sanghvi- whole time Director

. Rajaram Shanbhat- Chief Financial Officer-

. Mukesh Tank- Company Secretary till 116 March 2016.

(iii) Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence

. Veritas lnvestment Limited

. Diva Trade lmpex Private Limited

. Hazel Logistic Private Umited

. Sears Realestate Private Limited

Flgur€s ln Lacs

Revenues from External Customers
1,46,600.52

1L46,644.s41

977.93

(3,628.97)

r,45,578.55

(1,s0,273.s1)

Segment Assets
1,78,490.4L

(1,38,73s.90)

913.06

(3,880.32)

L,79,403.47

|L,42,576 .221

Dererred Tax Liabillty

opening Balance 195,85 213.99

(45.16) (18.14)
Reversal of Deferred Tax

closlnt Balance L49.69 195.t5

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weehhy business"
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30.

vERTTAS (rNDrA) LtMtTED

. Clairvoyant Trade lmpex Private Limited

. Veritas Housing Development Private Limited

b) Transactions with related parties and the status of outstanding balances as at March 31, 2016:

(Figures in Lacs)

Earnings Per EouitY Share (EPSI:

Basis of calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnin8s per Equity share is as under

( Figures in Lacs)

C) (112.61)

x*s.i;Hf**t;1.t;r+.ir.g
t20.40

C)

i*. ffi;:l._.e..figl{S,}'Ji'1i;ffi SS*#&-#ffi &Wffi ii,ffi :ri
Salary and other employee benefits to

KMP

Rent Paid 1.60

(1.60) C)

7.46

(s.27t.

C) C) (2s.oo)

Rent Deposit Given

C} C)

Service Taken 72.92

(2s6.01)

Purchases

C) C) (3e.68)

sales

C) C) (0.1s)

Profit After Tax 6,O23.17 4,803.31

Weighted average number of Equity Shares

- Basic 268.10 242.10

- Diluted 26a.to 242.70

Nominal Value of Equity shares (<) 7 1

Earnings per share ({)

- Basic 22.47 19.84

- Diluted 22.47 19.84

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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vERTTAS (rNDtA) LtMtTED

31. Audito/s Remuneration {includinc se ice tax}
(Fitures in Lacs)

Leases

a) The company has taken commercial spaces on an operating lease basis. The lease rentals are payable

by the Company on a monthly / quarterly basis.

b) Future minimum lease rentals payable as at 31d March, 2016 as per the lease agreements:

(Figures in Lacs)

33. (i) ftheme of Amaltamation of the Two Subsidiaries:

(a) A Scheme of Amalgamation of one of the Subsidiary M/s. Kudrat Farming Private Limited, (referred

to as -Transferor Compan/) with step down Subsidiary M/s. Veritas Agro Venture Private Limited

(referred to as'Transferee Compan/) and their respective shareholders, under sections 391 to

394 of the companies Act, 1956 ('The Scheme") has been approved by the shareholders of the

respective companies and sanctioned by the Honorable HiEh Court of Bombay (vide its Order

dated 3oh March 2016).

(b) The scheme has been made effective on 1ob May 2016 ("Effective Date") on fillint of the High

Court Order with the Registrar of Companies.

(c) Pursuant to said scheme, KFPL (holdlng company) engaged in the business of carrying out

Agricultural Activity has amalgamated into its wholly owned subsidiary VAVPL engaged in the

business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro Product with effect from Appointed Date i.e.ln April

2015. The Company has given effect to the said merger in its financial statements for the period

ended on 3l't March 2016 from the Appointed Date.

Statutory Audit Fees 9.72 8.70

Certification Fess 0.28

Tax Audit Fees 1.00 0.84

Tot.l \o,72 9.42

2,..36i) Not later than one year 17.23

3.43 1.96ii) Later than one year and not later than five years.

Total 24.79 19.19

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a weahhy business"
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VERTTAS (rNDrA) LTMTTED

(d) As per Scheme, the Company is required to issue 10,0OO equity shares at fair value i.e. at face value of

<.10/- per share and premium of < 8.35lacs to the shareholders of KFPL (i.e. Veritas lndia Limited and

its nominees) based on the swap ratio provided in the Scheme. The Company has followed Purchase

Method of Accounting as prescribed in Accounting Standard l4-Accounting for Amalgamation (AS-14)

issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and accordingly recorded a Goodwill of <

21.01lacs in the books of'the Company''.

(e) The aforesaid Goodwill is to be amortized over a period of 5 years as per (AS14).

There are no specific claims from suppliers under interest on delayed payments covered under Small Scale

& Ancillary Act, 1993.

The company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium enterprises as at the year

end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises is based on managemen(s knowledge of

their status. The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under

the MsMED Act 2006.

35,

(0
Principal amount remaining unpaid (but within due

date as per the MSMED Act)

(ii) lnterest due thereon remaining unpaid

(iii)

lnterest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16

of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the period

lnterest due and payable for the period of delay in

making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed day during the period) but without
adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Act, 2005

(iv)

(v) lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid

(vi)

lnterest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, until such date when the interest

dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprises

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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,7.

As pe. our Audit Report of sen date attached

For Shabbi. & Rita Assodates LL"P

Chartered Accountants

FRN :109420W

sdl-
shabbir s Batasrawala

(Partnerl

Membershlp No.- 039t65

Place: Mumbai

Datet 24l05l20t6

VERTTAS (rNDrA) LtM|TED

ln the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of the

current assets, loans & advances, deposits, in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value

stated in Balance Sheet. The liabilities on account of supply of goods & services are also not more than the

value of liabilities except liability written off on account of shortage / Rate Difference / contract

performance /Quality lssues etc.

Previous Year comDaratives:

The Preyious years' figures have been recast / restated

For and on Behalf ofthe Board

sd/-
ilitin l(umar Didwania

Director

ill_
Alpa Parekh

Dilector

sdl-

Raiaram Shanbhag

chief Financial ofticer

"A business that consistently enriches lives is a wealthy business"
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vertas (brdalttsnEect
CIN: L232(DMH I985PLC03 57 02

Website : www.veritasindia-net

NOTICE is hercby given that the Thirty First Annual GeneEl M€€ting (Aclvo ofthc Members
of VERITAS (II{DIA) LIMITED will be held on Friday, 30fr Septembcr,2016 at 11.30 am at
20 Downtown }Iall, 2d Floor, Eros Theahe Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020 to transact
the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:
a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements ofthe Company for the financial year

ended March 3 I , 20 I 6, togethcr with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 3 I , 20 I 6 together with the Report of Auditors thereon.

2. To declare final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 3l't Marctu 2016.

3. To appoint a Dircctor in place of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi @IN 0200041l), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers hirself for re.appointnent.

4. To rati! appointnent of the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fx their
remuneration and h this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 atd other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and pursuant to
the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors and pursuant to the
approval ofmembers at the Thirty First Annual General Meeting, the Company hereby ratifies
the appointment of lv{/s. Shabbir & Rita Associates LLB Chartered Accountants, Mumbai,
(Firm Regishation No. 109420W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Compar, y to hold the office
till the conclusion of Thirty Second Annual General Mceting on a remun€ration to be fixed by
the Board of Directors, plus out of pocket exp€nses as may be incuned by them for the
performance oftheir duties in connection with the audit for the linancial year ended 3l( lvlarcb
2017."
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SPECIAL BUSIITIESS:

5. To appoint Mr. Rajarangamani Gopahn as an Independent Director of the Company

To consider and ifthouglrt fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLYED TEAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 ard 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, ifany, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Acg and
the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-€nactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) Mr. Rajarangarnmi Gopalan (DIN 01624555), who
was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Dircctors lyith efrect from May
24,2016 pursuant to Section 161(l) of the Act and who holds office up to the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature
for the office of Director and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotatiory to hold offrce for five consecutive
yeat from May 24,2016;'

By Order ofthe Board of Directors

Mumbai
August 12, 2016

sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania
Chairman & Director
DIN:00210289

Reeistered Office:
Veritas House, 3d Floor,
70 Mint Roa4 Fort,
Mumbai - 400001
Phone no: 91222275 5555/6184 0000
F ax: 91 227 5 5556/61 84 0001
Email: com@veritasindia-net
Website: http ://www.veritasindia-net

NOTES:
a) The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 ofthe Companies Act,2013 setting out

material facts is annexed heretd.
b) AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND ANDVOTEAT TET'AI\IITUAL GETIERAL

MEETING IS ENUTLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEI\D AIYD VOTE ON
A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/M,RSELF AIID A PROXY IYEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF TEE COMPAIIY. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the
Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalfofmembers not exceeding fifty
in number and holding in the aggegate not more than ten percent ofthe total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent (10%) of
the total share capital carrying voting rights may appoint single person as a proxy and such
person dnll not act as proxy for any other member or Shareholder. The instrument
appointing the proxy shall be deposited at the registered office ofthe company not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting. Proxies submitted on
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behalf of limited companies, societies, eto., must be supported by an appropriate resolution
/ authority, as may be applicable.

c) An instsumcnt appointing pro)ry is valid only if it is properly stamped as per the applicable
law. Blank or incomplete, unstamped or inadequatcly stamped undated proxies or proxies
upon which the stamps have not been cancelle4 will be considered as invalid. If the
Company rcceives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a Member, the prory which is
dated last will be considercd as valid. If such multiple proxies arc not dated or bear the
same datc without specific mention oftime, all such proxics shall be considered as invalid.

d) During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the comrnenccment of the
meeting and ending with dre conclusion ofthe meeting, a Member can inspect the proxies
lodge4 at any time during the business hours of the company between 10:00 am. to l:00
p.m. provided that not less than three days' notice in writing of the intention so to itrsp€ct
is given to the company.

e) Any Corporate Members intending to scnd their authorized rcpresentatives to afiend tlrc
Annual Gcneral Mccting in terms of Scclion I 13 of the Acr of Companies Act, 2013 are
rcquested to send a duly certifred copy of tlrcir Board Resolution / Power of Attomey
authorizing their rcpres€ntative(s) to at&end and vote on their behalfat the Meeting.

0 In case ofjoint holders attending the Meeting the Member whose name appcam as the first
holder in thc order names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled
to vote.

g) The Register of Membcrs and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from Saturday, 246 September, 2015 to Fridan 30d September, 2016 (both days inclusive)
for the purpor of annual book closurc.

h) Memberq Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring Attendance Slip
duly completed and signed as per 6eir spccimcn signaturc rcgistered with the Company
for admission to the m€eting. Members who hold shares in demat form arc rcquested to
bring their DP ID and Client ID / Folio No. for identification.

i) Members holding the shares in demat€ridized form are requestcd to intimate all the
changes pertaining io bank details such as bank account number, name of the bank and
bmnch details, MICR code and IFSC code, nandateq nominations, power of attomey,
change of address, change of .name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their
depository participant @P). Members are encouraged to utilize tbe Elechonic Clearing
System @CS) for receiving dividends.

j) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to send/notifr any changes in their
addresJbank mandate to thc Company or the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent.

k) Members are requested to hand over the enclosed Attendancc Slip duly signed in with their
specimen signahre(s) registered with the Company for admission to the mceting hall.
Members who hold shares in demat form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID
numbers for identification.

l) The Securities and Exchange Board of India has made it mandatory (by circular dated
March 21, 2013) for all listed companies to use the bank account details fumished by the
Deposiiories and the bank account details maintained by the R€giskar and Tratrsfer Agents
for depositing ofdividend through Elecnonic Cleering Service @CS) to investors wherever
ECS and bank details are available. In the absence ofECS facilities, dividend warrants will
be issued to the members with bank details printed thereon as available in the Company's
records.

m) The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for securities market transactions and/or
ofrmad(et transactions or private transactions involving the transfer of shares in physical
form has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Numb€r @AN) by every
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participant in securities market. Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore
requested to submit the copy of their PAN to their Depository Participant \f,ith whom they
are maintaining their demat accounts. Memberc holding shares in physical form can submit
their PAN details to the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents.

n) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder,
Members holding slures in single name may avail the facility of nomination in respect of
shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form may avail this facility by
sending a nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-t3 duly filed to the Registrar and
Transfer Agents, Universal Capital Securities Private Limited. Members holding shares in
electronic form may contact thefu respective Depository Participant(s) for availing this
facility.

o) In terms of Sections 205A read with 205C of the Companies Acl 1956, the amount of
dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid for a pcriod of seven years from the date of
transfer to the unpaid dividend account is required to b€ transferred to the Inveslor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). However, as confirmed by RTA there are no unpaid
or unclaimed dividends on equity shares ofthe Company, which remained unclaimed for a
period of seven years and needs to be, transfened to the IEPF under Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956.

p) Members, who have not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s), for any dividends declared
after fte aforesaid dividends, are requested to forward their claims to the Regisu-ar and
Transfer Agents, lvUs. Universal Capital Securities Private Limited or to the Company at
its registered office address. It may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred
to the IEPF, as above, no claim shall lie against dre Company.

q) Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Act read with the relevant Rules made
thereunder, companies can serye Annual Reports and other communications through
elechonic mode to those Members who have registered their e-nail addresses e ither with
the Company or with the Depository. Accordingly, the Notice of the Meeting along with
the Annual Report 2015-16 is being sent by electonic mode to those Members whose e-
mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless any Member has
requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not rcgistered their e-
mail addresses, physical copies are being sent through permitted modes.

r) Members may also note that the Notice of 3lr AGM and the Annual Report 2015-16 will
also be available on the Company's wcbsite wv/w.veritasindia-net and also on the website
of CDSL i.e. www.evotineindia.com . Physical copies of the same will also be available at
the Company's Registered Office for inspection during business hous on working days
except for Salurday and Sundays up to the date ofthe Meeting.

s) In terms of Section 152 of the Act Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi (DIN 020(M1l), Director, retires
by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for rc-appointnent.
Accordingly, a brief resume of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi and the information pursuant to
Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secrctarial Standard - 2 issued by the
lnstitute of Company Secretaries of India is attached hereunder, along with details of
companies in which he is a Director/Chairman and the Board Committees in which they
are Member/Chairman.

t) The Route map for the venue ofthe AGM is annexed.
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Voting through the electronic means

l. Pursuant to Section 108 of Act read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and the provisions of
Regulation zl4 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Dirclosure Requiremcnt), 2015 the
Company will provide rernote e-voting as aD option to mernbers to exercisc their vote
on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting. All business
to be transacted at the Annual Gencral Mecting can be transactcd through the electronic
voting system. The facility of casting the votes by the members using the electronic
voting systcm from a place other than venue ofthe Annual General Meeting ('remote
e-voting') will be provided by Central Depository Securities Limited (CSDL).

It may be noted that this e-voting facility is optional. The e-voting frcility $,ill be
available at the link www.evotinqindia.com during the following voting period:

Commencament of e-voting From 9:(X) am. of September 27, 2016
End ofe-voting Up to 5:00 p.m. of Scptember 29, 2016

Remote e-voting shall not be allowed beyond 5:00 p.m. ofSeprcmber 29, 2016. During
the e-voting period, shareholders of the Company, holding sharcs either in physical
form or in demat€rialized form, as on the cut-offdate may csst their vote electronically-
The cut-off date for the purpose of remote e-voting is Friday, September 23, 2016.

2. The Members who do not have access to Emote e-voting facility may send duly
completed Ballot Form (enclosed with the Notice) to the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board
ofDir€ctors ofthe Company. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting or by
Ballot Papers prior to the AGM may also attend the Meeting but shall not be able entitled
to cast their vote agair Any person who becomes a member ofthe Company after dispatch
ofthe Notice ofthe Meeting and holding shares as on the cut{ffdate i.e. Friday, September
23, 2016 have the option to request for physical copy ofth€ Ballot Form by sending an e-
mail to com@veritasindia.net or by mentioning their Folio / DP ID and Client ID No. Ballot
Forms received after 5:fi) p.m. on September 29, 2016 will be treated as invalid

3. The "cut-off date' for dletermining the eligibility for voting either through electronic
voting system or ballot process is fixed at Friday, September 23, 2016. During this perio(
shareholders' holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised fonn, as on the
cutoff date shall be entifled to avail the facility of remote e-voting. The remote e-yoting
module shall be disabled by CSDL for voting thereaffer.

4. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. September 23, 2016.

5. The members who have cast their vote by rcmot€ e-voting prior to the AGM may also
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. Members can opt for only
one mode ofvoting i.e. either through rernote e-voting or by Voting facility provided at the
Meeting. If a Member cast vote by more than one mode, then yoting done through remote
e-voting shall prevail and the voting through voting facility provided at the Mccting shall
be considercd as invalid.
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6. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the
Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e.
September 23, 2016, may obtain the login ID and password by scnding a rcquest at

helodesk.evotinc@cdslindiacom or to the Share Transfer Agent. However, if you are

already registered with CSDL for rernote e-voting then you can use your exisling user ID
and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can rcset your
password by using "Forgot User DetailVPassword" option available on

la.com.

7. The Board of Dir€ctors of the Company has appointed Ms. Mansi Damania
(Membership No. FCS 7447\, of Inlf/s. JMJA & Associates LLP, Practicing Company
Secretary as the Scrutinizer for conducting the rcmote e-voting process in a fair and
transparcnt manner.

t. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion ofvoting at the AGlv! first count
the yotes cast at tb€ meeting thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in
the presenc€ ofat l€ast two witnesses who are not in the employment of the Company and
shall make, not later than two workhg days ofthe conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a

person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same and declare the resuls
forthwith.

9. The results of the voting on th€ resohrtion at the AGM shall be declared by the Chairman
or his authorized representative or anyone of the Directors of the Company on/or after the
date of the AGM within the prescribed time limits and shall be communicated to the stock
exchanges.

10. hrsuant to Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the rcsults once dcclared
along with Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www.veritasindia.net and the website of CSDL www.evotinsindia.com

11.The Scrutinizers decision on the validity of remote e-voting and ballot process will be
final.

PROCESS FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR E.VOTING:

Members are requested to follow the instructions below to cast th€ir vote through e-voting:
A. In case of members receiving e-meil from CDSL [for members whose emril IDs

rre registered with the Company/Depocitory Perticipalts(s)l:

a) Open the intemet browser by typins the following URL: https://
www.evotingindia.com

b) Click on Shareholder - Login
c) If you are already registered wi0r CDSL for e-voting then you can use your existing

user ID and password. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by
using "Forgot User Details/Password" option available on www.evotineindia.com .

d) If you are logging in for the fust time, follow the steps given bclow:
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For Membors holditrg shar6 ln Dcmrt Form rnd Physical ForD
PANI Enter your l0 digits' alpha-numeric 'PAN issued by Income Tax DepartDent

(Applicable for both demar sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)

.Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Dopository
Participant are requested to usc the first two letters oftheir name and the last 8
digits ofthe sequence number which is mentioned in address label as Sr. No.
affxed on Annual Reporl in the PAN field.
.In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits entcr the applicable number of
0's before the number after thc fust two characters of the name in CAPITAL
letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number l(X) then enter
RA000ffi100 in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recordd in your demat account or in the company
records for the said demat account.

Dividend
Bank
Details

Enter the Dvidend Bank Details as r€corded in your demat ac.ount or in the
company records for the said demat ac{ount,

.Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details
are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter lhe member id /
folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

e) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.
f) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly ttre Company

selection screen. However, membcrs holding shares in demat fomr will now reach
'Password Creation' menu wherein th€y are rcquired to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-yoting thoush CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utsnost care to keep your password confidential-

g) For Members holding shares in physical fonn, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

h) Once the home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-Voting: Active
Voting Cycles.

i) Select "EVSN" (El€ctronic Voting Sequence Number) for Veritas (India) Linited.
j) Now you are ready for rernote e-voting as Cast Vote page op€ns.

k) On the voting page, you will see 'RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION' and against the
same the option 'YESNO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to tbe Resolution.

I) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

m) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK ',
else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modifr your vote.

n) Once you "CONFIRM' your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modiry
your vote.

o) You can also take a print ofthe yotes casted by clicking on "Click here to print" option
on the Voting page.

p) Note for Institutional Shareholders (other than individual, HUF, NRI etc.)
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/ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Cusodian
are rcquired to log on to www.evotincindia.com and register themselyes as Corporates.

/ A scanned copy ofthe Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign ofthe entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evotins@cdslindia-com.

r' After rcceiving the login details, they have to create compliance user using the admin
login and password. The Compliance would be able to link the account(s) for which
thcy wish to vote on.

r' The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helodesk.evotine@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote.

r' A scamed copy ofthe Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodiaq if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to veriff the same.

B. In cesc e Member receives physical copy of the Notice (whooe email ID is not
rcgistered with the Compeny/Depository Perticipart(s)

a) Initial password is provided as per the format given below at the bottom of the
Attendance Slip for the AGM: EVSN (E-Voting Sequence Number) USER ID
PASSWORD/PIN

b) Please follow all steps in SI No. (a) to SI No. (p) above to cast vote.

C. ln casc you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions ('FAQs') and e-voting user manual for shareholders available at the
downloads section of www.evotineindia.com or write an email to
helodesk.evotine@cdslindia.com.

Erphnstory Strtement prnuatrt to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory
statement sets out all material ficts relating to the business item mentioned und€r item No. 5

of the accompanying Notice

ln accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 (Act) read with
SEBI listing Regulatioq the Company is required o have at least one-halfofthe total number
of Directors as Independent Directors who are not liable to retire by rotation urd who shall
hold offic.e for a term of up to five years. They may be appointed for a maximum of two
consecutive terms.

Mr. Rajarangamani Gopalan was appointed as an Additional Director on May 24, 2016
pusuant to the provisions of Section 16l ( 1) of the Comparies Act, 2013 (Act) rcad with Article
No.45 of the Articles ofAssociation ofthe Company in the capacity oflndependent Dfuectors
and hold office of Dir€ctor up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a consent from Mr. Gopalan and also declaration confirming that
he is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 ofthe Act and
meet the criteria ofindependence as prescribed under Section 149(6) ofthe Act and under SEBI
Listing Regulation. In this regard requisite notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from
a member, along with a deposit of requisite amount has been received, proposing the
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appohtnent of Mr. Gopalan as candidate for the office of Independent Director of the
Company.

The terms and conditions of appointnent of Mr. Rajarangamani Gopala4 shall be open for
insp€ction by the Members at the Register€d Office of the Company during nonnal business
hours on any working day, excluding Saturday and Sunday.

Brief resume of Mr. Rajarangamani Gopalan:

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company and their relatives are

concemed or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution set out at item no. 5.

Nrme of Directors Mr. Rajamngamani Gopalan
Dete of Birlh 20th April 1952

Detc of Appointment 24thNIoy,2016
Quelificrtion MPA from John F Kennedy School of

Gor4, Ihrvard University., MA USA MA
from Boson Univcrsity, MA USA

Erpcrtisc in specific functionel erers IIas rich and varied experienc.e including
cxperience at Ministry of Commerce and
Industry

Board Membcnhip of other companies Sundaram {layton Limited
Mcnbership/Cheirmenship of Conmittces
of other Companies

NIL
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AITINEXIJRES to thc Noticc

Deleils of Directors sceking Re-eppoitrtment rs required under Reguletion 35 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations rnd Disclmurc Requirement), 2015

Name of Directors Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi

Drte of Birth 05-08-1974
Drte of Appointmetrt Novembcr 01, 2014

Quelilication B.com
Erpertise in specific functionrl areas [Ias rich and varied experience in the field

of trading in iron and steel products

Boerd Membcrship ofother compenies es on
March 31, 2016

Neolite Polymer Indushies Private Limited
Veritas Polychem Private Limited
llazel InFa Limited
Groupe Veritas Limited
Hazel Mercantile Limited
Sanman Trade Impex Limited
Aspen [nternational Private Limited
Titly Barter Private Limited
India Fineade Limited
Revive Securities Private Limited
Priceless Invesrade Private Limited

Membersbip/Chairmanship of Committees.
of other Companies es on March 31, 2015

ML

For other details such as number of shares held, number of meetings of the Board attended
during the year, remuneration drawn in respect of the aforesaid directors, please refer to the
Corporate Govemance Report.
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VERITAS (INDIA) LI}trTf, I)
CIN: L23209MHI 985PLC0357 02

Reg. Offrce: Veritas House, 3d Floor, 70 Mint Roa4 For! Mumbai - 400001
Tel No.: +91 2222755555161U0000, Fax No.: +9122 22755556161840001,

Website: www.veritasindia-na Email: corp@vertiasindia-net

FORM No. MGT-ll

PROXYFORM
[Pusuant to s€ction I 05(6) of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 and rule I 9(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

Name of the Member
Registered Address
Email Id
Folio No/ Client Id DPID

I/We, being the member (s) of
hereby appoint

shares of the above named company,

as my/our prory to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Thirty
First Arurual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Fridan September 3O 2016 at
11.30 AM at 20 Downtown Hall, 2d Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400
020, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

I Name
Address
E-mail Id Signatwe
Or falling him

2 Name
Address
E-mail Id Signature
Or falling him

3 Name
Address
E-mail Id Signature

Reso.
No.

Description For Against

Ordinary Resolution
I Adoption of audited Standalone and Consolidated

Flnancial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2016 together with
the reports of Board of Directors aad Auditors
thereon
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2 Confrmation offinal dividend for the furancial year
ended March 31,2016

3 Re-appointsnent of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi as the
Whole-Time Director of the Company

4 Ratification ofappointment ofAuditors and fix their
rem uneration

Special Business
5 Appoinfrlent of Mr. Rajaragamani Gopalan as an

Independent Director

Signed this _ day of_ 2016 Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder:

Signatue of Proxy holde(s):

Notes:
l. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly complercd and deposited

at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 4t hours before the
conrmencement of the Meeting.

2. It is optional to put a "P" in the appropriate column against the Resolution indicated
in the Box. Ifyou leave the 'For" or 'Against' column blsnk agains Resolutions, your
Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

3. The hoxy-holder shall prove his identifr at the time of attending the Meeting.
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L23209MH I 985PLC03 s7 02

Reg. Ofiicc: Veritas House, 3d Floor, 70 Mint Roa4 Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Tel No.: +91 2222755555161U0000, Fax No.: +9122 22755556161840,001,

Website: www.veritasindianet Email: coro@vertiasindia.net

ATTENDAIYCE SLIP
THIRTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON FRIDAY, September 30, 2016 N 20
Downtown Hall, 2d Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020.

Folio No. / DP ID & Client

D.

No. of Shares held

r Appliceble in cesc shrres ere held in elcctrouic form.

I/We certiry that yWe am/are registered rnember/ prory for the rcgistercd member of the
Company.

UWe hereby record my presence at the TIIIRTY FIRSIT AIIIIUAL GEhIERAL MEETING
ofthe Company to be held at 20 Downtown Hall, 2d Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate,
Mumbai 400 020 at I1.30 AM on Friday, Septembcr 30, 2016.

Signture of Member/Prory

Mernber's / Proxy's name in BLOCK letters

Notc: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand over it over at the entrance of the meeting
hall. Joint Shareholde(s) rnay obtain additional anendance slip at the venue ofthe meeting.
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YERTTAS gr\rDrA) LrlVtrTEn
CIN: L23209MH1 985PLCO3 57 02

Reg. Office: Veritas House, 3d Floor, 70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Tel No. : +9 1 22 227 555 5 5 I 61E40000, Fax No.:'+9 | 22 227 55 5 5 616 I 84000 1,

Website: www.veritasindia.net Email: corp@vertiasindia.net

BALLOTFORM
(In lieu of reDote e-voting facility for 3l Annuel General Mecting being held on
September 30, 20lQ

U We, hereby exercise mylour vote in respect ofthe business to be transacted at the 3ls Annual
General Meeting ofthe Company to be held on Friday, September 30, 2016 set out in the Notice
dated August 12, 2016 of the Company convey my/our assent @OR) or dissent (AGAINST)
to the resolutions by placing the tick mark @) in the appropriate box below:

(Signature of the Member)
Date: _
Note: Please read the instuction carefully printed in the Notice of the AGM before completing
this form.

I Name and registered address of the Sole/Iirst
name Member

2 Name of the joint holde(s) if any
.) Registered Folio No. / DP ID No. & Client

ID No,
4 Number of shares held

Resol
rtion
No,

Descriptioh No. of
Shares
held

Uwe
assent to
the
resolution
(T'OR)

Uwe dissent
to the
resolution
(AGAINST)

I Adoption of audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Stat€ments of the
Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2016 together with the reports
of Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon

2 Confrmation of final dividend for the
financial year ended March 3 I , 20 I 6

3 Re-appointurent of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi
as the Whole-Time Director of the
Company

4 Ratification of appointnent of Auditors
and fix their remuneration

5 AppoinEnent of Mr. Rajaragamani
Gopalan as an Independent Dircctor
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The Route map of AGM Venue is as civen below:

f C A t'"p.:, 
-g-gr@i6rrri,i,r:ru.nxE-,r,ru6bri. 

- ahhyrhrr/td .ai'..r,).-rrrh5,i -lrrlu shurttr-rud:n,Chh.oJe.r-Sli6i.T.ratur.Aicr

I t

.r.tu*: :

I
E

E

I :t!

/: \ its
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If utdelioereil, please return to:

Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd.
(Former1y known as "Mondkar Computers Pvt. Ltd.")
UNIT: VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED
21, Shalil Niwas,
Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple,
Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 093


